
 

DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  
ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0    PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5    BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0    FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3    RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0    POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3    PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  
SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

 

CITY COUNCIL 
Lori Wilson, Mayor 
Wanda Williams, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Anthony Adams 
Jane Day 
Michael A. Segala 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 
Every Month 

 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL  
SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 
AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, MAY 5, 2020 
6:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 
 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, Subdivision (b), and Executive Order released on March 12, 2020, 
the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation by: 
Council/Board Members Anthony Adams, Jane Day, Michael A. Segala, and Mayor Pro Tem Wanda Williams. 
Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 
 

DUE TO CORONAVIRUS COVID-19 RESIDENTS ARE ENCOURAGED  
TO ATTEND THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING VIA THE APPLICATION, ZOOM.  

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  
WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

                                                  MEETING ID: 873-4219-7323 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

 
TO VIEW TONIGHT’S MEETING ON SUISUN WEBSITE, LIVESTREAM  

(URL: https://www.suisun.com/government/meeting-video/)  
 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6pm) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 
 

(Next Ord. No. – 769) 
 (Next City Council Res. No. 2020 – 24) 

Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2020 - 02) 
 (Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2020 – 01) 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
Council / Board Members 
Pledge of Allegiance  
Invocation  
 

https://zoom.us/join
https://www.suisun.com/government/meeting-video/
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


May 5, 2020 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 2 
 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per California 
Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the Mayor/Chair. Speaker 
cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the City Clerk. By law, no 
prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment period, although informational 
answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a future agenda.) 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be identified 
at this time.) 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 
1. COVID-19 Update – Folsom/Vincent/Roth: gfolsom@suisun.com / jvincent@suisun.com / 

aroth@suisun.com).  
a. City Manager Update. 
b. City of Suisun City Return to Normal City Operations Plan / Health and Safety 

Recommendations for Businesses During Reopening and Reconstitution. 

PRESENTATIONS/APPOINTMENTS 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 
City Council 
2. Proclamation (not presented)  

a. Presentation of Proclamation recognizing May 16-22, 2020 as National Safe Boating 
Week – (Lofthus: klofthus@suisun.com).  

b. Presentation of Proclamation recognizing May 17-23, 2020 as Public Works 
Appreciation Week – (Medill: mmedill@suisun.com).  

c. Presentation of Proclamation recognizing May 11-17, 2020 as National Police Week 
and May 15, 2020 as National Peace Officers Memorial Day – (Roth: 
Aroth@suisun.com).  

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 
City Council 
3. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___: Accepting the 2019 Suisun Marina Dredging 

Project as Complete, and Authorizing the City Manager to Record the Notice of Completion 
for the Project – (Lofthus: Klofthus@suisun.com).  

4. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-____: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the 
First Funding Amendment to the Funding Agreement with the Solano Transportation 
Authority for the Electric Vehicle Charging Station Project – (Mmedill@suisun.com).  

5. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-____: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an 
Agreement on Behalf of the City with LandCare for Landscape Maintenance Contract Services 
for the City’s Landscaping and Lighting Districts and Tax Zones (Districts) for a Five (5) Year 
Contract Term, to Negotiate Contract Change Orders as Needed to Meet Available District 
Budgets, and Authorize up to 20% in Extra Work Annually – (Medill@suisun.com).   

6. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Contract Amendment on the City’s Behalf with Interwest Consulting Group to Combine the 

mailto:klofthus@suisun.com
mailto:mmedill@suisun.com
mailto:Aroth@suisun.com
mailto:Klofthus@suisun.com
mailto:Mmedill@suisun.com
mailto:Medill@suisun.com
mailto:Mmedill@suisun.com


May 5, 2020 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 3 

Plans, Specifications and Estimate (PS&E) for the Suisun Solano Water Authority’s Waterline 
Replacement Project and the City of Suisun City’s Asphalt Concrete Overlay Project on Civic 
Center Boulevard and Authorize Contract Change Orders up to an Additional $5,000 – (Medill: 
Mmedill@suisun.com).   

7. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Contract Services Agreement with Superior Building Services and Ratifying the Purchase
Order Contract for Janitorial Service for City Facilities – (Medill: Mmedill@suisun.com).

8. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___:  Authorizing Application for, and Receipt of,
Local Government Planning Support Grant Program Funds – (Kearns: Jkearns@suisun.com).

9. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___: Establishing an Economic Pandemic Impact
Citizen’s Advisory Committee – (Folsom: Gfolsom@suisun.com).

10. Second Amendment to the Suisun City Management and Professional Employees Association
(SCMPEA) Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 2018-20 – (Folsom:
Gfolsom@suisun.com).

a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___: Approving a Second Amendment to
the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of Suisun City and the
Suisun City Management and Professional Employees Association (SCMPEA)
effective December 28, 2018 through December 31, 2020, to Amend the Certification
and Education Incentive Pay and Executive Leave Provisions of the MOU

11. Senate Bill 743 Implementation Support – (Kearns: Jkearns@suisun.com).
a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-: Adopting the 6th Amendment to the Annual

Appropriation Resolution No. 2019-65 to Appropriate Off-Site Street Improvements
Program Funds for Traffic Engineering Services to Support Implementation of Senate
Bill 743

b. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
a Professional Services Agreement on the City’s Behalf with Fehr and Peers, Inc. to
Provide Implementation Support for Senate Bill 743 to the City and to Authorize
Change Orders up to 20% of the Contract Amount

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency/Housing Authority 
12. Council/Agency/Authority Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings of

the Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing 
Authority held on March 26, 2020, April 7, 2020, and April 21, 2020 – (Hobson: 
Clerk@suisun.com).

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
City Council 
13. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___: Approving an Extension of Vesting Tentative

Subdivision Map No. SM16-7-001, for the Crystal School/Parcel 14 Project (APN 0032-152-
180) – (Kearns: Jkearns@suisun.com).

mailto:Mmedill@suisun.com
mailto:Jkearns@suisun.com
mailto:Gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:Gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:Jkearns@suisun.com
mailto:Jkearns@suisun.com
mailto:Jkearns@suisun.com


May 5, 2020 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 4 

14. Waterfront District Business Improvement District (CONTINUED TO A DATE UNCERTAIN) -
(Kearns: Jkearns@suisun.com).

a. Resolution No. 2020-__: Declaring its Intent to Consider Reauthorizing the Suisun City
Historic Waterfront Business Improvement District and the Assessment Levy for the
District for Fiscal Year 2020, and Setting a Public Hearing to Consider these Matters for
_______, 2020.

GENERAL BUSINESS 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 
15. a. Council/Boardmembers

b. Mayor/Chair
16. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff

PUBLIC COMMENT
(Additional time for request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this 
agenda limited to no more than 3 minutes.) 

ADJOURNMENT 

A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session of this meeting, 
and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a Council /Agency/Authority Meeting at 
Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City.  Agenda related writings or documents provided to a majority of the 
Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a Council/Agency/Authority meeting related to an agenda item for the 
open session of this meeting will be made available for public inspection during normal business hours.  An agenda packet is also 
located at the entrance to the Council Chambers during the meeting for public review.  The City may charge photocopying charges 
for requested copies of such documents.  Assistive listening devices may be obtained at the meeting 

PLEASE NOTE: 
1. The City Council/Agency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 10:00 P.M.  Ordinarily, no new items will be taken up after the 

10:00 P.M. cutoff and any items remaining will be agendized for the next meeting.  The agendas have been prepared with the hope that all
items scheduled will be discussed within the time allowed.

2. Suisun City is committed to providing full access to these proceedings; individuals with special needs may call 421-7300. 
3. Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center Boulevard, Suisun City, CA.

Agendas may be posted at other Suisun City locations including the Suisun City Fire Station, 621 Pintail Drive, Suisun City, CA;  Suisun
City Senior Center, 318 Merganser Drive, Suisun City, CA; Joe Nelson Center, 611 Village Drive, Suisun City, CA; and the Harbor Master 
Office, 800 Kellogg Street, Suisun City, CA.

I, Donna Pock, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Suisun City, declare under penalty of perjury that the above agenda for the meeting 
of May 5, 2020 was posted and available for review, in compliance with the Brown Act.



Item 2a

1



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

2



Item 2b

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

4



Item 2c

5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

6



PREPARED BY:   Nick Lozano, Associate Engineer  
REVIEWED BY:  Kris Lofthus, Recreation, Parks, & Marina Director  
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 
 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 
MEETING DATE:  May 5, 2020  
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Adoption of Council Resolution No. 2020-__:  Accepting the 2019 
Suisun Marina Dredging Project as Complete, and Authorizing the City Manager to Record the 
Notice of Completion for the Project.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The total appropriation for Dredging Phase II includes the projected cost of 
the 2019 Suisun Marina Project (Project). There is sufficient funding appropriated to the Dredging 
Fund (Fund 340) for Fiscal Year 2019-20 to pay for this contract. Last year, the State’s Department 
of Finance approved City’s Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS), which includes 
$2,772,451 in FY2019-20 for the Dredging Project. There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance. 
 
BACKGROUND:  In the early 1990s Pierce Island was constructed as a disposal site for sediment 
dredged from the Suisun City Marina and the Suisun Slough, including the Marina Village channel. 
The last dredging episode was performed in late 2008. 
 
In preparation for the 2019 Suisun Marina Project (Project), the rehabilitation of the levee 
surrounding the east basin on Pierce Island levee was completed in November 2018. The 
completion of this levee rehabilitation project provided the necessary storage capacity for the 
dredge material.   
 
Additionally, prior to the 2019 dredging activities and as required by the CDFW permit, the 
vegetation within the west pond was removed; the Salt Marsh Harvest Mouse (SMHM) herded 
from the west pond to the island perimeter; and SMHM exclusion fencing installed around the west 
pond in the summer of 2019.   
 
On November 20, 2018, the dredging contract ($2,183,520.00) was awarded to The Dutra Group 
(Contractor).  Dredging began on August 22, 2019, immediately after the above-described 
preparatory work in the west basin was completed.  Dredging was performed and completed on 
November 7, 2019, within the regulatory agencies’ permitted work windows, which included two 
work extensions issued by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW).   
 
STAFF REPORT:  The Contractor has completed the work under the construction contract.  
Dredging was performed to the required depths and was also able to dredge an additional one-foot 
payable depth in a few areas within the project site. City staff has received, reviewed and approved 
the final invoice for this contract.  The final invoice included compensation for equipment standby 
time when equipment remained at the project site unused while the City secured amendments (two 
total) to the CDFW permit to extend the dredging work window.  The final invoice also included 

Item 3

7



 
 

compensation for debris removal that was not paid under the bid items for dredging.  The total 
construction cost is $2,113,396.84, which is $70,123.16 less than the construction contract of 
$2,183,520.   
 
Total Cost for Phase 1 (2018) and Phase II (2019) of the Overall Dredging Project 
Phase I (2014-2018) and Phase II (2019) of the overall dredging project are funded by special 
assessment districts and contribution from City’s Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 
(ROPS). 
 
Total costs for the overall dredging project is $4,293,074.27, including the total payment to The 
Dutra Group.  This is $138,905.73 less than the overall project budget of $4,431,980.  Breakdown 
of the budget and expenditures are as follows: 
 

OVERALL PROJECT BUDGET 
Source Amount ($) 

Marina Village Maintenance Assessment District  
(accumulated over an 11-year period) 590,584 

Victorian Harbor Subdivision Contribution 
(accumulated over an 11-year period) 1,025,309 

Interest Income (2017-2020)for above two sources 43,636 
ROPS 2,772,451 

TOTAL =  4,431,980 
 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 
Agency/Consultant/Contractor Work Scope Cost ($) 

Regulatory Agencies Permits 49,607.74 
BKF Engineers Preliminary Work (2015) 2,400.00 

Miscellaneous Photocopying of documents, mailing, Daily 
Republic advertisements, etc. 

9,482.13 
 

City Staff Time General work 43,275.92 
Laugenour & Milke / Hultgren-Tillis 
Engineers 

2015 Island Topographic Survey & 
Geotechnical Evaluation 41,247.75 

Marty Ecological Consulting Work Plan and Permit Documents (2017) 53,425.22 

Moffatt & Nichol Design, Environmental Documentation and 
Support (Permit, Bid, and Construction) 492,029.79 

Sequoia Ecological Consulting Protocol Level Bird Survey (2018) 10,559.97 
Sequoia Ecological Consulting Biological Monitoring (2018) 88,065.48 
Maggiora and Ghilotti, Inc. East Basin Levee Rehabilitation (2018) 1,154,935.00 
Sequoia Ecological Consulting Protocol Level Bird Survey (2019) 17,965.83 

Marty Ecological Consulting Biological Monitoring  in West Basin 
(2019) 77,228.16 

Sequoia Ecological Consulting Biological Monitoring in East Basin (2019) 7,525.70 

Item 3

8



 
 

Green Vista Landscape West Basin Vegetation Removal (2019) 131,928.74 
The Dutra Group Dredging (2019) 2,113,396.84 

TOTAL =  4,293,074.27 
 
The Dutra Group has completed the Project in an acceptable and satisfactory manner, and it is now 
appropriate to file the Notice of Completion (NOC) with the County for the work completed.  Staff 
recommends accepting the Project as completed and authorizing the City Manager to file and 
record the NOC with the County, which will then start the one-year warranty period on the 
completed improvements. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-
___:  Accepting the 2019 Suisun Marina Dredging Project as Complete, and Authorizing the City 
Manager to Record the Notice of Completion for the Project.   

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2020-__: Accepting the 2019 Suisun Marina Dredging Project as Complete, 
and Authorizing the City Manager to Record the Notice of Completion for the Project.   

2. Location Map 

3. Photos 

4. Notice of Completion. 

 

Item 3

9



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

10



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
ACCEPTING THE 2019 SUISUN MARINA DREDGING PROJECT AS COMPLETE, 

AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO RECORD THE NOTICE OF 
COMPLETION FOR THE PROJECT 

 
 WHEREAS, dredging should be performed in the Suisun Marina, Suisun 
Slough/Whispering Bay channel and the Marina Village channel every 8 to 9 years; and 
 WHEREAS, the last time dredging was performed was in December 2008, and dredging 
was due to be performed in 2019 as part of the planned 2019 Suisun Marina Dredging Project 
(Project); and 
 WHEREAS, the Pierce Island Levee Rehabilitation Project was completed in early 
November 2018 to ensure that there is adequate storage capacity to accept dredged sediment for 
the Project; and 
 WHEREAS, the overall dredging project, including the 2019 Suisun Marina Dredging 
Project, is funded by contributions from two special assessment districts and the City’s Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) in the total amount of $4,431,980; and  
 WHEREAS, on November 20, 2018, the City Council awarded the construction contract 
of $2,183,520 for the Project to The Dutra Group; and 
 WHEREAS, the construction contract is for dredging the above-mentioned dredge areas; 
and 
 WHEREAS, The Dutra Group has completed all work under the contract for the Project 
and is ready to receive a Notice of Completion.  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 
City does hereby accept the 2019 Suisun Marina Dredging Project (Project) as completed, and 
authorizes the City Manager to take such measures as necessary to execute and record the Notice 
of Completion. 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Suisun 
City duly held on Tuesday, the 5th day of May 2020, by the following vote: 
 

AYES: Council Members:    
NOES: Council Members:    
ABSENT: Council Members:    
ABSTAIN: Council Members:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 5th day of May 2020. 
 
   
 Donna Pock, CMC 
 Deputy City Clerk 
 

Item 3 
Attachment 1

11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

12



L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
P

 

2
0
1
9
 S

u
is

u
n

 M
ar

in
a 

D
re

d
g
in

g
 P

ro
je

ct
 

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 

Item 13 
Attachment 2

13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

14



PHOTOS 

2019 Suisun Marina Dredging Project 

Main Dredge Equipment: 

Center Levee on Pierce Island during Deposit of Dredged Material into West Basin: 

Item 3 
Attachment 3

15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

16



1 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
 
Name  Public Works Department   
 
Street   CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
Address  701 CIVIC CENTER BLVD. 
 
City &  SUISUN CITY, CA 94585 
State, Zip  
 

 

No Fee, per code 27283 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 
A.P.N.    

Notice is hereby given that: 
1. The undersigned is owner of the interest or estate stated below in the property hereinafter described. 
2. The full name of the undersigned is  City of Suisun City       
3. The full address of the undersigned is  701 Civic Center Blvd.      

     Suisun City, CA 94585       
4. The nature of the title of the undersigned is: In fee.  N/A       

(If other than fee, strike “In fee” and insert, for example, “purchaser under contract of purchase,” or “lessee.”) 
 

5. The full names and full addresses of all persons, if any, who hold title with the undersigned as joint tenants or 
as tenants in common are: NONE 

NAMES     ADDRESSES 
               
               
               

6. The names of the predecessors in the interest of the undersigned, if the property was transferred subsequent to 
the commencement of the work of improvement herein referred to: NONE 

NAMES     ADDRESSES 
               
               

 (If no transfer made, insert “none.”) 
 

7. A work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was completed on: May 5, 2020  
8. The name of the contractor, if any, for such work of improvement was      

 The Dutra Group           
(If no contractor for work of improvement as a whole, insert “none.”) 

 
9. The property on which said work of improvement was completed is in the City of  Suisun City 

   , County of   Solano  , State of California, and is described as follows: 
 Suisun Marina Dredging Project           

               
               

 
10. The street address of said property is  Suisun Marina, Whispering Bay Channel and Marina Village 

Channel             
              

 
11. I declare under penalty of perjury the foregoing is true and correct. 

Signature of 
       owner named  
Dated:       in paragraph 2        
 
        By     Greg Folsom, City Manager  

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE 

Item 3 
Attachment 4

17



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

18



PREPARED BY: Amanda Dum, Management Analyst I 

REVIEWED BY: Matthew Medill, Public Works Director 

APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE: May 5, 2020 

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-__:  Authorizing the City 

Manager to Execute the First Funding Amendment to the Funding Agreement with the Solano 

Transportation Authority for the Electric Vehicle Charging Station Project. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The City has received $35,000 in funding for the Electric Vehicle Charging 

Station Project, which has been deposited to the Transportation Capital Project Fund (Fund 115).  

The additional award of up to $40,000 also would be deposited to Fund 115 when received in 

Fiscal Year 2020-21.  There are no City matching funds required.  Therefore, there is no fiscal 

impact to the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget or the General Fund. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance. Enhance Environment. 

 

BACKGROUND: The Bay Area Air Quality Management District’s (BAAQMD) 

Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) funds are collected from a $4 fee on all vehicle 

registrations within the Air District’s boundaries. Sixty percent (60%) of these funds are applied 

to the TFCA Regional Program, which is administered by BAAQMD. The remaining 40% is 

distributed to each Bay Area County Congestion Management Agency (CMA) and is called 

County Program Manager Funds.  Solano Transportation Authority (STA) is Solano County’s 

CMA and handles distribution of these funds. 

 

All eligible projects must meet cost effectiveness requirements related to the amount of emission 

reductions and must submit monitoring reports twice a year. Past projects funded through the 

TFCA program include Class I and II bike facilities, Solano Mobility, and Safe Routes to School 

projects. STA staff aims to identify projects that align well with the goals of both BAAQMD and 

STA.  

 

STAFF REPORT: The City Manager was authorized to sign the original Funding Agreement for 

the Electric Vehicle (EV) Charge Station Project (Project) by Council on September 4, 2019.   

 

The City agreed to install three (3) double paddle EV charging stations in the Park ‘n’ Ride 

Parking Lot (Lot) and to install one (1) double paddle EV charging station at the parking lot 

behind Suisun City Hall, for a total of eight (80) EV charging stations.  

 

The initial Agreement remains in effect from July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2020, although 

there is an option to extend the Project’s funding if needed. 

 

To date, the one (1) double paddle EV station in the parking lot behind City Hall has been 

installed and is up and running.  Additionally, staff has purchased the three (3) double paddle EV 

stations for installation in the Park ‘n’ Ride Parking Lot and has met multiple times with an 

electrical contractor to ensure that adequate power is available for the new stations as well as 

power available for future units.  

 

Item 4

19



 

 

 

Through discussions with the electrical contractor, additional unexpected project costs were 

discovered.   There needs to be an upgrade to the existing electrical service panel.  Additionally, 

the cost of the necessary concrete work was not included in the original grant request. The need 

for additional funding was discussed with STA and has resulted in the First Amendment to the 

Funding Agreement for this Project.  STA is providing an additional forty thousand ($40,000) in 

BAAQMD (TFCA) funds to complete this project with the expectation that the panel upgrade 

will include the ability to support the future installation of EV stations in the Lot. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt resolution No. 2020-

___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the First Funding Amendment to the Funding 

Agreement with the Solano Transportation Authority for the Electric Vehicle Charging Station 

Project. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

 

1. Resolution No. 2020-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the First Funding 

Amendment to the Funding Agreement with the Solano Transportation Authority for the 

Electric Vehicle Charging Station Project  

2. First Amendment to Funding Agreement Between Solano Transportation Authority and City 

of Suisun City for Suisun City Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 

Item 4

20



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE FIRST AMENDMENT 

TO THE FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE SOLANO TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY FOR THE ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATION PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (“BAAQMD”) 

Transportation Funds for Clean Air (“TFCA”) are administered by each Bay Area Congestion 
Management Agency (“CMA”); and 

WHEREAS, the Solano Transportation Authority, as the CMA for Solano County, 
administers the TFCA for the County; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City’s Electric Vehicle (“EV”) Charging Stations 
project will install eight (8) EV charging stations via four (4) double paddle charging stations, 
which is eligible for TFCA funds.  TFCA funding would result in three (3) additional double 
paddle EV charging stations in the Park N Ride Parking Lot, and one (1) double paddle EV 
stations in the parking lot behind Suisun City Hall; and 

WHEREAS, on September 4, 2018 City Council authorized the City Manager to enter 
into a funding agreement for $35,000 with the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) to 
complete this Project; and 

WHEREAS, since that time a need for additional funding to complete this Project has 
been identified, and STA has authorized an additional $40,000 for completion of this Project; 
and 

WHEREAS, STA desires to provide additional funding for Project activities in 
accordance with the terms of this First Amendment to the original funding Agreement.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Suisun 
City authorizes the City Manager to take all actions necessary to execute the First Amendment 
to the Funding Agreement Between the Solano Transportation Authority and the City of Suisun 
City for Electric Vehicle Charging Station Project. 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of said City Council of the City of 
Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 5th day of May 2020, by the following vote: 
AYES: Councilmembers:    
NOES: Councilmembers:    
ABSENT: Councilmembers:    
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 5th day of May 2020. 
 
   
 Linda Hobson, CMC 
 City Clerk 

Item 4 
Attachment 1

21



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

22



First Amendment between STA and SS re EV 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY AND CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

FOR SUISUN CITY ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATIONS 

This First Amendment (“First Amendment”) is entered into as of _______________________, 2020 

between the SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, a joint powers authority organized under 

Government Code Section 6500 et seq. consisting of the County of Solano and the Cities of Benicia, 

Dixon, Fairfield, Rio Vista, Suisun, Vacaville and Vallejo (“STA”), and the CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

(“Suisun City”), collectively referred to herein as “Parties”. 

1. Recitals.

A. The parties entered into a funding agreement dated September 4, 2018 (the “Agreement”), in 
which STA allocated fund in the amount of $35,000 to Suisun City to install four (4) EV charging 
units (“Project”) at the Suisun City Park & Ride at the Train Depot and two (2) EV charging units 
behind City Hall.

B. The parties now desire to amend the Agreement to increase the funding budget to reflect 
additional services to the scope of work for the Project at the Park & Ride.

C. The parties agree to amend the Agreement as set forth below.

2. Agreement.

A. Project Funding and Identification:

1. The Agreement is amended, in part, to install four (4) additional Electric Vehicle (EV) 
charging units.

2. The Agreement is amended to add a funding budget of Forty Thousand Dollars ($40,000) 
to be paid for services related to the four (4) additional EV charging stations, with a maximum 

funding amount not-to-exceed Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000) for the EV charging stations 

project. 

3. Effectiveness of Contract.

Except as set forth in this First Amendment, all other terms and conditions specified in the

Agreement remain in full force and effect.

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

By: ____________________________ By: _________________________ 

Daryl K. Halls, Executive Director Greg Folsom, City Manager  

APPROVED AS TO FORM APPROVED AS TO FORM 

By: ________________________ By: ________________________ 

STA Legal Counsel  Suisun City Legal Counsel 

Item 4 
Attachment 2

23



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

24



PREPARED BY:   Amanda Dum, Management Analyst I  
REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: Matt Medill, Public Works Director & City Engineer 
 Greg Folsom, City Manager 
  

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 
 
MEETING DATE:  May 5, 2020 
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Adoption of Council Resolution No. 2020-___:  Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute an Agreement on Behalf of the City with LandCare for Landscape 
Maintenance Contract Services for the City’s Landscaping & Lighting Districts and Tax Zones 
(Districts) for a Five (5) Year Contract Term, to Negotiate Contract Change Orders as Needed to 
Meet Available District Budgets, and Authorize up to 20% in Extra Work Annually.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Approval of this item would result in an increase in the FY 2020-21 base 
contract cost by $51,850 compared with FY 2019-20 to be paid by the individual Landscaping & 
Lighting/Maintenance Assessment Districts and Tax Zones (Districts). The FY 2019-20 contract 
amount was $269,880; the proposed FY 2020-21 contract amount is $321,730. Additionally, the 
City Manager would be authorized to approve up to 20% of the contract value in Extra Work 
annually. The Department has reviewed all impacted District budgets to verify the expected 
available funding levels. Districts without adequate funding will have Service Levels reduced 
with a subsequent negotiated Contract Change Order(s) (CCO) to meet available budgets. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance.  
 
BACKGROUND:  The City handles the bidding, awarding, and management of the landscape 
maintenance contract for the Districts. The current landscape contractor, New Image Landscape, 
submitted a Notice of Cancellation to the City, with a contract end date of April 4, 2020.  Through 
negotiations an extension to May 31, 2020 was agreed upon by both parties.  The Notice of 
Cancellation from New Image prompted staff to work towards identifying a new landscape 
maintenance contractor to handle the city-wide contract. As needed the City has historically 
contracted for extra work in conformance with the California Uniform Public Construction Cost 
Accounting Act for miscellaneous supplemental work for the Districts including work orders such 
as irrigation and drainage repairs, tree removals and supplemental planting which is not including in 
the landscape maintenance contract. 
 
STAFF REPORT:  The city-wide landscape maintenance contract was awarded to New Image 
Landscape (New Image) at the June 18, 2019 Council meeting, and on February 5, 2020 the City 
received a Certified Letter from New Image cancelling services as of April 5, 2020. New Image was 
in contract to perform Landscape Services for an annual contract of $269,880. The City negotiated 
with New Image for a contract extension, extending service through May 31, 2020.  During 
negotiations with New Image, the City contacted the City Attorney for direction as to whether it 
was possible to award the landscape contract to the second lowest bidder, LandCare.  The City 
Attorney determined this was an acceptable way to proceed based on Public Contract Code Section 
5106, providing in pertinent part that "If the public entity deems it is for its best interest, it may, 
on refusal or failure of the successful bidder to execute the contract, award it to the second lowest 
bidder. Based on conversations with New Image and feedback from community stakeholders, it 

Item 5

25



was determined that proceeding with a new contract with a new vendor (LandCare) was likely in 
the best interest of the City.” 
 
An event summary timeline is provided below: 

 
Date Action Action Description

6/18/2019 Landscape Contract Awarded Contract Awarded to New Image Landscape

7/1/2019 Contract Starts

2/5/2020 Notice of Cancellation
City Receives Certified Notice of Cancellation Letter from 
New Image With April 4th End Date

4/7/2020 Contract Change Order #2 Executed Negotiated Contract Extension Until May 31, 2020

4/9 & 4/16/2020 Discussions With LandCare
LandCare & Public Works Staff Discussed Assumption City-
Wide Landscape Contract as of June 1, 2020

5/5/2020
Request to Award Contract to 
LandCare Contract Goes to Council

Item Goes Before Council for Direction

6/1/2020 LandCare Contract Begins Based on Council Approval of Contract
 

 
Upon Council’s approval of this contract award, staff will begin negotiating CCO(s) to adjust the 
Service Levels as the individual District budgets allow. District Service Levels may stay static for 
June and July 2020 while the first CCO is being negotiated.  
 
Staff recommends the following Service Levels for each of the Districts under the new contract 
with LandCare and with the first Contract Change Order (CCO #1) in the table below:   
 

District Recommended Service Level 
Blossom Enhanced 

Heritage Park Modified Base* 
Lawler Ranch Enhanced 

Peterson Ranch Modified Base* 
Railroad Avenue Enhanced 

Victorian Harbor A Enhanced 
Victorian Harbor B Enhanced 

Victorian Harbor C-D Enhanced 
Victorian Harbor E Enhanced 
Victorian Harbor F Enhanced 

Amberwood Tax Zone #1 Enhanced 
Peterson Ranch Tax Zone #3 Base 

Walmart Tax Zone #6 Enhanced 
* Modified Base - Service Level scope reductions will be 
negotiated to meet available District funding availability 

Item 5

26



PREPARED BY:   Amanda Dum, Management Analyst I  
REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: Matt Medill, Public Works Director & City Engineer 
 Greg Folsom, City Manager 
  

Many of the Districts can support the contract cost increase associated with the Enhanced Service 
Level.  Staff is recommending the increase in Service Levels for the ten (10) Districts listed above 
to bring the Districts with adequate funding up to a visibly higher level of maintenance. 
 
One (1) District is recommended for a Base Service Level.  Two (2) Districts are recommended for 
a modified Base Service Level. These are Districts with either a smaller Equivalent Dwelling Unit 
(EDU) pool, with large areas of turf and landscaping and annual levies that no longer adequately 
cover the required maintenance, and/or no annual inflator that applies to their annual assessment. 
 
The staff recommendation is for the Council to award the FY20-21 Landscape Maintenance 
Contract Services contract to LandCare in the amount of $321,730, and subsequently negotiate 
Contract Change Orders for reduction in cost for Districts that need to move to a modified base. 
Staff is also requesting the City Manager be authorized to approve up to 20% of the contract value 
in Extra Work annually.  Extra Work may include items such as irrigation repairs, tree removals, 
draining system improvements, planting enhancements and replacements, re-barking, and 
additional mowing, additional leaf removal, additional trash pickup, additional pruning, and 
additional edging. As a few Service Level Schedules may be considered scant, the flexibility of 
Extra Work will allow the City Manager and staff to be responsive to community requests if 
determined feasible after review of individual District’s available funds and budget. The Landscape 
Maintenance Contract provides one avenue of contracting for extra work for the Districts with 
LandCare, and furthermore the City reserves the right to separately contract for maintenance work 
in conformance with the California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act if the City 
elects to perform the extra work with City Staff and/or by separate contract. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolutions No. 2020-
____: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement on Behalf of the City with LandCare 
for Landscape Maintenance Contract Services for the City’s Landscaping & Lighting Districts and 
Tax Zones (Districts) for a Five (5) Year Contract Term, to Negotiate Contract Change Orders as 
Needed to Meet Available District Budgets, and Authorize up to 20% in Extra Work Annually. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
1. Resolution No. 2020-__: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement on Behalf 

of the City with LandCare for Landscape Maintenance Contract Services for the City’s 
Landscaping & Lighting Districts and Tax Zones (Districts) for a Five (5) Year Contract 
Term, to Negotiate Contract Change Orders as Needed to Meet Available District Budgets, 
and Authorize up to 20% in Extra Work Annually. 

2. Citywide Maintenance Assessment District Map. 
3. LandCare Bid Tabulation Sheets Excerpt from LandCare Bid Package Received by the 

City on May 21, 2019. 
 
 

Item 5

27



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

28



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT ON 

BEHALF OF THE CITY WITH LANDCARE FOR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 
CONTRACT SERVICES FOR THE CITY’S LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING 

DISTRICTS AND TAX ZONES (DISTRICTS) FOR A FIVE (5) YEAR CONTRACT 
TERM, TO NEGOTIATE CONTRACT CHANGE ORDERS AS NEEDED TO MEET 

AVAILABLE DISTRICT BUDGETS, AND AUTHORIZE UP TO 20% IN EXTRA 
WORK ANNUALLY 

 
 WHEREAS, the City  conducted a competitive bidding process for landscape 
maintenance contract services for the City’s Landscaping & Lighting / Maintenance Assessment 
Districts and Tax Zones (Districts), and New Image Landscape Company, provided the best and 
lowest bid; and 
 WHEREAS, as part of that contact award, the City determined the following Service 
Levels to best suit the needs of the residents and the fund availability in each District: 1) Modified 
Base Service Level - Heritage Park and Peterson Ranch; 2) Base Service Level –Peterson Ranch 
– Tax Zone #3; and 3) Enhanced Service Level – Blossom, Lawler Ranch, Railroad Avenue, 
Victorian Harbor A, B, C-D, E, F; and 
 WHEREAS, the contract award start date was July 1, 2020 and since that time New Image 
Landscape (New Image) has submitted a Cancellation of Services letter to the City; and 
 WHEREAS, a Contract Change Order (CCO #2) was executed extending the contract 
with New Image through May 31, 2020; and 
 WHEREAS, concurrently staff entered into discussions with LandCare to assume the 
City-wide landscape contract once CCO #2 with New Image expired, and after receiving approval 
from the City Attorney to proceed with these discussions with LandCare who was the second 
lowest bidder from the last bidding cycle the City Attorney’s approval for entering into a contract 
with LandCare is based on Public Contract Code Section 5106, providing in pertinent part that "If 
the public entity deems it is for its best interest, it may, on refusal or failure of the successful bidder 
to execute the contract, award it to the second lowest bidder"; and 
 WHEREAS, LandCare has agreed to assume the City-wide landscape contract as of June 
1, 2020 with the Service Levels remaining the same as above with the understanding that at least 
one CCO will be negotiated with LandCare to reduce the Service Level for Heritage Park LLD, 
Peterson Ranch LLD, and Peterson Ranch TZ#3 to meet their available budgets; and  
 WHEREAS, the initial contract value will be $321,729.96 annually.  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 
City authorizes the City Manager to enter into a Public Works Agreement on behalf of the City 
with LandCare for landscape maintenance contract services for the City’s Landscaping & Lighting 
Districts and Tax Zones (Districts) for a five-year contract term, to negotiate Contract Change 
Orders as needed to to meet available District budgets, and to authorize up to 20% in Extra Work 
annually, and to take any and all necessary and appropriate actions to implement this contract.   
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Suisun 
City duly held on Tuesday, the 5th of May, 2020, by the following vote: 

Item 5 
Attachment 1

29



 

Resolution No. 2020-__ 
Adopted May 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

AYES: Council Members:    
NOES: Council Members:    
ABSENT: Council Members:    
ABSTAIN: Council Members:    
  
 WITNESS my hand and the seal of the City of Suisun City this 5th of May, 2020. 
 
 

  
 Donna Pock, CMC,  
 Deputy City Clerk 

Item 5 
Attachment 1

30



LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
IN

G
 A

N
D

 L
IG

H
T

IN
G

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
, 

   
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
, 

A
N

D
 T

A
X

 Z
O

N
E

S
 

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

P
D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T 

O
F 

P
U

B
LI

C
 W

O
R

K
S

 
R

E
V

IS
E

D
 M

A
R

C
H

 2
01

9 
S

U
IS

U
N

 C
IT

Y
, S

O
LA

N
O

 C
O

U
N

TY
, C

A
LI

FO
R

N
IA

, 9
45

85

LE
G

E
N

D

C
FD

 - 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 

LL
D

 - 
LA

N
D

S
C

A
P

IN
G

 A
N

D
 L

IG
H

TI
N

G
 D

IS
TR

IC
T 

TZ
 - 

TA
X

 Z
O

N
E

 

P
A

D
 - 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T 

D
IS

TR
IC

T

T
A

X
 Z

O
N

E
 6

 
W

A
LM

A
R

T
 

C
.F

.D
. N

O
. 2

D
R
A
FT

Item 5 
Attachment 2

31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

32



Item 5 
Attachment 3

33



Item 5 
Attachment 3

34



______________________________________________________________________________ 
PREPARED BY: Nick Lozano, Associate Engineer 
REVIEWED BY: Matthew Medill, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
APPROVED BY:  Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 
 
MEETING DATE:  May 5, 2020 

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___:  Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute a Contract Amendment on the City’s Behalf with Interwest Consulting 
Group to Combine the Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) for the Suisun Solano Water 
Authority’s Waterline Replacement Project and the City of Suisun City’s Asphalt Concrete 
Overlay Project on Civic Center Boulevard and Authorize Contract Change Orders up to an 
Additional $5,000. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  There would be no impact to the General Fund.  The cost for retaining the 
firm of Interwest Consulting Group to perform the additional professional services to coordinate 
and merge the plans, specifications and estimate construction bid package including optional 
tasks, is $5,615, and the Transportation Capital Projects Fund (F115) has adequate funding to 
cover the cost for this professional service work.  
 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance, Ensure Public Safety, Enhance the 
Environment. 
 

BACKGROUND:  The City of Suisun City is responsible for the maintenance of nearly 153 
lane miles of roadway with over 13 million square feet of pavement. The goal of the Suisun City 
Pavement Management Program is to maintain the city’s pavement in the best condition possible 
given the available funding. Each year, preventive maintenance treatments are performed on 
various city streets. These treatment projects are intended to extend the life of the pavement and 
avoid costlier repair or replacement of streets.  Road reconstruction is only considered when 
preventive maintenance treatments are no longer cost-effective or feasible. The cost of 
reconstructing a street can exceed ten times the cost of performing a preventative maintenance 
treatment. 
 
On April 2, 2019 the City Council approved Resolution 2019-32 approving the list of roadway 
projects for Fiscal Year 2019-20 to comply with the requirements of SB1 and staff submitted the 
adopted Resolution to the California Transportation Commission prior to May 1, 2019 to secure 
funding. The list of projects includes a resurfacing project and curb ramp upgrades to comply 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) for Civic Center Boulevard. 
 

STAFF REPORT: In May 2019, the City contracted with the firm of Interwest Consulting 
Group to provide the necessary engineering services to prepare the plans, specifications and 
estimate (PS&E) for the Civic Center Boulevard Asphalt Concrete (AC) Overlay Project (State 
Bill 1/Measure S Project) on Civic Center Boulevard from Lotz Way to Almond Street.  The 

Item 6

35



contract was in the amount of $24,970.  In early 2020, the Suisun Solano Water Authority 
(SSWA) decided to replace its outdated waterline on Civic Center Boulevard in order to provide 
reliable water service to the Holiday Inn Express as well as to the future development on the 
parcel directly south of the hotel.  The waterline replacement will be within the same segment of 
Civic Center Boulevard as the City’s pavement resurfacing project.  SSWA has contracted with 
Kjeldsen, Sinnock & Neudeck, Inc. (KSN) to prepare the PS&E for this waterline replacement 
project.   
 
In order to maximize the collective benefits of combining the two projects, SSWA and City staff 
decided the PS&E for the waterline replacement project is to be incorporated in the PS&E 
documents for the pavement resurfacing project, in essence combining the two projects during 
the design and construction phases.  The benefits of combining the two projects include a 
streamlined process for the procurement of construction services, improved coordination during 
the construction phase, elimination of excavating on Civic Center Boulevard after it has been 
resurfaced, and the probability of receiving lowers bids by increasing productivity on a larger 
project.   
 
On April 20, 2020, Interwest Consulting Group provided the Department a proposal to review 
the waterline replacement PS&E, incorporate it into its pavement resurfacing PS&E, and make 
any minor revisions to the combined construction bid package.  The Public Works Director 
reviewed the proposal, including the full scope of work, and recommends approving a contract 
amendment with Interwest Consulting Group to combine the construction bid documents.  
Although the documents will be combined into one construction contract, the professional 
services and construction contract costs will be tracked separately for funding and budgetary 
purposes. 
 
Staff recommends the City Council approve the contract amendment with Interwest Consulting 
Group in the amount of $5,615 for the Civic Center Boulevard Waterline Replacement and 
Asphalt Concrete Overlay Project, resulting in a total design contract amount of $30,185, which 
is above the City Manager’s approval authority.    
 
Potential additional contract change orders may be required to accommodate unforeseen 
document modifications, bid support and construction support.  A 10% contingency may not 
provide sufficient funding for a potential contract change order for this combined waterline and 
paving project.  Instead of a 10% contingency, staff is recommending a $5,000 contingency to 
provide some flexibility to ensure any supplementary engineering work is expedited without 
potential delay to seek additional funding with a subsequent staff report. 
 
This combined construction project is tentatively scheduled for advertisement in June 2020 and 
for construction in late Summer 2020. 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___:  Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute a Contract Amendment on the City’s Behalf with Interwest Consulting 
Group to Combine the Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) for the Suisun Solano Water 
Authority’s Waterline Replacement Project and the City of Suisun City’s Asphalt Concrete 
Overlay Project on Civic Center Boulevard and Authorize Contract Change Orders up to an 
Additional $5,000. 
 

Item 6

36



 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to 

Execute a Contract Amendment on the City’s Behalf with Interwest Consulting Group to 
Combine the Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) for the Suisun Solano Water 
Authority’s Waterline Replacement Project and the City of Suisun City’s Asphalt 
Concrete Overlay Project on Civic Center Boulevard and Authorize Contract Change 
Orders up to an Additional $5,000. 

2. Location Map. 
3. Interwest - Civic Center Boulevard Improvement Project – Lotz Way to Almond Street 

Amendment 1 Proposal and Fee Schedule dated April 24, 2020 

Item 6

37



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

38



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT ON THE CITY’S BEHALF WITH INTERWEST CONSULTING 

GROUP TO COMBINE THE PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS ESTIMATES (PS&E) FOR 
THE SUISUN SOLANO WATER AUTHORITY’S WATERLINE REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT AND THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY’S ASPHALT CONCRETE OVERLAY 
PROJECT ON CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD AND AUTHORIZE CONTRACT 

CHANGE ORDERS UP TO $5,000 
 

  WHEREAS, the City is responsible for the maintenance of nearly 153 lane miles of 
roadway with over 13 million square feet of pavement; and  
 WHEREAS, on April 2, 2019 the City Council approved Resolution 2019-32 
approving the list of roadway projects for Fiscal Year 2019-20; and 
 WHEREAS, the list of projects includes a resurfacing project and curb ramp upgrades 
to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) for Civic Center Boulevard from 
Lotz Way to Almond Street; and 
 WHEREAS, the City executed a professional services agreement with Interwest 
Consulting Group in the amount of $24,970 to prepare plans, specifications and estimates 
(PS&E) for the Civic Center Boulevard Asphalt Concrete Overlay Project (State Bill 1/Measure 
S Project) in May 2019; and 
 WHEREAS, in early 2020, the Suisun Solano Water Authority (SSWA) contracted 
with Kjeldsen, Sinnock & Neudeck, Inc. (KSN) to prepare the PS&E for replacing its outdated 
waterline on Civic Center Boulevard in order to provide reliable water service to the Holiday 
Inn Express as well as to the future development on the parcel directly south of the hotel.; and  
 WHEREAS, in order to maximize the collective benefits of combining the two projects, 
SSWA and City staff decided the PS&E for the waterline replacement project is to be 
incorporated in the PS&E documents for the pavement resurfacing project, in essence 
combining the two projects for the design and construction phases; and  
 WHEREAS, the Suisun City Public Works Department requested and received a 
proposal from Interwest Consulting Group to review the waterline replacement PS&E, 
incorporate it into its pavement resurfacing PS&E, and make any minor revisions to the 
combined construction bid package; and 
 WHEREAS, the Public Works Director reviewed the proposal, including the full scope 
of work, and recommends approving a contract amendment in the amount of $5,615.00 with 
Interwest Consulting Group to combine the construction bid documents. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 
City authorizes the City Manager to execute a contract amendment with Interwest Consulting 
Group in the amount of $5,615.00 for a resulting total design contract amount of $30,185.00 to 
combine and complete the construction bid package for the Civic Center Boulevard Waterline 
Replacement and Asphalt Concrete Overlay Project, and to take any and all necessary and 
appropriate actions to implement this contract, including contract change orders up to $5,000.  

Item 6 
Attachment 1

39



 

Resolution No. 2020- 
Adopted May 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 5th of May 2020, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Councilmembers:    
NOES: Councilmembers:    
ABSENT: Councilmembers:    
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 5th day of May 2020. 
 
   
 Linda Hobson, CMC 
 City Clerk 
 

Item 6 
Attachment 1

40



LOCATION MAP 

Civic Center Boulevard Waterline Replacement and Asphalt Concrete Overlay Project 

PROJECT LOCATION 

Item 6 
Attachment 2

41



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

42



9300 W. Stockton Blvd. | Suite 105 

Elk Grove, CA 95758 

916.683.3340 

April 24, 2020 

Matthew Medill, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
City of Suisun City 
Public Works Department 
701 Civic Center Boulevard 
Suisun City, CA 94585 

Re: Civic Center Boulevard Improvement Project – Lotz Way to Almond Street 

Dear Mr. Medill, 

Interwest Consulting Group requests an amendment to the contract for the subject project due to additional 
work not under the original scope of work.  The additional scope of work is for the following: 

 Coordination and incorporation of SID improvements prepared by SID’s consultant engineer into the
bid documents

 Coordination and incorporation of FSSD manhole renovation work into the bid documents
 Adjustment of limits of work for budget purposes.

Thank you for your consideration of this amendment request. Please contact Rick Navarro at 
rnavarro@interwestgrp.com or 530-304-7010 if you have any questions or would like additional 
information. 

Sincerely, 

Theron Roschen, PE 
Municipal Services Manager 
Interwest Consulting Group, Inc. 

Enclosure:  Amendment Cost Proposal 

Item 6 
Attachment 3

43



Apr-20

Eng Tech

150$ 135$ 95$  

A. Project Management

Project Management, Coordination 1 4 2 880.00$  

Subtotal 880.00$

B. Plans, Specifications and Estimates (90%)

FSSD Manhole Replacement (PS&E) 3 3 690.00$  

SID Pipe Work (PS&E) 4 4 920.00$  

Subtotal 920.00$  

C. Final Plans, Specifications and Estimates (100%)

FSSD Manhole Replacement (PS&E) 4 1 635.00$  

SID Pipe Work (PS&E) 6 4 1,190.00$               

Combined Title Sheet 1 3 420.00$  

Adjust Limits of Work (PS&E) 6 8 1,570.00$               

Subtotal 3,815.00$              

Labor Cost 5,615.00$             

TOTAL NOT TO EXCEED FEE 5,615.00$             

ORIGINAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 24,570.00$            

REVISED TOTAL NOT TO EXCEED FEE 30,185.00$           

Civic Center Boulevard Improvement Project – Lotz Way to Almond Street

Amendment 1

City of Suisun City

DESCRIPTION

STAFF

TOTAL
Supv Engineer

Senior  

Engineer

Item 6 
Attachment 3

44



______________________________________________________________________________ 
PREPARED BY: Matthew Medill, Public Works Director 
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  May 5, 2020 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution No. 2020___: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Contract Services Agreement with Superior Building Services and Ratifying the Purchase Order 
Contract for Janitorial Service for City Facilities 

FISCAL IMPACT: In FY 2019-20, funds are available and have been appropriated within the 
General Fund to cover the costs of these services.  Service locations include: the Joseph A. Nelson 
Community Center (Community Center), the Police Department, and City Hall.  

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance. Ensure Public Safety. 

BACKGROUND:  In 2018, it was observed by City that the Building Maintenance Worker was 
being stretched too thin in being responsible for janitorial services to all City buildings in addition 
to performing all building repair needs that did not need to be contracted out. In response to this 
observation, staff reevaluated the janitorial needs of the City and a Purchase Order was issued to 
Superior Building Services for initial janitorial services to the Community Center and Police 
Department, City Hall was later added.   

STAFF REPORT:  On September 12, 2018, the City posted a Request for Proposals for 
janitorial services which included a mandatory walk-through meeting. The City received three 
(3) proposals in response to this RFP request.  Proposal results are provided below:

Company Cost Per Month 
Superior Building Services (Fairfield) $4,380.00 
Karla’s Janitorial (San Francisco) $5,184.40 
America-Maintenance (Fairfield ) $8,200.00 

Superior Building Services was the lowest responsible and responsive bidder and previous 
administrative staff entered into contract via Purchase Order #11351 on October 30, 2018 for the 
janitorial services for these facilities.  

The established service schedule was as follows: 
• Community Center – four (4) days per week
• Police Department – three (3) days per week
• City Hall – four (4) days per week

Due to discussions with Superior Building Services for some additional services, it came to the 
City Manager’s attention that the services had been approved administratively rather than by 

Item 7 

45



Council action. Staff recommends that Purchase Order #11351 be replaced with a contract 
services agreement. Staff recommends that the City Manager be authorized to execute a one-year 
contract services agreement for $52,560 with Superior Building Services to perform janitorial 
services, and to authorize the City Manager to execute Contract Change Orders of up to 20% of 
the contract value annually for any additional janitorial services if deemed necessary by the City 
Manager. Staff further recommends that the City Manager be authorized to extend this contract 
services agreement for up to three (3) one-year extensions with an annual contract value 
adjustment increase not to exceed an annual 3% cost of living increase at the discretion of the 
City Manager. 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Resolution No. 2020___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Contract Services Agreement with Superior Building Services and Ratifying the Purchase Order 
Contract for Janitorial Service for City Facilities 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution No. 2020___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract Services 

Agreement with Superior Building Services and Ratifying the Purchase Order Contract 
for Janitorial Service for City Facilities.  

2. Request for Proposal – 2018 Janitorial Contract. 
3. Purchase Order Contract #11351 issued to Superior Building Services. 

 
 

Item 7 

46



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH SUPERIOR BUILDING SERVICES AND RATIFYING THE 

PURCHASE ORDER CONTRACT FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR CITY 
FACILITIES 

WHEREAS, On September 12, 2018, the City posted a Request for Proposals for 
janitorial services; and 

WHEREAS, Superior Building Services was the lowest responsible and responsive 
bidder and the Administrative Services Director entered into contract via Purchase Order 3310-9-
11351 on October 30, 2018 for the janitorial services for these facilities; and  

WHEREAS, Staff has concluded that the monthly contract value of $4,380 when 
extrapolated into an annual contract value has a sum value of $52,560 exceeding the City 
Manager’s purchasing authority; and 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends that the City Council ratify the Purchase Order #11351 
contract at this time; and 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends that the Purchase Order #11351 be replaced with a 
contract services agreement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 
City does hereby 

• Authorize the City Manager to execute a one-year contract services agreement with
Superior Building Services for $52,560 to perform janitorial services and authorize the
City Manager to annually execute Contract Change Orders for up to 20% of the contract
value for any additional janitorial services if deemed necessary by the City Manager.

• Authorize the City Manager to extend this contract services agreement for up to three (3)
one-year extensions with an annual contract value adjustment increase not to exceed an
annual 3% cost of living increase.

• Authorize the City Manager to amend the specific facilities where work is being
performed as needed; and

• Ratify Purchase Order  #11351 issued to Superior Building Services for janitorial work
for Joseph A. Nelson Community Center, Police Department, and City Hall.
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of

Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 5th day of May 2020, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: 
NOES: Councilmembers: 
ABSENT: Councilmembers: 
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 5th day of May 2020. 

Linda Hobson, CMC 
City Clerk 

Item 7 
Attachment 1

47



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

48



DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707) 
ADMINISTRATION 421-7300  PLANNING 421-7200  BUILDING 421-7310  FINANCE 431-7320 

FIRE 425-9133  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 421-7200  POLICE 421-7373  PUBLIC WORKS 421-7340 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 421-7309  FAX 421-7366 

F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

Pedro “Pete” Sanchez, Mayor  
Lori Wilson, Mayor ProTem  
Jane Day  
Mike Hudson 
Michael Segala 

CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

701 Civic Center Blvd. 
Suisun City, California 94585 

Incorporated October 9, 1868 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 

September 12, 2018 

Request for Proposal (RFP) 
Janitorial Services for City Facilities: 

City Hall, Police Dept., and Joseph A. Nelson Community Center 

General:  Suisun City seeks proposals for janitorial services for the City Hall, Police Department, and 
Joseph A. Nelson Community Center. 

Project Description: These City facilities need weekly janitorial services that include, but are not 
limited to, general cleaning, periodic cleaning, specific area cleaning, general office cleaning, cleaning 
the conference rooms, vacuuming around work stations, breakroom cleaning, corridors & hallways, all 
restrooms, trash, hard floors, carpeted floor areas, and exterior maintenance. 

Required work:  In general, the work consists of a contractor supplying all labor and methods of 
process to complete this work. The City will provide paper products, cleaning supplies, and 
equipment. 

Specifications, bid schedule and location map follow. 

Contractor Requirements: 

It is the intent to award the contract for all locations. The City reserves the right to change or modify 
the scope of the work. For City budgeting purposes, please provide the cost of each bid items.  

Contractors will need to provide a job reference list. 

After the contract has been awarded, the Contractor will need to provide proof of current license(s), 
obtain a Suisun City Business License and submit insurance certificates naming Suisun City as 
additionally insured. The Contractor and/or the Contractor’s employees will need to be fingerprinted 
before performing work inside the Police Department; employees who decline or fail this basic 
background investigation will not be permitted inside the Police Department secure areas. The intent 
is to execute a Contract Services Agreement for a three-year term with two additional optional 
contract renewals for two years each.  

Item7 
Attachment 2

49



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 2 

F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

RFP responses are due by 2 p.m. Tuesday, October 2, 2018 at: 

Suisun City Hall 
Building / Public Works Dept. 
701 Civic Center Boulevard 
Suisun City, CA 94585. 

If you would like to schedule a walk-through of the facilities, please contact Gemma Geluz at 
ggeluz@suisun.com to schedule a date and time before September 26, 2018. 

The last day to ask questions is on Wednesday, September 26th at 2 pm. Please direct all questions in 
writing to:  

Jeff Downey, Recreational Supervisor 
Email: jdowney@suisun.com  

Kris Lofthus, Director 
Email: klofthus@suisun.com  

Recreation, Parks and Marina Department  
City of Suisun City 
611 Village Drive  
Suisun City, CA 94585 
(707) 421-7200

Item7 
Attachment 2

50



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 3 
 

 
F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

SPECIFICATIONS 
 

City Hall Lobby, Offices, and Council Chambers 
701 Civic Center Blvd. (Right building) 
 
Service provided: 4 days a week (Monday – Thursday) 
 
General Cleaning and Lobby Area 

 Clean entrance/exit glass doors 4 days per week 
 Spot clean interior glass and windows  1 day per week 
 Clean/wipe all horizontal and vertical surfaces  1 day per week 
 Empty all trash  4 days per week  
 Sweep and mop all hard surface floors  4 days per week 
 Vacuum all floor mats and carpeted area 4 days per week 
 Water plants  1 day per week 
 Clean and polish all water fountains  As needed  

 
Periodic Cleaning  

 Dust window sills, blinds, fire sensors and cobwebs as needed  1 day per week 
 Detail dust – high and low areas as needed  1 day per week 
 Clean/dust air intake and ceiling vents as needed  As needed  
 Detail vacuum cloth furniture as needed  As needed  
 Spot clean carpet stains or spills as needed  As needed 

 
General Offices/Cubicle Workstations 

 Spot clean all walls, light switches and doors as needed  1 day per week 
 Clean/dust all horizontal and vertical surfaces, i.e., counters,  1 day per week 

bookshelves, desk ledges (not including desktops) as needed   
 Empty trash, replace liner each time  4 days per week 
 Detail vacuum all carpet  2 days per week 
 All hard floors swept, dust mopped and mopped 2 days per week 

 
Meeting/Conference Rooms  

 Spot clean all walls, light switches and doors  1 day per week 
 Clean/dust all horizontal and vertical surfaces  1 day per week 
 Empty trash, replace liner each time  4 days per week 
 Detail vacuum all carpet  4 days per week 
 Arrange furniture  4 days per week 

 
  

Item7 
Attachment 2

51



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 4 

F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

Breakroom and Hallway sink area 
 Spot clean all wall, light switched and doors 1 day per week 
 Restock paper and soap products 4 days per week 
 Clean/wipe exterior of cabinets 1 day per week 
 Clean/wipe sink and counter area 4 days per week 
 Clean exterior of refrigerator 1 day per week 
 Clean interior/exterior of microwaves 1 day per week 
 Clean/wipe all tables and chairs 4 days per week 
 Empty trash, replace liner each time 4 days per week 
 Sweep and mop floors 4 days per week 

Corridors and Hallways  
 Spot clean wall, doors and light switches 1 day per week 
 Detail vacuum all carpet 2 days per week 

All Restrooms 
 Restock paper and soap products 4 days per week 
 Clean sink and countertops 4 days per week 
 Clean and polish restrooms dispensers and fixtures 4 days per week 
 Clean and polish restroom metal and mirrors 4 days per week 
 Clean and disinfect sanitary napkins dispensers 4 days per week 
 Clean and disinfect all toilets and urinals 4 days per week 
 Spot clean tile walls and toilet partitions 4 days per week 
 Sweep and mop floors 4 days per week 

Trash and Recycling  
 All trash is to be emptied, use new liners each time 4 days per week 
 Clean/wipe all trashcan lids 4 days per week 
 Take trash to dumpster 4 days per week 
 All recycling to be emptied and taken to Recycling dumpster 4 days per week 

Exterior Maintenance 
 Check and pickup entrance area for trash 4 days per week 

Council Chambers  
 Clean/wipe all horizontal and vertical surfaces 1 day per week 
 Vacuum all carpet 1 day per week 
 Sweep and mop all hard surface floors 1 day per week 

Item7 
Attachment 2

52



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 5 

F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

Police Department  
701 Civic Center Blvd. (Left building) 

Service Provided: 3 days per week 

General Cleaning and Lobby Area 
 Clean entrance/exit glass doors 3 days per week 
 Spot clean interior glass and windows 1 day per week 
 Clean/wipe all horizontal and vertical surfaces 1 day per week 
 Empty all trash 3 days per week  
 Sweep and mop all hard surface floors 3 days per week 
 Vacuum all floor mats and carpeted area 3 days per week 

Periodic Cleaning  
 Dust window sills, blinds, fire sensors and cobwebs as needed 1 day per week 
 Detail dust – high and low areas as needed 1 day per week 
 Clean/dust air intake and ceiling vents as needed As needed  
 Detail vacuum cloth furniture as needed As needed  
 Spot clean carpet stains or spills as needed As needed 

Dispatch Area 
 Spot clean all wall, light switches and doors 1 day per week 
 Clean/wipe all horizontal and vertical surfaces 1 day per week 
 Empty trash, replace liner each time 3 days per week 
 Sweep hard surface floors 3 days per week 
 Damp mop hard surface floors 3 days per week 
 Detail vacuum under and around all furniture 3 days per week 
 Arrange furniture 3 days per week 

Waiting Area 
 Spot clean all wall, light switches and doors 1 day per week 
 Clean/wipe all horizontal and vertical surfaces 1 day per week 
 Empty trash, replace liner each time 3 days per week 
 Detail vacuum all carpet 3 days per week 
 Arrange furniture 3 days per week 

General Offices 
 Spot clean all walls, light switches and doors as needed 1 day per week 
 Clean/dust all horizontal and vertical surfaces, i.e., desks, 1 day per week 

shelves, etc. as needed
 Empty trash, replace liner each time 3 days per week 
 Detail vacuum all carpet 3 days per week 
 Arrange furniture 3 days per week 

Item7 
Attachment 2

53



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 6 
 

 
F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

Meeting/Conference Room  
 Spot clean all walls, light switches and doors  1 day per week 
 Clean/dust all horizontal and vertical surfaces, i.e., desks,  1 day per week 

shelves, etc., as needed 
 Empty trash, replace liner each time  3 days per week 
 Detail vacuum all carpet  3 days per week 
 Arrange furniture  3 days per week 

 
Cubicle Work Stations  

 Clean/dust workstations horizontal and vertical surfaces 1 day per week 
 Empty trash, replace liner each time 3 days per week 
 Detail vacuum under and around work station  3 days per weeks 
 Arrange furniture 3 days per week 

 
Breakroom 

 Spot clean all wall, light switched and doors 1 day per week 
 Restock paper and soap products  3 days per week 
 Clean/wipe exterior of cabinets  1 day per week 
 Clean/wipe sink and counter area  3 days per week 
 Clean exterior of refrigerator 3 days per week 
 Clean interior/exterior of microwaves  3 days per week 
 Clean/wipe all tables and chairs  3 days per week 
 Empty trash, replace liner each time  3 days per week 
 Sweep and mop floors 3 days per week 

 
Corridors and Hallways  

 Spot clean wall, doors and light switches  1 day per week 
 All hard floors swept, dust mopped and mopped 3 days per week 
 Detail vacuum all carpet  3 days per week 

 
All Restrooms 

 Restock paper and soap products  3 days per week 
 Clean sink and countertops  3 days per week 
 Clean and polish restrooms dispensers and fixtures  3 days per week 
 Clean and polish restroom metal and mirrors  3 days per week 
 Clean and disinfect sanitary napkins dispensers  3 days per week 
 Clean and disinfect all toilets and urinals  3 days per week 
 Spot clean tile walls and toilet partitions   3 days per week 
 Sweep and mop floors  3 days per week 

 
Trash  

 All trash is to be emptied, use new liners each time  3 days per week 
 Clean/wipe all trashcan lids  3 days per week 
 Take trash to dumpster 3 days per week 

 

Item7 
Attachment 2

54



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 7 
 

 
F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

Exterior Maintenance  
 Check and pickup entrance area for trash 3 days per week 

 
  

Item7 
Attachment 2

55



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 8 

F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

Joseph A. Nelson Community Center  
611 Village Dr.  

Service Provided: 4 days a week 

General Cleaning 
 Clean and polish all water fountains As needed  
 Clean / Wipe all horizontal and vertical surfaces 4 days per week 
 Empty all trash 4 days per week 
 Sweep and mop all hard surface floors 4 days per week 
 Vacuum all carpeted areas 4 days per week 

Periodic Cleaning 
 Dust window sills, blinds, fire sensors and cobwebs as needed As needed 
 Detail dust - high and low areas as needed As needed 
 Clean /Dust air intakes and ceiling vents as needed As needed 
 Spot clean carpet stains or spills as needed As needed 

Entrance Lobby 
 Spot clean all walls, light switches and doors 4 days per week 
 Clean/Dust all horizontal and vertical surfaces 4 days per week 
 Clean entrance/exit glass doors As needed 
 Spot clean inside windows As needed 
 Spot clean interior glass 4 days per week 
 Clean and Polish all water fountains As needed 
 Empty trash, replace liner each time 4 days per week 
 Sweep and mop all hard surface floors 4 days per week 
 Detail vacuum all carpet 4 days per week 
 Arrange furniture 4 days per week 

Open Gathering Area 
 Spot clean all walls, light switches and doors as needed 4 days per week 
 Clean/Dust all horizontal and vertical surfaces, i.e. desks, shelves, etc., 4 days per week

as needed
 Clean all tables and chairs 4 days per week 
 Empty trash, replace liner each time 4 days per week 
 Sweep and mop all hard surface floors 4 days per week 
 Detail vacuum all carpet 4 days per week 
 Arrange tables, chairs and furniture 4 days per week 

Item7 
Attachment 2

56



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 9 

F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

Resource all-purpose rooms 
 Spot clean all walls, light switches and doors as needed 4 days per week 
 Clean/Dust all horizontal and vertical surfaces, i.e. desks, shelves, etc.,  4 days per week

as needed
 Empty trash, replace liner each time 4 days per week 
 Sweep and mop floors 4 days per week 
 Detail vacuum all carpet 4 days per week 
 Arrange Furniture 4 days per week 

Kitchen Serving Area 
 Clean / Wipe all horizontal and vertical surfaces On request 
 Clean / Wipe sink area On request 
 Restock paper and soap products As needed 
 Clean exterior of refrigerator and stove On request 
 Clean / Wipe exterior of cabinets On request 
 Empty all trash 4 days per week 
 Sweep and mop floors On request 

Corridors and Hallways 
 Spot clean walls, doors and light switches 4 days per week 
 All hard floors swept, dust-mopped and mopped 4 days per week 
 Detail vacuum all carpet 4 days per week 

All Restrooms 
 Restock paper and soap products 4 days per week 
 Clean sinks and countertops 4 days per week 
 Clean and polish restroom dispensers and fixtures 4 days per week 
 Clean and polish restroom metal and mirrors As needed 
 Clean and disinfect sanitary napkin dispensers 4 days per week 
 Clean and disinfect all toilets and urinals 4 days per week 
 Spot clean tile walls and toilet partitions 4 days per week 
 Sweep and mop floors 4 days per week 

Trash 
 All trash is to be emptied, use new liners each time 4 days per week 
 Clean/Wipe all trash can lids 4 days per week 
 Take trash to dumpster 4 days per week 

Hard Floors 
 All hard floors swept, vacuumed or dust mopped 4 days per week 
 All hard floors wet mopped lightly 4 days per week 

Item7 
Attachment 2

57



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 10 
 

 
F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

Carpeted Floor Areas 
 Vacuum all entrance mats and rugs 4 days per week 
 Vacuum all carpeted areas 4 days per week 
 Detail vacuum under and around all furniture 4 days per week 

 
Exterior Maintenance 

 Check and pickup entrance area for trash As needed 
 
End of Night 

 Turn off lights and lock doors per instructions 4 days per week 
 Set alarm per instructions 4 days per week 

 
 
  

Item7 
Attachment 2

58



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 11 
 

 
F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

 
LOCATION MAP 

 
Suisun City Hall and Police Department  

701 Civic Center Boulevard 
 
 

  

Suisun City Hall 

Police Dept. 

Item7 
Attachment 2

59



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 12 
 

 
F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

LOCATION MAP 
 

Joseph A. Nelson Community Center  
611 Village Drive 

 
 
 
  

Joseph A. Nelson 
Community Center  

Item7 
Attachment 2

60



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 13 

F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

BID SCHEDULE 

City Hall Janitorial Services 
Item No. Description Qty Unit  Unit Price 

1 City Hall Services, Cost per month 1 LS  

2 Police Department Services, Cost per month 1 LS 

3 Joseph A. Nelson Community Center, Cost 
per month 

1 LS 

BASE BID TOTAL 

Written bid amount: 

Project will be awarded on the total base bid. 

Item7 
Attachment 2

61



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 14 
 

 
F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

Sample of Contract Services Agreement  
  

Item7 
Attachment 2

62



September 13, 2018 
2018 Janitorial Contract for City Facilities 

Page 15 
 

 
F:\BUILDING\Docs\0 Operation and Administration\3.0 Bids\2018 Janitor Contract\RFP - 2018 Janitorial Contract - City Facilities 180823 (SC 
rev).docx 

General Liability Form 

Item7 
Attachment 2

63



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

64



Item 7 
Attachment 3

65



Item 7 
Attachment 3

66



Item 7 
Attachment 3

67



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

68



______________________________________________________________________________ 
PREPARED BY: Joann Martinez, Assistant Planner 
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 
MEETING DATE:  May 5, 2020 
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___: Authorizing Application 
For, And Receipt Of, Local Government Planning Support Grant Program Funds. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The fiscal impact associated with this item is a grant amount of up to $150,000. 
LEAP Planning Grants Program does not require a local financial commitment or “match” from 
local jurisdictions requesting grant funds. The funding provides the opportunity for Suisun City to 
address certain best practice policies related to state-mandated housing requirements in a manner 
that minimizes costs to the general fund and demands on staff resources. City staff time required for 
administering the grant applications and managing the projects funded by the grant would be 
absorbed as part of the staff workload and would have no additional impact on the City’s General 
Fund. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Provide Good Governance, and Ensure Fiscal Solvency. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The Local Early Action Planning Grants Program (LEAP Program) is part of 
the broader program formerly known as the Local Government Planning Support Grants Program, 
which was established as part of the 2019-20 Budget Act. The 2019-20 Budget Act provides a 
spectrum of support, incentives, resources and accountability to meet California’s housing goals. 
LEAP provides one-time grant funding to cities and counties to update their planning documents 
and implement process improvements that will facilitate the acceleration of housing production 
and help local governments prepare for their 6th cycle Regional Housing Needs Assessment 
(RHNA) much like the SB2 Planning Grants. Some specific elements include: 

The Public Grants Program (PGP) is a one-time component of LEAP that, among other provisions, 
provides financial and technical assistance to local governments to update planning documents to 
provide: 

 Planning Support (local and regional planning grants); 
 Incentives (Pro-housing preference and infill incentive grants); 
 Funding Resources • Accountability (penalties for noncompliant housing plans); 
 Reform (collaborative processes to reform regional housing needs). 

On January 27, 2020 the Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) released the 
Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for approximately $119 million statewide under the 2019-
20 Budget Act. A Small Locality, defined as ≤ 59,999 people, is eligible for up to $150,000 in 
funding. 

Staff brought forward a discussion and direction item on September 3, 2019 and consent item to the 
October 22, 2019 City Council meeting with information regarding SB2 and upcoming funding 
coming from the State. LEAP is an extension of SB2. 
 

Item 8 

69



STAFF REPORT:  Per the California Department of Housing and Community Development 
(HCD) website, “The program will provide grants through a noncompetitive, over-the-counter 
process to eligible local governments (cities and counties) who meet the following requirements: 
 

Eligible activities must: 

 Accelerate housing production 
 Facilitate compliance to implement the sixth-cycle Regional Housing Needs Assessment. 

Eligible activities include: 

 Revamping local planning processes to speed up housing production; 
 Objective Preparing and adopting Housing Elements of the General Plan that include an 

implementation component to facilitate compliance with the sixth cycle RHNA. 
 
The call for applications for grant funding is open for a little over six months, through July 1, 2019. 
Since the funding became available, staff has been communicating with HCD’s technical assistance 
team to assure the City submits a complete application once that time comes as the funding is not 
competitive, but there is an expectation that many communities will submit closer to the deadline. 
HCD anticipates that the time frame for awarding the grant is approximately two to three months 
from the date of application filing. 
 
Staff informally solicited some responses from Permitting Software and Planning firms to get a better 
understanding what could be done with the funds and what they thought were the best use of the 
available funds. As a result of the informal outreach, below is a summary of what the scope of work 
could look like: 
 

 The City will be replacing its outdated DOS-based permitting system with a new GIScentric 
planning and permitting database and will be migrating over to an electronic plan review 
system. These new technologies will accelerate the housing development permitting process 
by streamlining the application submittal processes and reducing plan review turnaround 
times. The City is projecting that with the new systems and customer interface, the permitting 
processing time will be cut by an average of 40 percent. These efficiencies and improved 
customer experience will be instrumental in accelerating housing development in the City. 

 Purchasing hardware for the Permitting Software. 
 Update the Housing Element and Zoning Code to ensure that inclusion of an implementation 

component to facilitate compliance with the sixth cycle RHNA. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   It is recommended that the City Council adopt: 

1. Resolution No. 2020-___: Authorizing Application For, And Receipt Of, Local 
Government Planning Support Grant Program Funds. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Council Resolution No. 2020-___: Authorizing Application For, And Receipt Of, Local 
Government Planning Support Grant Program Funds. 

Item 8 

70



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR, AND RECEIPT OF, LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

PLANNING SUPPORT GRANT PROGRAM FUNDS. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 50515 et. Seq, the Department of 

Housing and Community Development (Department) is authorized to issue a Notice of 

Funding Availability (NOFA) as part of the Local Government Planning Support Grants 

Program (hereinafter referred to by the Department as the Local Early Action Planning 

Grants program or LEAP); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Suisun City desires to submit a LEAP 

grant application package (“Application”), on the forms provided by the Department, for 

approval of grant funding for projects that assist in the preparation and adoption of planning 

documents and process improvements that accelerate housing production and facilitate 

compliance to implement the sixth cycle of the regional housing need assessment; and 

WHEREAS, the Department has issued a NOFA and Application on January 27, 

2020 in the amount of $119,040,000 for assistance to all California Jurisdictions; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN 

CITY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  

SECTION 1. The City Council is hereby authorized and directed to apply for and submit to 

the Department the Application package. 

SECTION 2. In connection with the LEAP grant, if the application is approved by the 

Department, the City Manager of the City of Suisun City is authorized to submit the 

application, enter into, execute, and deliver a State of California Agreement (Standard 

Agreement) for the amount of $150,000, and any and all other documents required or deemed 

necessary or appropriate to evidence and secure the LEAP grant, the Applicant’s obligations 

related thereto, and all amendments thereto; and 

SECTION 3. The Applicant shall be subject to the terms and conditions as specified in the 

NOFA, and the Standard Agreement provided by the Department after approval. The 

Application and any and all accompanying documents are incorporated in full as part of the 

Standard Agreement. Any and all activities funded, information provided, and timelines 

represented in the Application will be enforceable through the fully executed Standard 

Agreement. Pursuant to the NOFA and in conjunction with the terms of the Standard 

Agreement, the Applicant hereby agrees to use the funds for eligible uses and allowable 

expenditures in the manner presented and specifically identified in the approved Application. 

  

Item 8 
Attachment 1

71



 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 5th day of May 2020, by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members:    

NOES: Council Members:    

ABSENT: Council Members:    

ABSTAIN: Council Members:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 5th day of May 2020. 

 

   

 Donna Pock, CMC 

 Deputy City Clerk 

 

Item 8 
Attachment 1

72



______________________________________________________________________________ 
PREPARED/REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  May 5, 2020 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___:  Establishing an 
Economic Pandemic Impact Citizen’s Advisory Committee. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The fiscal impact to the City will be less than $5,000 and can be absorbed 
into the existing budget. 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Develop Sustainable Economy. Provide Good Governance. 
Ensure Fiscal Solvency. 

BACKGROUND:  The City Council on February 5, 2019 endorsed the creation of Citizen’s 
Advisory Committees.  As provided for in the Background section of the February 5, 2019 Staff 
Report, the creation of the Committees was one more step towards establishing an organizational 
culture that champions civic engagement in Suisun City by the current City Council.  On February 
19, 2019, the City Council established the Environment & Climate, Public Safety & Emergency 
Management, and Lighting & Landscape Advisory Committee.  

STAFF REPORT:   The COVID-19 pandemic and the resulting Shelter at Home Health Orders 
have had a significant impact on the fiscal health of both the City and local businesses.  Local 
businesses are the backbone of Suisun City’s economy and a source of fiscal strength.  The purpose 
of this committee is to discuss best practices in jumpstarting our economy in a safe and healthy 
way, ensure our businesses have the support they need to reopen, and identify ways to expand 
businesses or services in our City. 

The adoption of this Committee by resolution is the first step in process of implementation.  The 
next step would be for the Mayor and City Council to appoint members of the public to the 
Committee.  Staff envisions the Economic Pandemic Impact Committee (EPIC) being formed 
within the next 30 days, with City Council making appointments at the May 19th meeting. This 
date is within the government code requiring a 10 day public notice, however less than 20 days as 
adopted in the Council Norms and Procedures.  

The structure of EPIC will mirror the existing Citizen’s Advisory Committees.  Membership will 
be for one-year, confirmed by the full Council, and determined as follows: 

A. Total Membership: 17 members, 15 appointed by the Mayor and City Council with full
voting rights, 2 non-appointed with no voting rights consisting of the Mayor and City
Manager, as Chair and Vice Chair respectively.

a. At-Large Members: 5 members appointed by a member of the Council.  These
members should have expertise or experience which would add value to the
discussion of economic recovery for Suisun City.

b. Stakeholder Members: 10 members appointed by the Mayor in consultation with
the City Manager representing economic stakeholders in our community.

Item 9 

73



i. 4 members. Small and large businesses of any type locating within city
limits. Size of businesses is defined by number of employees - small is 15
or fewer employees and large is more than 15 employees. The desire is to
have 50% representation of each but is flexible depending on the
nominations.

ii. 1 member. Non-profit organization located within city limits.
iii. 1 member. Locally owned Restaurant located within city limits.
iv. 1 member. Business member of the Downtown Waterfront Business

Improvement District.
v. 3 members. A board member from the Fairfield-Suisun Chamber of

Commerce, the Solano County Black Chamber of Commerce, and the
Solano Hispanic Chamber of Commerce.

B. Selection of Members:
a. Individuals desiring to be selected as an “At-Large” member, should reach out to

Councilmembers directly.  In addition, Councilmembers should actively seek out
individuals as well.  These individuals could be members of the business
community that were not selected as a Stakeholder Member.

b. Individuals desiring to be selected as a “Stakeholder” member, should self-
nominate by sending an email to mayor@suisun.com with the subject line “EPIC
Stakeholder Member” and in the body of the email include the stakeholder
membership you desire to represent and a brief explanation of your business and
why you should be selected for this committee. Self-nomination should be
submitted by Friday, May 15, 2020 at 8:00pm.

c. Stakeholder Members consisting of the three local Chambers will be made by direct
appointment in discussion with Presidents of the Chambers.

RECOMMENDATION:   Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-__:  Establishing an 
Economic Pandemic Impact Citizen’s Advisory Committee.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution No. 2020 - ___:  Establishing an Economic Pandemic Impact Citizen’s

Advisory Committee.

Item 9 

74



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL ESTABLISHING AN ECONOMIC 
PANDEMIC IMPACT CITIZEN’S ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

WHEREAS, on February 5, 2019, the City Council endorsed the formation of Citizen’s 
Advisory Committees, establishing an organizational culture that champions civic engagement 
in Suisun City by the current City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council purpose in establishing the Economic Pandemic Impact 
Citizen’s Advisory Committee (EPIC) is a desire to implement best practices to jump start our 
economy in a safe and healthy way, ensure our businesses have the support they need to reopen, 
and identify ways to expand businesses or services; and 

WHEREAS, once established, Staff will begin working on a suggested work program 
for the Committees. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the formation and membership of the 
Economic Pandemic Impact Citizen’s Advisory Committee will mirror the Citizen’s Advisory 
Committees.  Membership will be for one-year, confirmed by the full Council, and determined 
as follows: 

A. Total Membership: 17 members, 15 appointed by the Mayor and City Council with
full voting rights, 2 non-appointed with no voting rights consisting of the Mayor and
City Manager, as Chair and Vice Chair respectively.

a. At-Large Members: 5 members appointed by a member of the Council.  These
members should have expertise or experience which would add value to the
discussion of economic recovery for Suisun City.

b. Stakeholder Members: 10 members appointed by the Mayor in consultation with
the City Manager representing economic stakeholders in our community.
i. 4 members. Small and large businesses of any type locating within city limits.

Size of businesses is defined by number of employees - small is 15 or fewer
employees and large is more than 15 employees. The desire is to have 50%
representation of each but is flexible depending on the nominations.

ii. 1 member. Non-profit organization located within city limits.
iii. 1 member. Locally owned Restaurant located within city limits.
iv. 1 member. Business member of the Downtown Waterfront Business

Improvement District.
v. 3 members. A board member from the Fairfield-Suisun Chamber of

Commerce, the Solano County Black Chamber of Commerce, and the Solano
Hispanic Chamber of Commerce.

B. Selection of Members:
a. Individuals desiring to be selected as an “At-Large” member, should reach out

to Councilmembers directly.  In addition, Councilmembers should actively seek

Item 9 
Attachment 1

75



Resolution No. 2020- 
Adopted May 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

out individuals as well.  These individuals could be members of the business 
community that were not selected as a Stakeholder Member. 

b. Individuals desiring to be selected as a “Stakeholder” member, should self-
nominate by sending an email to mayor@suisun.com with the subject line “EPIC
Stakeholder Member” and in the body of the email include the stakeholder
membership you desire to represent and a brief explanation of your business and
why you should be selected for this committee. Self-nomination should be
submitted by Friday, May 15, 2020 at 8:00pm.

c. Stakeholder Members consisting of the three local Chambers will be made by
direct appointment in discussion with Presidents of the Chambers.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of said City Council of the City of 
Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 5th day of May 2020, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: 
NOES: Councilmembers: 
ABSENT: Councilmembers: 
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 5th day of May 2020. 

Donna Pock, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

Item 9 
Attachment 1

76



______________________________________________________________________________ 
PREPARED BY: Scott T. Corey, Senior Management Analyst – Budget & HR 
REVIEWED & APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE: May 5, 2020 

CITY AGENDA ITEM: Second Amendment to the Suisun City Management and Professional 
Employees Association (SCMPEA) Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 2018-20 

a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___:- Approving a Second Amendment to the
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of Suisun City and the Suisun
City Management and Professional Employees Association (SCMPEA) effective
December 28, 2018 through December 31, 2020, to Amend the Certification and Education
Incentive Pay and Executive Leave Provisions of the MOU

FISCAL IMPACT: The fiscal impact of the Second Amendment to the SCMPEA MOU 2018-
20 is expected to be an increase of approximately $9,000 during the current fiscal year. The 
projected FY2020-21 costs are approximately $17,700. These costs can be absorbed by realized 
savings in current appropriations. 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT: Ensure Public Safety. Provide Good Governance 

BACKGROUND: On February 5, 2019, the City Council approved a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Suisun City (City) and the Suisun City Management and 
Professional Employees Association (SCMPEA), effective December 28, 2018 through December 
31, 2020 (SCMPEA MOU 2018-20) with the adoption of Resolution No. 2019-04. The SCMPEA 
MOU provided for a number of reopeners under Article XLVI, Section 4, including if any other 
bargaining group’s contract has more advantageous applicable compensation provisions and a 
reopener beginning August 1, 2019, for negotiations between the parties to further address having 
the employees’ total compensation be within 90% of the mean as defined within the 2018 
Compensation Report. 
On January 14, 2020, the City Council approved a First Amendment to the SCMPEA MOU 2018-
20 with the adoption of Resolution No. 2020-05 to amend the Flexible Benefits Options, Executive 
Leave Hours, and Vacation Accrual Provisions. 

STAFF REPORT: The City and SCMPEA’s authorized labor relations representatives have met 
and conferred in good faith pursuant to the requirements of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act, codified 
as Gov’t Code Sections 3500-3511, regarding certain reopeners in the SCEA MOU 2018-20, and 
reached a Tentative Agreement on a Second Amendment (attached as Exhibit “A” to the proposed 
resolution) to amend the certification and education incentive pay and executive leave provisions 
of the SCMPEA MOU 2018-20, which was ratified by the SCMPEA membership and then signed 
by the parties. 

The Second Amendment will amend Section 3 (Certification and Education Incentive Pay) of 
Article XXXIV (Reimbursement for Education or Training) and Section 3 (Executive Leave) of 
Article XV (Hours of Work) of the SCMPEA MOU 2018-20 as follows: 

Item 10

77



ARTICLE IX – MEDICAL & DENTAL INSURANCE 

2. Certification and Education Incentive Pay. In order In order to encourage
employees to provide optimum service to the public, employees may receive up to 5%
maximum cumulative incentive for any single or combination of certification and/or
relevant advanced education degree, added to their base rate. A certification or advanced
degree required for the position is not eligible for the incentive pay. To receive certification
or education incentive pay, proof of completion must be submitted to the City Manager.
The following list is eligible for incentive pay at the assigned incentive rate:

A. Advanced degree beyond current requirement for job (AA, Bach. degree, Masters)
            = 3.0% 

B. Chief Officer (FIRE) = 1.5% 
C. Paramedic = 1.5% 
D. POST Advanced Certificate = 5.0% 

Provision 3D shall be effective the first full pay period after City Council approval and 
adoption of this Second Amendment and apply prospectively only. 

ARTICLE XV – HOURS OF WORK 

3. Executive Leave. Rules regarding Executive Leave are set forth in Section 8.5 of
the Personnel Rules, Administrative Directive AD-18. In lieu of Overtime/CTO, 80 hours
shall be deposited into the Executive Leave account of each eligible employee in the
bargaining unit in the first full pay period of each fiscal year. Additionally, an eligible
employee will receive one hour of Executive Leave for each hour of work assigned and
approved by their Department Head, that is worked outside of the regular work day, not to
exceed 40 additional hours per fiscal year; i.e. 120 Executive Leave accrued hours for the
fiscal year. Examples of such assigned tasks outside of the regular work day are City
Council meetings, city events or emergency response.

The buyback options below shall supersede the provisions of Section 8.5 of the Personnel 
Rules, Administrative Directive AD-18: 

A. 1-10 years of service with Suisun City – 40 hours

B. After completing 10 years and higher – 50 hours

C. Any Executive Leave accumulated over 80 hours due to working hours
outside the Employee’s normal work day as described above, may be cashed out
once each fiscal year.

Provision 3C shall be effective the first full pay period after City Council approval and 
adoption of this Second Amendment and apply prospectively only. 

Item 10

78



RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-
__: Approving a Second Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the 
City of Suisun City and the Suisun City Management and Professional Employees Association 
(SCMPEA) effective December 28, 2018 through December 31, 2020, to Amend the Certification 
and Education Incentive Pay and Executive Leave Provisions of the MOU 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2020-__: Approving a Second Amendment to the Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) between the City of Suisun City and the Suisun City Management
and Professional Employees Association (SCMPEA) effective December 28, 2018 through
December 31, 2020, to Amend the Certification and Education Incentive Pay and
Executive Leave Provisions of the MOU

Item 10

79



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

80



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
APPROVING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE MEMORANDUM OF 

UNDERSTANDING (MOU) BETWEEN THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY AND THE 
SUISUN CITY MANAGEMENT AND PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES 

ASSOCIATION (SCMPEA) EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 28, 2018 THROUGH 
DECEMBER 31, 2020, TO AMEND THE CERTIFICATION AND EDUCATION 

INCENTIVE PAY AND EXECUTIVE LEAVE PROVISIONS OF THE MOU 
 

WHEREAS, on February 5, 2019, the City Council approved the Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Suisun City (City) and the Suisun City Management and 
Professional Employees Association (SCMPEA), effective December 28, 2018 through 
December 31, 2020 (SCMPEA MOU 2018-20) with the adoption of Resolution No. 2019-04; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City and SCMPEA’s authorized labor relations representatives met 
and conferred in good faith pursuant to the requirements of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act 
(MMBA)(Gov’t Code Sections 3500-3511) regarding certain reopeners in the SCMPEA MOU 
2018-20; and  

WHEREAS, the City and SCEA’s authorized labor relations representatives have 
reached agreement on a proposed Second Amendment (attached hereto as Exhibit “A”) to 
amend the certification and education incentive pay, and executive leave buy-back provisions 
of the SCMPEA MOU 2018-20, which was ratified by the SCMPEA membership and then 
signed by the parties; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to accept, approve and adopt the SCMPEA 
ratified Second Amendment to the SCMPEA MOU 2018-20 (attached hereto as Exhibit “A”); 
and 

WHEREAS, the Second Amendment to the SCMPEA MOU 2018-20 will have no 
direct fiscal impact on this fiscal year’s budget. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Suisun 
City as follows: 

Section 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and incorporated herein 
by this reference. 

Section 2. The Second Amendment to the SCMPEA MOU 2018-20 between the 
City and the SCMPEA attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby accepted, approved, and 
adopted. 

Section 4. Supplemental appropriations due to the increased costs of the First 
Amendment to the SCMPEA MOU 2018-20 are not necessary as the costs will be covered as 
follows: 

• POST Advanced Certificate Incentive Pay - This item will cost about $4,100. 
Sufficient benefit savings exist to cover in current fiscal year. 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

81



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

• Executive Leave Hours – Increasing the amount of awarded leave Employees 
can buy-back per fiscal year would cost about $5,000. 

SECTION 5. Effective Date. This Resolution is effective upon its adoption.  
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of said City Council of the City of 
Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 5th day of May 2020, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers:    
NOES: Councilmembers:    
ABSENT: Councilmembers:    
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

  

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 5th day of May 2020. 

 
   
 Donna Pock, CMC 
 Deputy City Clerk 

 

Exhibit A: Amendment No. 2 to the SCMPEA MOU 2018-20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

82



SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY AND 
THE SUISUN CITY MANAGEMENT AND 

PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION 
EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 28,2018 THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2020

This Second Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Suisim City 
and the Suisim City Management and Professional Employees Association effective December 
28, 2018 through December 31, 2020 (SCMPEA MOU 2018-20) is made and entered into by 
and between the City of Suisim City, a municipal corporation (City), and the Suisim City 
Management and Professional Employees Association (SCMPEA).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, on February 5, 2019, the City Council approved the SCMPEA MOU 2018- 
20 with the adoption of Resolution No. 2019-04.

WHEREAS, on January 14, 2020, the City Council approved and adopted Resolution No. 
2020-05 Approving a First Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between 
the City of Suisim City and the Suisim City Management and Professional Employees 
Association effective December 28, 2018 through December 31, 2020, to Amend the Flexible 
Benefits Options, Executive Leave Hours, and Vacation Accrual Provisions of the MOU.

WHEREAS, the City and SCMPEA’s authorized labor relations representatives met and 
conferred in good faith pursuant to the requirements of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (MMBA), 
Gov’t Code Sections 3500-3511, regarding increased pay for Police Commanders having to pick 
up patrol shifts during staffing shortages and the compression in compensation between Police 
Sergeants, Police Commanders and the Police Chief.

WHEREAS, the City and SCMPEA now desire to further amend the SCMPEA MOU 
2018-20 by means of this Second Amendment in order to increase Certification Pay for Police 
Commanders as part of Article XXXIV, Section 3 of the SCMPEA MOU 2018-20, and in order 
to provide further opportunity to cash out additional Executive Leave, which Second 
Amendment was ratified by the SCMPEA membership and then signed by the parties below as a 
joint recommendation to City Council, subject to City Council approval and adoption of this 
Second Amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and 
subject to City Council approval and adoption of this Second Amendment, the parties hereto 
agree to amend and replace Section 3 Certification and Education Incentive Pay of Article 
XXXIV REIMBURSEMENT FOR EDUCATION OR TRAINING in its entirety with the 
following:

Item 10 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit A

83



SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE MEMORANDUM. OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF SUISIJN CITY AND THE
SIHSUN CITY MANAGEMENT AND PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION - EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 23,2018
THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2920

ARTICLE XXXIV - REIMBURSEMENT FOR EDUCATION OR TRAINING

Certifieatioii and Education Incentive Pay. In order to encourage employees to 
provide optimum service to the public, employees may receive up to 5% maximum 
cumulative incentive for any single or combination of certification and/or relevant 
advanced education degree, added to their base rate. A certification or advanced degree 
required for the position is not eligible for the incentive pay. To receive certification or 
education incentive pay, proof of completion must be submitted to the City Manager. The 
following list is eligible for incentive pay at the assigned incentive rate;

3.

Advanced degree beyond current requirement for job (AA, Bach. Degree, 
Masters)

A.
- 3.0%;

B, Chief Officer (FIRE) = 1.5%

C. Paramedic -1.5%

D. POST Advanced Certificate = 5.0%

Provision 3D shall be effective the first full pay period after City Council approval and 
adoption of this Second Amendment and apply prospectively only.

Furthermore, the parties agree to amend and replace Section 3 of Article XV Executive Leave in 
its entirety with the following:

3. Executive Leave. Rules regarding Executive Leave are set forth in Section 8.5 of 
the Personnel Rules, Administrative Directive AD-18. In lieu of Overtime/CTO, 80 hours 
shall be deposited into the Executive Leave account of each eligible employee in the 
bargaining unit in the first full pay period of each fiscal year. Additionally, an eligible 
employee will receive one hour of Executive Leave for each hour of work assigned and 
approved by their Department Head, that is worked outside of the regular work day, not 
to exceed 40 additional hours per fiscal year; i.e, 120 Executive Leave accrued hours for 
the fiscal year. Examples of such assigned tasks outside of the regular work day are City 
Council meetings, city events or emergency response.

The buyback options below shall supersede the provisions of Section 8.5 of the Personnel 
Rules, Administrative Directive AD-18:

1-10 years of service with Suisun City - 40 hours 

After completing 10 years and higher - 50 hours

A.

B.

Any Executive Leave accumulated over 80 hours due to working hours 
outside of the Employee’s normal work day as described above, may be cashed 
out once each fiscal year.

C.

3 of 3

Item 10 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit A

84



SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY AND THE
SWSUN CITY MANAGEMENT AND PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION - EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 28,2018
THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2020

Provision 3C shall be effective the first Ml pay period after City Council approval and 
adoption of this Second Amendment and apply prospectively only.

The representatives of the City and of the SCMFEA have jointly prepared this Second 
Amendment to the SCMPEA MOU 2018-20, and jointly presented to City Council of the City of 
Suisun City for determination pursuant to Government Code section 3505.1. Except as expressly 
provided for in this Second Amendment to the SCMPEA MOU 2018-20, all other provisions of 
the SCMPEA MOU 2018-20 and the First Amendment thereto shall remain in Ml force and 
effect. The parties also knowledge that this Second Amendment to the SCMPEA MOU 2018-20 
shall not be in full force and effect until adopted by resolution by the City Council of the City of 
Suisun City. Subject to the foregoing and in witness whereof, this Second Amendment is hereby 
executed by the authorized representatives of the City and the SCMPEA and entered into as of 
this day of April, 2020.

IT IS SO AGREED:*

For The City:

jg^dfsomfCity Manager /John DaltympleJ/ /

Kathy Ijav/tQn-Caesar, SCMPEA President

/

3 of 3

Item 10 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit A

85



SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY AND THE
SUISUN CITY MANAGEMENT AND PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION - EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 28,2818
THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2028

Approved as to form 
Aleshire & Wynder, LLP

Anthony R. Taylor, City Attorney

3 of 3

Item 10 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit A

86



______________________________________________________________________________ 
PREPARED BY: John Kearns, Senior Planner 
APPROVED BY:  Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  May 5, 2020 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Senate Bill 743 Implementation Support: 

a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-__: Adopting the 6th Amendment to the Annual
Appropriation Resolution No. 2019-65 to Appropriate Off-Site Street Improvements
Program Funds for Traffic Engineering Services to Support Implementation of Senate
Bill 743

b. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
a Professional Services Agreement on the City’s Behalf with Fehr and Peers, Inc. to
Provide Implementation Support for Senate Bill 743 to the City and to Authorize Change
Orders up to 20% of the Contract Amount.

FISCAL IMPACT:  There would be no impact to the General Fund.  The cost for retaining the 
firm of Fehr and Peers, Inc. to perform the work is $24,980 and with a 20% contingency the total 
budget would be $30,000. The Off-Site Street Improvement Program has adequate funding to 
cover the cost for the consultant’s efforts. 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance and Enhance the Environment. 

BACKGROUND:  Per the State of California Department of Transportation website, Senate 
Bill 743 was signed in 2013, with the intent to “more appropriately balance the needs of 
congestion management with statewide goals related to infill development, promotion of public 
health through active transportation, and reduction of greenhouse gas emissions.” The state 
finally approved regulatory changes to the CEQA guidelines that implement SB 743 in 
December 2018.  When implemented, “traffic congestion shall not be considered a significant 
impact on the environment” within California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) transportation 
analysis. The law identifies July 1, 2020 as the statewide implementation date. Locally, the 2035 
Suisun City General Plan begins to prepare the City for this transition with certain policies 
that address vehicle miles traveled. 

STAFF REPORT:  Understanding that Fehr and Peers was working closely with several other 
Solano County agencies, city staff contacted them to better understand what needed to be 
completed in order to meet the deadline of July 1, 2020. Subsequently, Fehr and Peers prepared 
and submitted a scope of work which puts the City in the best position to begin addressing the 
requirements of the law. Below are what staff considers to be important takeaways from the 
proposed scope of work: 

• Review of traffic demand model and output baseline vehicle miles traveled (VMT)
information for four land use types (Task 2):

o Residential
o Retail

Item 11

87

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201320140SB743


o Office
o Industrial

• Drafting of CEQA thresholds to be prepared by using the results of Task 2 with other
published guidance from the State of California (Task 3).

• Preparation of memorandum and public meeting attendance (Tasks 4 and 5).

Again, in staff’s opinion, completing this work over the next couple of months puts the City in 
the best position to continue to process development projects without delay. As stated in the 
scope of work, there may be reason for additional consultant work on this subject post-July 1, 
2020. This additional work would be next fiscal year and staff has not yet determined the 
necessity for the additional work. 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council: 

a. Adopt Resolution No. 2020-___: Adopting the 6th Amendment to the Annual
Appropriation Resolution No. 2019-65 to Appropriate Off-Site Street Improvements
Program Funds for Traffic Engineering Services to Support Implementation of Senate
Bill 743

b. Adopt Resolution No. 2020-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Professional Services Agreement on the City’s Behalf with Fehr and Peers, Inc. to
Provide Implementation Support for Senate Bill 743 to the City and to Authorize Change
Orders up to 20% of the Contract Amount.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution No. 2020-___: Adopting the 6th Amendment to the Annual Appropriation

Resolution No. 2019-65 to Appropriate Off-Site Street Improvements Program Funds for
Traffic Engineering Services to Support Implementation of Senate Bill 743

2. Resolution No. 2020-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Professional
Services Agreement on the City’s Behalf with Fehr and Peers, Inc. to Provide
Implementation Support for Senate Bill 743 to the City and to Authorize Change Orders
up to 20% of the Contract Amount.

3. Fehr and Peers Scope of Work.

Item 11

88



BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY:

Increase/
(Decrease)

TO: ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT 30,000$         

Interfund Transfers

TOTAL Section 120 30,000$         

THAT account titles and numbers requiring adjustment by this Resolution are as follows:

Sources Uses
Off-Site Street Improvement Program Fund

Revenues:
A/C No.  120-70101 Fund Balance (30,000)$       -$  

Appropriations:
A/C No. 120-91120-6515 Engineering Services -$ 30,000$  

Total 120 Fund (30,000)$       30,000$         

          AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS
          NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS
          ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS
          ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS

WITNESS my hand and seal of the said City this 5th day of May 2020.

Linda Hobson, CMC
City Clerk

ADOPTED AND PASSED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Suisun City duly held on the 5th day of 
April, 2020 by the following vote:

THAT the purpose is to appropriate OSSIP funds for engineering services required to support implement SB743 
requirements. 

THAT Section 120 of Part III of the Annual Appropriation Resolution No. 2019-65 be and is hereby amended as follows:

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-__

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY
ADOPTING THE 6th AMENDMENT TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION NO. 2019-65 TO 

APPROPRIATE OFF-SITE STREET IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM FUNDS FOR TRAFFIC ENGINEERING 
SERVICES TO SUPPORT IMPLEMENTATION OF SB743 

Item 11 
Attachment 1

89



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

90



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT ON THE CITY’S BEHALFF WTH FEHR AND PEERS, 
INC. TO PROVIDE IMPLEMENTATION SUPPORT FOR SENATE BILL 743 TO 

THE CITY AND TO AUTHORIZE CHANGE ORDERS UP TO 20% OF THE 
CONTRACT AMOUNT 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 743 (SB 743) was approved by Governor Jerry Brown on 
September 27, 2013; and  

WHEREAS, SB 743 was signed with the intent to “more appropriately balance the 
needs of congestion management with statewide goals related to infill development, promotion 
of public health through active transportation, and reduction of greenhouse gas emissions.” 
When implemented, “traffic congestion shall not be considered a significant impact on the 
environment” within California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) transportation analysis; 
and 

WHEREAS, Regulatory changes to the CEQA Guidelines that implement SB 743 were 
approved on December 28, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, The State of California Office of Planning and Research has released 
recommendations regarding assessment of VMT, thresholds of significance, and mitigation 
measures. 

WHEREAS, July 1, 2020 is the statewide implementation date for all jurisdiction 
within the State of California for SB 743; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Suisun City has determined that hiring a traffic consultant is 
necessary in creating city-specific thresholds, screening criteria, and mitigations.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 
City authorizes the City Manager to execute a professional services agreement on the City’s 
behalf with Fehr and Peers, Inc. to provide implementation support for Senate Bill 743 for the 
City and to authorize change orders up to 20% of the contract amount. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Suisun City held on Tuesday the 5th day of May 2020 by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members: 
NOES: Council Members: 
ABSENT: Council Members: 
ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 5th day of May 2020. 

Donna Pock, CMC, 
Deputy City Clerk 

Item 11 
Attachment 2

91



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

92



100 Pringle Avenue | Suite 600 | Walnut Creek, CA 94596 | (925) 930-7100 | Fax (925) 933-7090 
www.fehrandpeers.com 

April 28, 2020 

John Kearns 
Senior Planner, City of Suisun City 
701 Civic Center Blvd. 
Suisun City, CA 94585 

Subject: Proposal for Transportation Engineering and Planning Services for Senate Bill 743 
Implementation Support for the City of Suisun City, California.  

Dear Mr. Kearns: 

Thank you for contacting Fehr & Peers to provide transportation engineering and planning services in 
support of the City of Suisun City’s Senate Bill (SB) 743 implementation efforts.  It is our understanding that 
the City desires to advance as much of the implementation work as possible before the July 1, 2020 deadline 
for shifting to a VMT-based metric as the basis of CEQA Transportation section impacts. Based on our 
discussions, the focus of our work in the next two months will be primarily related to travel demand model 
review, travel demand model calculations, and discussion of CEQA threshold options. Future work (to be 
authorized in a future separate scope of work) could include further investigation of screening criteria, 
mitigation strategies, and balancing project-level analysis of LOS (for General Plan consistency purposes) 
and VMT (for CEQA purposes) through the development of transportation impact analysis guidelines.  

The following scope of work includes five tasks. 

Scope of Work 

Task 1 – Kickoff Meeting 

Fehr & Peers will lead a web meeting with City staff to refine scope of work expectations, identify needed 
data for analysis, and establish communication protocols.  At a minimum, the communication protocol will 
include bi-weekly status web meetings with City staff.  Minutes will be prepared after the kick-off meeting 
to summarize key actions. 

Task 2 – Travel Demand Model Review and Calculations 

Fehr & Peers will review two candidate travel demand models that may be used to develop VMT data for 
inclusion in the threshold setting process. The two candidate models that are assumed to be most relevant 
at this stage are the Solano-Napa Activity Based model (SNABM) and the City of Fairfield model, which both 
cover the City of Suisun City. Data regarding the characteristics of the models, including geographic 
coverage, roadway network detail, number of TAZs, and level of trip truncation at model boundaries will be 
documented. Fehr & Peers will recommend one travel demand model for further analysis and present the 
information for City staff review, comment, and concurrence. 

Using the selected travel demand model, Fehr & Peers will output baseline VMT information for the City for 
the four following land use types: 

Item 11 
Attachment 3

93



Mr. John Kearns 
April 28, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 

| 2 | 

 Residential
 Retail
 Office
 Industrial

The VMT information will be calculated on a per resident or per worker level, as well as by trip type (Home-
Based Work, Home-Based Other, and Non-Home Based). Data regarding Solano County-wide and MTC 
region-wide VMT values for these trip types and land use types will be aggregated based on published 
data. 

Task 3 – Threshold Setting 

Fehr & Peers will develop options for CEQA thresholds using the data from Task 2 and information 
contained in the Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation Impacts in CEQA from the State Office of 
Planning and Research (OPR). While the suggested thresholds in the Technical Advisory are non-binding, 
Caltrans has indicated that their review of projects that impact the State Highway System will include a 
review of the City’s adopted thresholds against those suggested by OPR and the substantial evidence 
behind those thresholds. Given the high potential for Caltrans review of projects in Suisun City due to the 
function of SR 12 as one of the backbones of travel between destinations in the City, deviating from the 
OPR thresholds may necessitate developing a high amount of substantial evidence to support the 
thresholds chosen.  

Fehr & Peers will circulate the draft thresholds to City staff for review and comment. Based on the feedback 
received, Fehr & Peers will prepare a set of final thresholds for consideration by City decision makers.  

Task 4 – Documentation 

Fehr & Peers will prepare a memorandum summarizing the information from Tasks 2 and 3 for circulation 
to the Planning Commission and City Council. We will prepare a draft version of the memorandum and 
submit to City staff for review and comment. We will respond to one round of consolidated comments on 
the draft memorandum and prepare a final memorandum. We have included up to four hours of staff time 
for responses to comments on the draft memorandum.  

Task 5 – Meetings 

Fehr & Peers will participate in six conference calls during the course of the project. We will attend two 
night meetings as part of the adoption process. Additional meetings can be accommodated on a time-and-
materials basis, subject to a scope amendment. 

Schedule and Fee 

Fehr & Peers will perform Tasks 1 through 5 on a time-and-materials basis for a not-to-exceed fee of 
$24,980. We will begin work following receipt of a fully executed contract. We will prepare a final schedule 
for the work after the kickoff meeting, with the understanding that the overall goal for this project is to 
adopt CEQA thresholds in advance of the July 1, 2020 deadline. If the scope, schedule and fee are 
acceptable, please provide us with a contract for our review and execution. Please contact Ian at (925) 930-
7100 with questions or if you need additional information. We look forward to working with you on this 
project. 

Item 11 
Attachment 3

94



Mr. John Kearns 
April 28, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 

| 3 | 

Sincerely, 

FEHR & PEERS 

Ian Barnes, PE 
Associate 

P20-5380-WC 

Attachment: Budget by Task  

Item 11 
Attachment 3

95



Fe
e 
Pr

op
os

al
 f
or
 S
ui

su
n 
Ci

ty
 S
B
 7
43
 I
m
pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

Fe
hr
 &
 P
ee

rs
 (
Pr

im
e)

Pr
oj

ec
t 

M
an

ag
er

Pr
in

cip
al-

in
-

Ch
ar

ge
Fo

re
ca

sti
ng

 
Ex

pe
rt

En
gi

ne
er

/ 
Pl

an
ne

r
Ad

m
in

La
bo

r 
Ho

ur
s

Di
re

ct
 

Co
sts

To
ta

l
To

ta
l 

Ho
ur

s
To

ta
l C

os
ts

T
as

ks
$

2
2

0
$

3
2

5
$

2
2

0
$

1
4

0
$

1
3

5

Ta
sk

 1 
- K

ick
of

f M
ee

tin
g

1.1
 Ki

ck
of

f M
ee

tin
g

2
0

0
0

1
3

$
3

0
$

6
0

5
3

$
6

0
5

Ta
sk

 2 
- T

ra
ve

l D
em

an
d 

M
od

el 
Re

vie
w 

an
d 

Ca
lcu

lat
io

ns
2.1

 M
od

el 
Re

vie
w

1
1

8
8

2
2

0
$

1
8

0
$

3
,

8
7

5
2

0
$

3
,

8
7

5

2.2
 M

od
el 

Ca
lcu

lat
ion

s
2

1
1

6
1

6
4

3
9

$
3

5
0

$
7

,
4

1
5

3
9

$
7

,
4

1
5

Ta
sk

 3 
- T

hr
es

ho
ld

 Se
tti

ng
3.1

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f T
hr

es
ho

lds
2

2
8

8
3

2
3

$
2

2
0

$
4

,
5

9
5

2
3

$
4

,
5

9
5

Ta
sk

 4 
- D

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n

4.1
 D

ra
ft 

M
em

o
8

1
2

2
2

1
5

$
1

5
0

$
3

,
2

2
5

1
5

$
3

,
2

2
5

4.2
 Fi

na
l M

em
o

4
0

0
0

0
4

$
4

0
$

9
2

0
4

$
9

2
0

Ta
sk

 5 
- M

ee
tin

gs
/C

on
fe

re
nc

e C
all

s
5.1

 C
on

fer
en

ce
 C

all
s (

6)
6

0
0

0
0

6
$

7
0

$
1

,
3

9
0

6
$

1
,

3
9

0

5.2
 Ev

en
ing

 M
ee

tin
gs

 (2
)

8
0

2
2

2
1

4
$

2
0

5
$

2
,

9
5

5
1

4
$

2
,

9
5

5

To
ta

l f
or

 al
l T

as
ks

3
3

5
3

6
3

6
1

4
1

2
4

$
1

,
2

4
5

$
2

4
,

9
8

0
1

2
4

$
2

4
,

9
8

0

No
te

s: 
Th

is 
fe

e 
pr

op
os

al
 is

 v
al

id
 fo

r a
 p

er
io

d 
of

 9
0 

da
ys

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 su
bm

itt
al

 d
at

e .
Ac

tu
al

 b
ill

in
g 

ra
te

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 se

rv
ice

 m
ay

 v
ar

y 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 th

e 
fin

al
 st

af
fin

g 
pl

an
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t s
ta

rts
; t

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
fe

e 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
ex

ce
ed

ed
.

M
ile

ag
e 

is 
bi

lle
d 

at
 th

e 
IR

S 
ra

te
 p

lu
s 1

0%
 h

an
dl

in
g 

fe
e

Ra
te

s a
nd

 n
on

-k
ey

 st
af

f a
re

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ch

an
ge

 a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e, 

w
ith

ou
t n

ot
ice

, a
nd

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
to

ta
l b

ud
ge

t s
ho

w
n

1Item 11 
Attachment 3

96



DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  
ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0    PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5    BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0    FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3    RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0    POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3    PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  
SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

M I N U T E S 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
SUISUN CITY COUNCIL SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 

THURSDAY, MARCH 26, 2020 
6:00 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, Subdivision (b), and Executive Order released on March 12, 2020, 
the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation by: 
Council/Board Members Anthony Adams, Jane Day, Michael A. Segala, and Mayor Pro Tem Wanda Williams. 
Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 

PER GOVERNOR NEWSOM’S EXECUTIVE ORDER PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
WILL BE VIA THE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 
WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID: 744 576 1347 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

TO VIEW TONIGHT’S MEETING ON SUISUN WEBSITE, LIVESTREAM 
(URL: https://www.suisun.com/government/meeting-video/)  

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6pm) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 
 (Next Ord. No. – 771) 

 (Next City Council Res. No. 2020 – 40) 
ROLL CALL 
Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM with the following Council / Board Members 
Present:  Adams, Day, Segala, Williams, Wilson. 
Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Wilson.  
Invocation was given by City Manager Folsom. 

PUBLIC COMMENT - None 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 
California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 
Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 
City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 
period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 
future agenda.) 

Item 12

97

https://zoom.us/join
https://www.suisun.com/government/meeting-video/
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


March 26, 2020 City Council Page 2 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  - None 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers should be identified at this time.) 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 
City Council 
1. COVID-19 Update – (Folsom:  gfolsom@suisun.com).

GENERAL BUSINESS 
City Council 
2. Council Adoption of Resolution 2020-41:  Ratifying the Director of Emergency Services’

Requisition of Necessary Personnel for COVID-19 Emergency - (Folsom:
gfolsom@suisun.com).

Motioned by Council Member Williams and seconded by Council Member Day to adopt
Resolution No. 2020-41. Motion carried unanimously by the following roll call vote:
AYES: Council Members: Adams, Segala, Day, Williams, Wilson

Mayor Wilson announced there would be a Town Hall Meeting every Thursday with the first to 
be held on April 2, 2020, at 4:30 PM on Zoom to give a COVID-19 update. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, Mayor Wilson adjourned the meeting at 6:38 PM. 

________________________ 
Linda Hobson, CMC 
City Clerk 

Item 12

98

mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com


 
 

DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  
ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0    PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5    BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0    FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3    RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0    POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3    PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  
SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

 

 

M I N U T E S 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 
THURSDAY, MARCH 26, 2020 

6:30 P.M. 
(or immediately following the 6:00 P.M. Special Meeting of the Suisun City Council) 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 
 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, Subdivision (b), and Executive Order released on March 12, 2020, 
the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation by: 
Council/Board Members Anthony Adams, Jane Day, Michael A. Segala, and Mayor Pro Tem Wanda Williams. 
Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 
 

PER GOVERNOR NEWSOM’S EXECUTIVE ORDER PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
WILL BE VIA THE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  
WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

                                                  MEETING ID: 618 732 763 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

 
TO VIEW TONIGHT’S MEETING ON SUISUN WEBSITE, LIVESTREAM  

(URL: https://www.suisun.com/government/meeting-video/)  
 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6:00pm) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

ROLL CALL 
Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 6:46 PM with the following Council / Board Members 
present:  Adams, Day, Segala, Williams, Wilson. 

PUBLIC COMMENT None 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 
California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 
Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 
City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 
period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 
future agenda.) 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION - None  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be 
identified at this time.) 

 
 

Item 12

99

https://zoom.us/join
https://www.suisun.com/government/meeting-video/
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


March 26, 2020 City Council Page 2 

CLOSED SESSION 
1. PERSONNEL MATTERS

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) et seq. the Suisun City Council
will hold a Closed Session for the purpose of Public Employee Performance Evaluation: City
Manager

6:46 PM – Mayor Wilson recessed the meeting to Closed Session. 

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 
Announcement of Actions Taken, if any, in Closed Session. 

7:27 PM – Mayor Wilson reconvened the meeting and stated no action was 
taken in Closed Session. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, Mayor Wilson adjourned the meeting at 7:27 PM. 

________________________ 
Linda Hobson, CMC 
City Clerk 

Item 12

100



M I N U T E S 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
SUISUN CITY COUNCIL  

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 
TUESDAY, APRIL 7, 2020 

6:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, Subdivision (b), and Executive Order released on March 12, 2020, 
the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation by: 
Council/Board Members Anthony Adams, Jane Day, Michael A. Segala, and Mayor Pro Tem Wanda Williams. 
Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 

DUE TO CORONAVIRUS COVID-19 RESIDENTS ARE ENCOURAGED  
TO ATTEND THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING VIA THE APPLICATION, ZOOM. 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  
WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

     MEETING ID: 744 576 1347 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

TO VIEW TONIGHT’S MEETING ON SUISUN WEBSITE, LIVESTREAM 
(URL: https://www.suisun.com/government/meeting-video/)  

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6pm) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

ROLL CALL 
Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 6:32 PM with the following Council / Board Members 
Present:  Adams, Day, Segala, Williams, Wilson. 
Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Wilson.  
Invocation was given by City Manager Folsom. 

PUBLIC COMMENT - None 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 
California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 
Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 
City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 
period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 
future agenda.) 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  - None 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be 
identified at this time.) 

Item 12

101

https://zoom.us/join
https://www.suisun.com/government/meeting-video/
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


April 7, 2019 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 2 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 
1. COVID-19 Update

PRESENTATIONS/APPOINTMENTS
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 

City Council 
2. Proclamation:  (not presented)

a. Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming April 12-18, 2020 as National Public Safety
Telecommunications Week - (Roth: aaroth@suisun.com).

Mayor Wilson read the proclamation.  
b. Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming April 2020 as National Autism Awareness

Month – (Lofthus: klofthus@suisun.com).

Mayor Wilson read the proclamation.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

3. Council Adoption of Ordinance No.769: Amending Chapter 10.36 of the Suisun City
Municipal Code and Add Definitions to the Existing Code (Introduced and Reading Waived
on March 17, 2020) – (Roth: aroth@suisun.com)

4. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-42: Authorizing the Chief of Police to Execute an
Agreement to Receive and Administer Funding Through the Boating Safety and Enforcement
Financial Aid Program from the California Department of Boating and Waterways – (Roth:
aroth@suisun.com).

5. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-43: Authorizing the Police Chief to Enter into a
Five-year Contract with Turbo Data Systems for Processing of Parking, Mechanical,
Registration and Administrative Citations – (Roth: aroth@suisun.com).

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency/Housing Authority 
6. Council/Agency/Authority Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings of

the Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing
Authority held on March 17, 2020  – (Hobson: clerk@suisun.com).

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency 
7. Council/Agency Approval of the February 2020 Payroll Warrants in the Amount of

$476,784.05. Council/Agency Approval of the February 2020 Accounts Payable Warrants in
the Amount of $695,468.07– (Finance).

8. Council/Agency Approval of the March 2020 Payroll Warrants in the Amount of $482,265.68.
Council/Agency Approval of the March 2020 Accounts Payable Warrants in the Amount of
$1,083,503.88 – (Finance).

Council Member Segala abstained from vote on Items 7 and 8.
Motioned by Council Member Williams and seconded by Council Member Segala to
approve Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously by the following roll call vote:
AYES: Council Members: Adams, Day, Segala, Williams, Wilson

Item 12

102

mailto:aroth@suisun.com
mailto:aroth@suisun.com
mailto:aroth@suisun.com
mailto:clerk@suisun.com


April 7, 2019 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 3 

GENERAL BUSINESS 
City Council 
9. Council Adoption of Ordinance No.770:  Repealing and Replacing Section 18.36.070 of Title

18 of the Suisun City Code and Amending the Waterfront District Specific Plan, Relating to
Regulations for Front, Rear, and Side Yard Areas of Residential Properties (Introduced and
Reading Waived on March 17, 2020) – (Folsom/Kearns: gfolsom@suisun.com,
jkearns@suisun.com).

Motioned by Council Member Williams and seconded by Council Member Adams to
adopt Ordinance No. 769. Motion carried by the following roll call vote:
AYES: Council Members Adams, Segala, Williams, Wilson
NOES: Council Member Day

10. Council Adoption of Resolution 2020-44:  Ratifying the Director of Emergency Services’ Local
Emergency Directive Limiting Access to the Boat Launch Area of the Marina, Requiring Retail
Essential Businesses to Provide Hand Sanitizing Stations, Closing Playgrounds, and Prohibiting
Group Activities in Parks - (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).

Motioned by Council Member Day and seconded by Council Member Segala to adopt
Resolution No. 2020-44. Motion carried unanimously by the following roll call vote:
AYES: Council Members Adams, Day, Segala, Williams, Wilson

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 
a. Council/Boardmembers

Council Member Day thanked first responders for all their work.
Council Member Williams reported Children’s Art Fair was postponed indefinitely and
suggested citizens stay home and wear masks when out.

b. Mayor/Chair
Mayor Wilson reported:

• Participating in homecoming celebration of Suisun City resident, Duane Pock who
survived Covid-19 hospitalization;

• Having an interview with John Young of KUIC about Suisun City’s Covid response
and about Virtual Town Hall Meetings on Thursdays and encourage citizen
participation and stated citizens could submit questions to clerk@suisun.com by
3:00 PM on Thursday;

• Having participated in the Children’s Network Living Room Virtual Town Hall on
the 2020 Census; and

• Celebrating the one-year anniversary of Greg Folsom’s employment with the City
and commended him for the great job he has been doing.

11. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff
City Manager Greg Folsom thanked the council for their support and also thanked City staff
for all their help and hard work.

Item 12

103

mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:jkearns@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:clerk@suisun.com


April 7, 2019 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 4 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
(Additional time for request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this 
agenda limited to no more than 3 minutes.) 

George Guynn was concerned about zoom meetings and suggested City Hall should be open for 
meeting; concerned about code enforcement of new ordinance; against wearing masks during 
pandemic; and suggested zoom be improved. Mayor Wilson stated the City was following the 
State mandate to not gather. 

Jim Wise asked how many cases of covid-19 were in each city? Mayor Wilson reported Suisun 
City had less than ten cases. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, Mayor Wilson adjourned the meeting at 7:29 PM. 

________________________ 
Linda Hobson, CMC 
City Clerk 

Item 12

104



M I N U T E S 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 
TUESDAY, APRIL 21, 2020 

6:00 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 
 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, Subdivision (b), and Executive Order released on March 12, 2020, 
the following Council/Successor Agency meeting includes teleconference participation by: 
Council/Board Members Anthony Adams, Jane Day, Michael A. Segala, and Mayor Pro Tem Wanda Williams. 
Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 
 

PER GOVERNOR NEWSOM’S EXECUTIVE ORDER PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
WILL BE VIA THE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  
WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID: 930-6954-8854 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

 
TO VIEW TONIGHT’S MEETING ON SUISUN WEBSITE, LIVESTREAM  

(URL: https://www.suisun.com/government/meeting-video/)  
 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6:00pm) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

ROLL CALL 
Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 6:02 PM with the following Council / Board Members 
present:  Adams, Day, Segala, Williams, Wilson. 

PUBLIC COMMENT - None 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 
California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 
Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 
City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 
period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 
future agenda.) 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  None 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be 
identified at this time.) 

 

CLOSED SESSION  
1. PERSONNEL MATTERS 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) et seq. the Suisun City Council 
will hold a Closed Session for the purpose of Public Employee Performance Evaluation: City 
Manager 
 

Item 12

105

https://zoom.us/join
https://www.suisun.com/government/meeting-video/
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


April 21, 2020 City Council Page 2 
 

 

6:04 PM – Mayor Wilson recessed the meeting to Closed Session. 

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 
Announcement of Actions Taken, if any, in Closed Session. 

  6:50 PM – Mayor Wilson reconvened the meeting and stated no action was taken in 
Closed Session. 

ADJOURNMENT  

There being no further business, Mayor Wilson adjourned the meeting at 6:50 PM. 

________________________ 
Linda Hobson, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
  

Item 12

106



M I N U T E S 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 
AND 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

TUESDAY, APRIL 21, 2020 
6:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, Subdivision (b), and Executive Order released on March 12, 2020, 
the following Council/Successor Agency meeting includes teleconference participation by: 
Council/Board Members Anthony Adams, Jane Day, Michael A. Segala, and Mayor Pro Tem Wanda Williams. 
Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 

DUE TO CORONAVIRUS COVID-19 RESIDENTS ARE ENCOURAGED  
TO ATTEND THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING VIA THE APPLICATION, ZOOM. 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  
WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 
MEETING ID: 916-8831-5207 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

TO VIEW TONIGHT’S MEETING ON SUISUN WEBSITE, LIVESTREAM 
(URL: https://www.suisun.com/government/meeting-video/)  

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6PM) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

(Next Ord. No. – 771) 
 (Next City Council Res. No. 2020 – 45) 

Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2020 - 06) 
 (Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2020 – 06) 

ROLL CALL 
Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 6:52 PM with the following Council / Board Members 
Present:  Adams, Day, Segala, Williams, Wilson. 
Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Wilson. 
Invocation was given by City Manager Folsom. 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 
California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 
Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 
City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 
period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 
future agenda.) 

Item 12

107

https://zoom.us/join
https://www.suisun.com/government/meeting-video/
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


April 21, 2020 City Council / Successor Agency Page 2 

George Guynn expressed concern about Zoom instructions and preferred people be allowed to 
practice social distancing while attending council meetings and encouraged businesses to reopen. 

Mayor Wilson paused the meeting to allow Council Member Williams to fix computer sound. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  - None 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be 
identified at this time.) 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 
1. COVID-19 Update
2. Update on Community Events for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 - (Lofthus:  klofthus@suisun.com).

Recreation, Park and Marina Director Lofthus advised all 2020 events would be on hold due
to COVID-19.

PRESENTATIONS/APPOINTMENTS 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 

City Council 
3. Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting – (Folsom).

a. Presentation of Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
Finance Department Staff.

b. Presentation of Award of Financial Reporting Achievement to Elizabeth Luna,
Accounting Services Manager.

Mayor Wilson read and congratulated Beth Luna and financial department. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

City Council 
4. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-45: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Professional Services Agreement on the City’s Behalf with Fehr and Peers, Inc. for a Traffic
Study to Reevaluate Railroad Avenue and Sunset Avenue Traffic Operations and Authorize
Change Orders Up to 20% of the Contract – (Medill: mmedill@suisun.com).

5. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-46: Designating City Manager, Finance Director,
Senior Management Analyst and Accounting Services Manager as Authorized Representatives
to Apply and Obtain Disaster Assistance from Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) and the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) for Declared Emergencies
– (Folsom:  gfolsom@suisun.com).

6. Accept a Grant from Firehouse Subs for Purchase of a Fire Rescue Boat – (Vincent:
jvincent@suisun.com).
a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-47: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Memorandum of Understanding Funding Agreement with Firehouse Subs Public Safety
Foundation to Accept Grant Funds to Purchase Equipment for the Suisun City Fire
Department Water Rescue Team

Item 12

108

mailto:klofthus@suisun.com
mailto:mmedill@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:jvincent@suisun.com


April 21, 2020 City Council / Successor Agency Page 3 

b. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-48: Adopting the 5th Amendment to the Annual
Appropriation Resolution No. 2019-65 to Appropriate Grant Funds for Purchase of a Fire
Rescue Boat

Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency 
7. Agency Adoption of Resolution No. SA 2020-01:  Stating a Claim of Force Majeure as to the

April 17, 2006 Disposition and Development Agreement with Main Street West, LLC
Including the Four Amendments Thereto, Based on the State of Emergency Declared to
Address the Effects of COVID-19 – (Folsom/Taylor: gfolsom@suisun.com)

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency 
8. Council/Agency Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings of the Suisun

City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing Authority held
on March 17, 2020 – (Hobson: Clerk@suisun.com).
George Guynn requested Item 4 be pulled and Council Member Day requested Item 6 be
pulled.

Motioned by Council Member Segala and seconded by Council Member Adams to
approve Consent Calendar. Items 5, 7 and 8. Motion carried unanimously by the
following roll call vote:
AYES: Council Members: Adams, Day, Segala, Williams, Wilson

Item 4

City Clerk Hobson read an email from Thomas Scholl stating planned realignment
should not be cancelled and a letter from Gerry Raycraft stating a new evaluation of
this issue to generate the same result as previous studies.

George Guynn expressed concern about the City budget and suggested the City proceed with
road repairs.

Motioned by Council Member Williams and seconded by Council Member Adams to
adopt Resolution No. 2020-45. Motion carried unanimously by the following roll call vote:
AYES: Council Members: Adams, Segala, Day, Williams, Wilson

Item 6

Motioned by Council Member Williams and seconded by Council Member Adams to
adopt Resolutions No. 2020-47 and No. 2020-48. Motion carried unanimously by the
following roll call vote:
AYES: Council Members: Adams, Segala, Day, Williams, Wilson

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

GENERAL BUSINESS 

Item 12

109

mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com


April 21, 2020 City Council / Successor Agency Page 4 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 
9. a. Council/Boardmembers

Council Member Adams reported on the great drive through Easter celebration, STA awarded
$10.4 million to Solano County.

Council Member Segala thanked staff for all their assistance with virtual meetings.

Council Member Williams encourage citizens to follow the mandates, reported participating
in weekly Solano meetings of elected officials with regard to COVID-19 and various webinars
put on by the League of California Cities and the National League of Cities.

b. Mayor/Chair
Mayor Wilson thanked:

• Vince and Aron on Shoveler Drive for the Bunny Hop for Hope Easter event where 25
golden eggs and the Mayor’s golden egg were distributed;

• Council Member Adams for giving out 150 bi-lingual coloring books, water bottles,
and bubbles that were donated by Travis Federal Credit Union;

• All the businesses and individuals for donating items for the eggs;
• Fire and Police Departments for donating patches;
• Recreation Department for donating 150th Anniversary t-shirts and Game Time hats;
• Suisun City Dental for donating tooth brushes and tooth paste;
• Camran Nojoomi’s Popeyes for donating a $10 gift card;
• McDonald’s for donating a combo meal;
• LaCabana for donating a free burrito or $10 off your purchase;
• Kroc Center for donating water bottles;
• Travis AFB for donating stickers, pens and key chains;
• Secret Easter bunnies for donating cash and candy;
• Husband for purchasing Easter eggs
• Deputy Clerk Nash for donating her time to disinfect everything and then filling eggs;
• Citrizens who have looked in on neighbors, gone grocery shopping for someone; or has

tried to assist others.
Mayor Wilson also reported a new project called Mayor’s Garage Door Challenge and stated 
City Treasurer Mike McMurry and wife decorated their garage with a sign that says “We are 
together” and reminded everyone of the Town Hall Meeting on Thursday at 4:00 PM. 

10. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff
City Manager Folsom reminded everyone to submit their census form. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(Additional time for request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this 
agenda limited to no more than 3 minutes.) 

George Guynn stated he was having trouble with Zoom and wished to comment on Item 6, 
expressed concern about budget and thanked Council Member Adams for his assistance on 
obtaining the grant. 

Item 12

110



April 21, 2020 City Council / Successor Agency Page 5 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, Mayor Wilson adjourned the meeting at 8:57 PM. 

________________________ 
Linda Hobson, CMC 
City Clerk 

Item 12

111



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

112



______________________________________________________________________________ 
PREPARED BY: John Kearns, Senior Planner 
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  May 5, 2020 

CITY AGENDA ITEM: City Council Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___:  
Approving an Extension of Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map No. SM16-7-001, for the 
Crystal School/Parcel 14 Project (APN 0032-152-180). 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Ultimate development of this project would result in one-time and ongoing 
revenues to the City. The development would pay approximately $780,700 in Development Impact 
Fees to pay one-time fees to address service capacity for the Fire Department, Police Department, 
Parks, arterial streets and general City services. The project also would be annexed into Community 
Facilities District (CFD) No. 2, and would generate $864.50 per lot, or approximately $61,379 
annually to fund basic municipal services, such as police and fire protection.  A CFD tax zone would 
also cover direct public costs for the maintenance of public landscaping and storm drainage 
improvements needed to directly serve the project. 

STRATEGIC PLAN: Revitalize Downtown Waterfront District. 

BACKGROUND: The City Council originally considered and approved the Project on August 8, 
2017. However, on September 17, 2017, a lawsuit entitled Responsible Development in Suisun 
City (RDSC) v. City of Suisun City (Solano County Superior Court Case No. FCS049567) 
challenged the Project approvals and was subsequently litigated. Over the next several months the 
City’s representatives, Main Street West Partners, LLC (“MSW Partners”), and members of the 
RDSC met to develop mutually supported amendments to the Project with the goals of addressing 
concerns and dismissing the lawsuit.  The resulting proposed modifications to the Project were 
then considered and approved by the City Council at a Public Hearing on April 17, 2018.  

STAFF REPORT:  On April 10, 2020, Main Street West (the “Developer”) requested an 
extension of its tentative map, which was set to expire on April 17, 2020.   In its letter (Attachment 
1), the Developer explains the efforts they have taken to-date to advance the project, including 
working with various agencies as they prepare a Final Map and Improvement Plans. They are 
requesting an 18-month extension to the map. It is important to note that with submittal of the 
request, the tentative map is automatically extended for 60-days as the tentative map extension is 
considered. As a result of the settlement agreement, the following amendments were adopted by 
the City Council: 

1. Require that the Applicant modify the Project as described further in the Settlement
Agreement (“Amended Project”). The modifications included the following:

a. Density was reduced from 78 to 71 total units.
b. 15 parking spaces were added throughout the project.
c. Increased the width or (street frontage) on 38 lots.

2. The following changes were made to the elevations:

Item 13

113



a. Plan 1, Elevation C was modified to replace the second story siding in the previous
design with horizontal siding, and to add column and rail at the centerline of the
front door.

b. Plan 2, Elevation C was replaced with an entirely new elevation.
c. Plan 3, Elevation A was replaced with an entirely new elevation, which removed

board and batten and replaced it with stucco and added shutters to the second story 
feature window.

d. Plan 3, Elevation C was replaced with an entirely new elevation that removed
second story siding and replaced it with horizontal siding.

e. Plan 4, Elevation A was replaced with an entirely new elevation that added side
twin gables to more closely match the front porch gable.

f. Plan 5, Elevation A is an entirely new elevation and will be added to the Project
in the locations depicted in the Settlement Agreement.

As stated previously, the proposed settlement agreement resolved a lawsuit entitled Responsible 
Development in Suisun City v. City of Suisun City (Solano County Superior Court Case No. 
FCS049567) filed on September 12, 2017, by RDSC (“Lawsuit”).  

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
Pursuant to the authority and criteria contained in the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA), the City Council analyzed the proposed project. The City Council found that the project 
site was analyzed in the Environmental Impact Report prepared for the General Plan (SCH# 
2011102046) and it was determined that no further environmental review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) was required or appropriate subject to CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15183. 

City Council Options 

In considering this item, the City Council has four (4) options: 

1. Approve the extension request without additional emotions.
2. Conditionally approve the extension request.
3. Deny the extension request.
4. Take no action and continue the item to a future meeting.

Each option is discussed in more detail below. Whichever option the City Council selects, the City 
Council should make findings on the record to support the Council’s decision so that any parties 
that may pursue legal review of the Council’s action will have clear bases upon which to seek 
review.  

1. Approve the Tentative Parcel Map Extension, without additional conditions. – This is
the most straightforward option for the City Council. The Developer will still be required
to comply with the conditions of the original tentative map approval.  Since the approval
of the project in 2017 and subsequent amendment through the settlement agreement in
2018, there have been no changes to applicable land use documents that would contradict
the approval of the project.

Item 13

114



The City Council has the discretion to determine the duration of the extension, but the 
extension shall not exceed six (6) years, ending in 2026 (Government Code Section 
66452.6 limits discretionary extensions to six years).  

2. Conditionally Approve the Tentative Parcel Map Extension – As mentioned above, any
tentative map condition would continue to hold the Developer to compliance with the
conditions of approval in Resolution 2017-59 “Exhibit C” (original tentative map) and
amended through 2018-35 (settlement agreement). When considering the current extension
request, the City Council may impose additional conditions, but only conditions related to
the extension of time. For example, the City Council may set time constraints such as the
filing and recordation of the final map.

3. Deny Tentative Parcel Map Extension - If the Council denies the extension request, then,
if the Developer fails to file its final map for Council approval in a manner compliant with
Chapter 17. 20 of the City Code prior to the tentative map’s expiration on June 16, 2020,
then the tentative map would expire, and the Developer would need to restart the
entitlement process, including any environmental review.

4. Take No Action – The City Council may decide not to take action on the item, and may
bring the item back to the City Council for consideration at a future date. To accomplish
this, the Council may open the public hearing for purposes of continuing the hearing to a
date certain. The Council may also open the public hearing, receive public comments, close
the public hearing, and continue discussions at a later meeting without receiving further
public comments at that later meeting unless the later meeting is a properly noticed public
hearing. The subsequent meeting on this matter should occur on/or before June 16, 2020.
Otherwise, the City Council should grant a short extension to allow the tentative map to
extend to a date allowing the Council’s further consideration without the tentative map’s
expiration lapsing.

RECOMMENDATION:   It is recommended that the City Council Adopt Resolution 2020-
____: Approving an Extension of Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map No. SM16-7-001, for 
the Crystal School/Parcel 14 Project (APN 0032-152-180). 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___:  Approving an Extension of Vesting 

Tentative Subdivision Map No. SM16-7-001, for the Crystal School/Parcel 14 Project 
(APN 0032-152-180)).
Exhibit A: Precise Development Plan
Exhibit B: Conditions of Approval – Tentative Subdivision Map (SM 16-7-001)

Crystal School/Parcel 14 
2. Letter from Main Street West, dated April 9, 2020.
3. PowerPoint Presentation.

Item 13

115



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

116



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN 
CITY, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING AN EXTENSION OF VESTING 

TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP NO. SM 16-7-001, FOR THE 
CRYSTAL SCHOOL/PARCEL 14 PROJECT (APN 0032-152-180)

WHEREAS, on August 8, 2017, the City Council of the City of Suisun City adopted 
Resolution No. 2017-59 approving Main Street West Partners’ application for Vesting 
Tentative Subdivision Map No. SM 16-7-001 (“Tentative Map”) creating a total of 78 lots on 
the former Crystal Middle School property (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, on September 17, 2017, a group named Responsible Development in 
Suisun City (“RDSC”) filed a lawsuit entitled Responsible Development in Suisun City v. City 
of Suisun City (Solano County Superior Court Case No. FCS049567); and 

WHEREAS, on April 17, 2018, the City Council adopted Resolution 2018-35, 
approving a settlement agreement, and amending the approvals for the Project, notably 
reducing the number of units for the Project from 78 to 71; and 

WHEREAS, the lawsuit was dismissed by Solano County Superior Court on June 6, 
2018; and 

WHEREAS, the Tentative Map was set to expire on April 16, 2020; and 
WHEREAS, on April 10, 2020, Main Street West filed an extension request with the 

City of Suisun City (the “City”); and  
WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 66452.6, Main Street West’s 

timely filed extension request provides a 60-day automatic extension of the Tentative Map 
(through June 15, 2020) unless the City approves, conditionally approves, or denies the 
extension, whichever occurs first; and 

WHEREAS, Main Street West’s request for a Tentative Map extension is now before 
the City Council for consideration; and  

WHEREAS, the time extension is exempt from environmental review pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) in that a mitigated negative declaration was approved 
in conjunction with the previously approved project, including the Tentative Map, and the act 
of granting a time extension would not result in any environmental impacts or physical effects 
on the environment; and 

WHEREAS, the permitting of the Project will be subject to codes in effect at the time 
of permit issuance, including new building codes and stormwater regulations; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council finds there have been no changes to the provisions of 
the General Plan, any applicable specific plan, or land use codes applicable to the Project 
since the adoption of Resolution No. 2018-35; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds there have been no changes in the character of the 
site or its surroundings that affect how the policies of the General Plan or Waterfront District 
Specific Plan or other standards of the land use code apply to the Project since the adoption of 
Resolution No. 2018-35; and 

Item 13 
Attachment 1

117



 

Resolution No. 2020- 
Adopted May 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds there have been no changes to the capacities of 
community infrastructure or resources, including but not limited to, water supply, sewage 
treatment or disposal facilities, roads, or schools, so that there is no longer sufficient 
remaining capacity to serve the Project as approved and conditioned since the adoption of 
Resolution No. 2018-35; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens 
of the City of Suisun City will not likely be jeopardized by the City Council’s granting of the 
requested Tentative Map extension; and 

WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing to be conducted by the City Council on May 
5, 2020 to consider the Tentative Map extension provided for in this Resolution (the “Notice”) 
was published in the Daily Republic on April 23, 2020 and posted at Suisun City Hall, Suisun 
Fire Station, Suisun City Senior Center, Harbor Master Building, Project Site, and at 
www.suisun.com; and  

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing was also mailed to property owners within a 
600-foot radius of the project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The above recitals are true and correct, and are incorporated herein by 
this reference. 

Section 2. The City Council approves an extension to Tentative Subdivision Map 
SM 16-7-001 for the former Crystal School property through    , 20 , 
subject to compliance with the previously approved Precise Development Plan (Exhibit “A”) 
and previously adopted Conditions of Approval (Exhibit “B”).  

Section 3. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this Resolution or any part hereof is for any reason held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this 
Resolution or any part thereof.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed 
each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase hereof, 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, 
sentence, clause or phrase be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after 
its adoption by the City Council of the City.  
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED as a Resolution at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the City of Suisun City, California, on this 5th day of May, 2020.   
 

 _________________________________ 

 Lori Wilson 
 Mayor 
 
 

Item 13 
Attachment 1

118



Resolution No. 2020- 
Adopted May 5, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

__________________________ 
Anthony R. Taylor, City Attorney 

CERTIFICATION 
I, Linda Hobson, City Clerk of the City of Suisun City, California, do hereby certify 

that the foregoing was adopted by the City Council of the City of Suisun City at a regular 
meeting held on the 5th day of May, 2020, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: 
NOES: Councilmembers: 
ABSENT: Councilmembers: 
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 5th day of May 2020. 

Linda Hobson, CMC 
City Clerk 

Item 13 
Attachment 1

119



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

120



P
L

A
N

1

P
L

A
N

4

1
2

3
4

6 7

8 9

10
11

12
13

14

15
16

17
18

19
2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
8

2
9

3
0

3
1

3
2

3
3

3
6

3
7

3
8

3
9

4
0

4
1

4
2

3
5

4
4

4
5

4
6

4
7

4
8

4
9

5
1

5
2

5
4

5
5

5
6

5
8

5
9

6
0

6
2

6
3

6
5

6
6

6
7

6
8

6
9

7
0

2
7 3
4

4
3

5
0 5

7

6
4

7
1

P
L

A
N

4

P
L

A
N

4

P
L

A
N

4

P
L

A
N

4

P
L

A
N

4

P
L

A
N

2

P
L

A
N

3

P
L

A
N

2
P

L
A

N
2

P
L

A
N

2
P

L
A

N
2

P
L

A
N

2
P

L
A

N
2

P
L

A
N

2
P

L
A

N
2

P
L

A
N

2
P

L
A

N
2

P
L

A
N

2

P
L

A
N

2
P

L
A

N
2

P
L

A
N

2
P

L
A

N
2

P
L

A
N

2
P

L
A

N
2

P
L

A
N

2
P

L
A

N
2

P
L

A
N

5
P

L
A

N
2

P
L

A
N

2

P
L

A
N

2

P
L

A
N

1

P
L

A
N

1

P
L

A
N

1
P

L
A

N
1

P
L

A
N

1
P

L
A

N
1

P
L

A
N

1

P
L

A
N

1
P

L
A

N
1

P
L

A
N

1

P
L

A
N

3

P
L

A
N

3

P
L

A
N

3
P

L
A

N
3

P
L

A
N

3

P
L

A
N

3
P

L
A

N
3

P
L

A
N

3
P

L
A

N
3

P
L

A
N

3

P
L

A
N

3

P
L

A
N

3
P

L
A

N
3

P
L

A
N

3
P

L
A

N
3

P
L

A
N

3
P

L
A

N
3

P
L

A
N

3
P

L
A

N
3

P
L

A
N

5

P
L

A
N

3

P
L

A
N

3
P

L
A

N
3

P
L

A
N

3

P
L

A
N

3

P
L

A
N

3
P

L
A

N
3

WEST STREET

C
A

L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

SCHOOL STREET

C
O

R
D

E
L
I
A

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

M
O

R
G

A
N

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

P
L

A
N

1

P
L

A
N

2

5

5
3

6
1

Bell&Asso ecciciatesinc

L
O

T
 2

6
P

L
A

N
 1

L
O

T
 2

7
P

L
A

N
 2

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N

L
O

T
 6

1
P

L
A

N
 2

L
O

T
 6

2
P

L
A

N
 3

SCHOOL STREET

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit A

121

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N22° 36' 44"E  677.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89° 50' 52"W  143.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00° 05' 04"W  229.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89° 48' 18"W  373.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00° 17' 03"E  397.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 43' 17"E  774.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHERN PACIFIC CO 0032-020-080

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRYSTAL SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUISUN CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECISE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLANO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
16123

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
Civil

AutoCAD SHX Text
Engineering

AutoCAD SHX Text
Land

AutoCAD SHX Text
Surveying

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2290 Diamond Boulevard, Suite 100     Concord, CA 94520

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone (925) 685-4569     Fax (925) 685-4838

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL OF DRIVE/ PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL OF SIDEWALK/ PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELLECCI & ASSOCIATES, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRYSTAL SCHOOL SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCORD, CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE 29, 2017     SCALE:  1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLANO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF SUISUN CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ZONING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR (MEDIUM-DENSITY RESIDENTIAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY & EASEMENTS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVICES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER - FAIRFIELD SUISUN SEWER DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER - CITY OF SUISUN CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS & ELECTRIC - PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE - A.T.& T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENSITY:  11.6 LOTS/ACRE = # OF LOTS/NET AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/OS - PUBLIC FACILITIES/OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROSS AREA = 7.24 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVERAGE:  3,189 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENTIAL - 71 SINGLE-FAMILY LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM:  2,720 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM:  5,840 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBDIVISON BOUNDARY AREA:

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ZONING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT SIZES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGAL DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.P.N.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0032-152-180

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING USE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED USE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING LOT COUNT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
47 ON-SITE, ON-STREET SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWNTOWN/WATERFRONT SPECIFIC PLAN AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY AND EASEMENTS BASED ON RECORD DATA AND A PRELIMINARY TITLE REPORT PREPARED BY PLACER TITLE CO.; ORDER NO. P-14835 DATED MAY 5, 2016

AutoCAD SHX Text
28 OFF-SITE, ON-STREET SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED SPACES: 71 LOTS x 0.3 = 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILT UPON AREA:

AutoCAD SHX Text
151,560 SF = 3.48 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL AREA PROPOSED FOR BUILDING = 48%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USTATISTICAL INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY LINE LOT LINE/RIGHT OF WAY CURB STREET CENTER LINE RETAINING WALL (24" MAX.) FENCE LINE 4' PUE SOUND/REATINING WALL  

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT SIDEWALK LANDSCAPE BIORETENTION FACILITY FIRE HYDRANT STREET LIGHT NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES HVAC EQUIPMENT TRASH/RECYCLING TOTTER STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USIGHT TRIANGLE DIMENSIONS (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NOT TO SCALE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USIGHT TRIANGLE DIMENSIONS (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NOT TO SCALE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UCORDELIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT LAYOUT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: SEE "TYPICAL LOTTING PLAN" FOR MORE DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECISE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT LAYOUT WITH SIDEYARD,

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' SPLIT FACE MASONRY RETAINING WALL (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UFRONTING SCHOOL STREET (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE-STORY PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPDATED: JULY 26, 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPDATED: MARCH 14, 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NET AREA = 6.13 ACRES



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

122



Exhibit C 
Crystal School/Parcel 14 Conditions of Approval 

Page1 

Exhibit C 

Crystal School/Parcel 14 Project 

Conditions of Approval 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

123



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e1
 

Th
e 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 V
es

ti
n

g 
Te

n
ta

ti
ve

 S
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 M
ap

, 
lo

ca
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

W
at

er
fr

o
n

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

Sp
ec

if
ic

 P
la

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

Su
is

u
n

 C
it

y,
 

A
ss

es
so

r’
s 

P
ar

ce
l N

u
m

b
er

 0
03

2
-1

52
-1

8
0

 is
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 s

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s 
o

f 
ap

p
ro

va
l: 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

O
N

G
O

IN
G

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 

1
.

A
ll 

re
fe

re
n

ce
s 

h
er

ei
n

 t
o

 “
A

p
p

lic
an

t”
 s

h
al

l m
ea

n
 t

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

p
ro

je
ct

 a
p

p
lic

an
t,

 a
n

y 
su

cc
e

ss
o

rs

in
 in

te
re

st
 a

n
d

 a
n

y 
co

n
tr

ac
to

rs
, s

u
b

co
n

tr
ac

to
rs

 o
r 

o
th

er
 p

ar
ti

es
 e

n
ga

ge
d

 b
y 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t

ap
p

lic
an

t 
o

r 
th

e 
ap

p
lic

an
t’

s 
su

cc
es

so
r 

in
 in

te
re

st
 in

 t
h

e 
fu

tu
re

 im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

.

O
n

go
in

g 
th

ro
u

gh
 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
N

A
 

2
.

Fu
tu

re
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 P
ro

je
ct

 (
P

ro
je

ct
) 

si
te

 s
h

al
l b

e

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
la

n
s 

an
d

 e
xh

ib
it

s 
as

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

Su
is

u
n

C
it

y 
o

n
 (

d
at

e)
 a

n
d

 a
s 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 a

n
d

 r
ef

er
en

ce
d

 in
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 _
__

__
_

.  
A

n
y

re
vi

si
o

n
s 

th
at

, i
n

 t
h

e 
o

p
in

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ir

ec
to

r,
 a

lt
e

r 
th

e 
p

u
rp

o
se

 a
n

d

in
te

n
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
, s

h
al

l r
eq

u
ir

e 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l a

p
p

ro
va

l a
n

d
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e

P
ro

je
ct

 P
la

n
n

ed
 U

n
it

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
/o

r 
th

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 P

re
ci

se
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
P

la
n

.

O
n

go
in

g 
th

ro
u

gh
 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

3
.

Th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l i
n

d
em

n
if

y,
 d

ef
en

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

ld
 h

ar
m

le
ss

 t
h

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

Su
is

u
n

 C
it

y 
it

’s
 a

ge
n

ts
,

o
ff

ic
er

s,
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 f
ro

m
 a

n
y 

an
d

 a
ll 

cl
ai

m
s,

 a
ct

io
n

s 
o

r 
p

ro
ce

ed
in

gs
 a

ga
in

st
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
o

f

Su
is

u
n

 C
it

y,
 it

s 
ag

en
ts

, o
ff

ic
er

s,
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
to

 a
tt

ac
h

, s
et

 a
si

d
e,

 v
o

id
 o

r 
an

n
u

l, 
an

y

ap
p

ro
va

l b
y 

th
e 

C
it

y 
o

f 
Su

is
u

n
 C

it
y 

an
d

 it
s 

ad
vi

so
ry

 a
ge

n
cy

, a
p

p
ea

l b
o

ar
d

, o
r 

le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

b
o

d
y

co
n

ce
rn

in
g 

th
is

 a
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ct
io

n
 is

 b
ro

u
gh

t 
w

it
h

in
 a

p
p

lic
ab

le
 s

ta
tu

te
s 

o
f 

lim
it

at
io

n
s.

Th
e 

C
it

y 
o

f 
Su

is
u

n
 C

it
y 

sh
al

l p
ro

m
p

tl
y 

n
o

ti
fy

 t
h

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
an

y 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

p
ro

ce
e

d
in

gs
 a

n
d

 s
h

al
l

co
o

p
er

at
e 

fu
lly

 in
 t

h
e 

d
ef

en
se

. I
f 

th
e 

C
it

y 
fa

ils
 t

o
 d

o
 s

o
, t

h
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l n
o

t 
th

er
ea

ft
er

 b
e

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 t

o
 d

ef
en

d
, i

n
d

em
n

if
y 

o
r 

h
o

ld
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
h

ar
m

le
ss

. T
h

is
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

 m
ay

 b
e 

p
la

ce
d

 o
n

an
y 

p
la

n
s,

 o
r 

o
th

er
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 p

er
ta

in
in

g 
to

 t
h

is
 a

p
p

lic
at

io
n

.

O
n

go
in

g 
th

ro
u

gh
 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
N

A
 

4
.

Th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

ap
p

lic
ab

le
 F

ed
er

al
, S

ta
te

, a
n

d
 lo

ca
l c

o
d

es
 in

cl
u

d
in

g,
 b

u
t

n
o

t 
lim

it
ed

 t
o

, t
h

e 
U

n
if

o
rm

 B
u

ild
in

g 
C

o
d

e,
 F

ir
e 

C
o

d
e 

an
d

 C
o

u
n

ty
 H

ea
lt

h
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

gu
id

el
in

es
 a

s 
in

te
rp

re
te

d
 b

y 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 H
ea

lt
h

 In
sp

ec
to

rs
.

O
n

go
in

g 
th

ro
u

gh
 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 
an

d
 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

124



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e2
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

5
.

Th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l f
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 b

e 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

e 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

al
l c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
re

la
ti

n
g

to
 t

h
e 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l “
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

” 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
in

cl
u

d
in

g 
b

u
t 

n
o

t 
lim

it
ed

 t
o

 t
h

e 
co

n
d

it
io

n
s

es
ta

b
lis

h
ed

 f
o

r 
th

e 
Te

n
ta

ti
ve

 S
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 M
ap

 a
n

d
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
P

la
n

 A
p

p
ro

va
l.

O
n

go
in

g 
th

ro
u

gh
 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 
an

d
 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

6
.

Th
e 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ir

ec
to

r 
(o

r 
d

es
ig

n
at

e
d

 p
er

so
n

),
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
n

su
lt

at
io

n
 fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
C

it
y

En
gi

n
ee

r,
 m

ay
 a

p
p

ro
ve

 m
in

o
r 

m
o

d
if

ic
at

io
n

s 
to

 t
h

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
en

t 
th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 a

n
d

m
it

ig
at

io
n

 m
ea

su
re

s 
as

 d
ee

m
ed

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e

.

O
n

go
in

g 
th

ro
u

gh
 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

  
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

7
.

P
u

rs
u

an
t 

to
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
o

f 
Su

is
u

n
 C

it
y 

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 

2
01

7
-0

2
 d

at
e

d
 J

an
u

ar
y 

3
, 

20
17

, 
n

ew

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

sh
al

l p
ay

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

im
p

ac
t 

fe
es

 s
et

 f
o

rt
h

 in
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

7
-0

2
.

O
n

go
in

g 
th

ro
u

gh
 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

8.
A

ll 
w

o
rk

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 s

ha
ll 

co
n

fo
rm

 t
o

 t
he

se
 c

o
n

d
it

io
ns

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 t
o

 a
ll 

C
it

y 
o

rd
in

an
ce

s,
 r

u
le

s,

st
an

da
rd

 s
p

ec
if

ic
at

io
n

s 
an

d 
d

et
ai

ls
, d

es
ig

n 
st

an
d

ar
ds

, a
nd

 a
n

y 
sp

ec
ia

l r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 im

po
se

d 
by

 t
he

C
it

y 
En

gi
ne

er
. 

 T
he

 B
u

ild
in

g 
an

d
 P

u
bl

ic
 W

o
rk

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 i

n
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

co
nf

o
rm

an
ce

.  
A

ny
 d

ev
ia

ti
o

n
 fr

o
m

 th
e 

af
o

re
m

en
ti

o
n

ed
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 s

h
al

l r
eq

u
ir

e 
re

vi
ew

 a
n

d
 w

ri
tt

en

ap
p

ro
va

l b
y 

th
e 

C
it

y 
En

gi
n

ee
r.

  
D

ev
ia

ti
o

ns
 o

r 
ex

ce
pt

io
ns

 t
o

 t
he

 d
es

ig
n 

re
q

ui
re

m
en

ts
 in

 t
he

 li
st

ed

d
o

cu
m

en
ts

 f
o

r 
p

ri
va

te
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 m
us

t 
be

 id
en

ti
fie

d
 in

 t
he

 d
es

ig
n

 g
ui

d
el

in
es

, o
r 

su
bm

it
te

d
 t

o

th
e 

C
it

y 
En

gi
ne

er
 fo

r 
ap

p
ro

va
l.

O
n

go
in

g 
th

ro
u

gh
 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

9
.

Th
e 

C
it

y 
En

gi
n

ee
r 

m
ay

 a
p

p
ro

ve
 a

n
d

/o
r 

n
eg

o
ti

at
e

 m
in

o
r 

ch
an

ge
s 

o
r 

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

s 
to

 B
u

ild
in

g 
an

d

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s 
o

f 
ap

p
ro

va
l.

O
n

go
in

g 
th

ro
u

gh
 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

10
.

Th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l 
d

es
ig

n
at

e
 a

 d
es

ig
n

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 a

s 
th

e 
m

ai
n

 p
o

in
t 

o
f 

co
n

ta
ct

 in
 s

u
b

m
it

ti
n

g

p
la

n
s,

 r
ep

o
rt

s 
an

d
 o

th
er

 d
o

cu
m

en
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e 
C

it
y 

d
u

ri
n

g 
th

e 
d

es
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 r

ev
ie

w
 p

h
as

e.

Su
b

m
it

ta
ls

 f
ro

m
 a

n
y 

o
th

er
 p

er
so

n
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e 

ac
ce

p
te

d
 b

y 
th

e 
C

it
y.

O
n

go
in

g 
th

ro
u

gh
 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

1
1

.
A

n
y 

re
lo

ca
ti

o
n

 o
r 

m
o

d
if

ic
at

io
n

 o
f 

an
y 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d

at
e

 s
u

b
je

ct

p
ro

je
ct

 s
h

al
l 

b
e 

at
 t

h
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t’

s 
ex

p
en

se
. 

 I
t 

sh
al

l 
b

e 
th

e 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
to

co
o

rd
in

at
e 

al
l n

ec
es

sa
ry

 u
ti

lit
y 

re
lo

ca
ti

o
n

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e

 u
ti

lit
y 

co
m

p
an

y.

O
n

go
in

g 
th

ro
u

gh
 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

 f
o

r 
fi

rs
t 

h
o

m
e 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

125



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e3
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

1
2

.
C

er
ta

in
 li

m
it

ed
 c

o
rr

ec
ti

o
n

s 
to

 t
h

e 
va

ri
o

u
s 

p
la

n
s 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ap

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
vi

se
d

 p
ri

o
r

to
 t

h
e 

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

P
ro

je
ct

 t
o

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l f
o

r 
fi

n
al

 a
p

p
ro

va
l. 

 S
u

ch
 c

o
rr

ec
ti

o
n

s 
in

cl
u

d
e:


P

ro
vi

d
e 

co
n

cr
et

e 
w

al
kw

ay
 t

o
 g

at
e 

fr
o

m
 d

ri
ve

 a
is

le
/a

lle
y 

ac
ce

ss
.


D

el
in

ea
te

 a
cc

es
s 

an
d

 u
se

 o
f 

sh
ar

ed
 y

ar
d

s 
w

h
er

e 
h

o
m

es
 a

re
 s

it
e

d
 “

b
ac

k-
to

-b
ac

k.
”


P

ro
vi

d
e 

ty
p

ic
al

 lo
t 

to
 d

ep
ic

t 
se

tb
ac

ks
 f

ro
m

 b
ac

k 
o

f 
si

d
ew

al
k 

to
 f

en
ce

 f
o

r 
a 

si
d

e 
ya

rd
 f

ac
in

g
to

 S
ch

o
o

l S
tr

ee
t.


P

ro
vi

d
e 

d
et

ai
l f

o
r 

re
ta

in
in

g 
w

al
ls

 u
se

d
 a

lo
n

g 
W

es
t 

St
re

et
 a

n
d

 S
ch

o
o

l S
tr

ee
t 

– 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
n

d
h

ei
gh

t.


P

ro
vi

d
e 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 d

et
ai

l f
o

r 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 s

o
u

n
d

w
al

l.


P

ro
vi

d
e 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 d

et
ai

l f
o

r 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 w

o
o

d
 p

ri
va

cy
 f

e
n

ce
s.


C

o
n

fi
rm

 w
id

th
s 

o
f 

P
U

E’
s 

an
d

 s
h

o
w

 o
n

 s
tr

ee
t 

se
ct

io
n

s.
  N

o
n

e 
sh

o
w

n
 o

n
 S

ch
o

o
l, 

M
o

rg
an

,
W

es
t 

o
r 

P
ri

va
te

 R
es

id
en

ti
al

 S
tr

ee
t 

se
ct

io
n

s.


C

la
ri

fy
 w

h
at

 la
n

d
sc

ap
in

g 
is

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 a
d

ja
ce

n
t 

to
 t

h
e 

so
u

n
d

 w
al

l.


Es

ta
b

lis
h

 1
0

-f
o

o
t-

w
id

e 
P

U
E’

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

p
as

eo
s 

(f
o

r 
w

al
kw

ay
 a

n
d

 a
ss

o
ci

at
e

d
 li

gh
ti

n
g)

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l r

ev
ie

w
 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L 

O
F 

IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
T 

P
LA

N
S 

1
3

.
D

u
ri

n
g 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
, a

 d
es

ig
n

at
e

d
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 p
er

so
n

 w
it

h
 p

h
o

n
e 

n
u

m
b

er
 s

h
al

l b
e

p
o

st
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 s
it

e.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

1
4

.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e 
ap

p
ro

va
l o

f 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

p
la

n
s,

 t
h

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l s

u
b

m
it

 a
 p

h
as

in
g 

p
la

n
 if

 s
o

d
es

ir
ed

.  
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

th
e 

p
h

as
in

g 
p

la
n

 s
h

al
l b

e 
co

n
cu

rr
en

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
ap

p
ro

va
l o

f 
th

e

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 p

la
n

s 
an

d
 m

ad
e 

a 
p

ar
t 

th
er

eo
f.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

1
5

.
A

ll 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
sh

al
l 

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

Tr
av

is
 A

ir
 F

o
rc

e 
B

as
e 

La
n

d
 U

se
 C

o
m

p
at

ib
ili

ty
 P

la
n

co
m

p
at

ib
ili

ty
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

an
d

 c
ri

te
ri

a.
  

Th
is

 s
h

al
l 

b
e 

ac
co

m
p

lis
h

ed
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 t
h

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

p
ro

je
ct

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 p

la
n

s.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

1
6

.
C

o
n

cu
rr

en
t 

w
it

h
 

th
e 

su
b

m
it

ta
l 

o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s,
 

th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l 
su

b
m

it
 

fi
n

al

la
n

d
sc

ap
e 

p
la

n
s 

th
at

 in
cl

u
d

e
 p

ar
k 

an
d

 o
p

en
 s

p
ac

e 
ar

ea
s,

 s
tr

ee
t 

fr
o

n
ta

ge
s,

 s
h

ar
ed

 p
as

eo
s 

an
d

d
et

ai
le

d
 t

yp
ic

al
 f

ro
n

t 
an

d
 s

id
e 

ya
rd

 la
n

d
sc

ap
e 

p
la

n
s 

to
 t

h
e 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

w
h

ic
h

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 T
it

le
 2

0,
 W

at
e

r-
Ef

fi
ci

en
t 

La
n

d
sc

ap
in

g,
 o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

Su
is

u
n

 C
it

y 
M

u
n

ic
ip

al

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

n
d

 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

126



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e4
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

C
o

d
e 

an
d

 t
h

e 
th

en
 c

u
rr

en
t 

St
at

e 
M

o
d

el
 W

at
er

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

La
n

d
sc

ap
e 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 a

s 
ap

p
lic

ab
le

.  

Th
is

 p
la

n
 w

ill
 in

cl
u

d
e 

al
l f

en
ci

n
g 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 m
at

er
ia

l a
n

d
 m

u
st

 b
e 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 b

y 
th

e 

C
it

y 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 in
st

al
la

ti
o

n
. 

1
7

.
Th

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l p

ro
vi

d
e 

p
as

si
ve

 r
ec

re
at

io
n

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
ry

st
al

Sc
h

o
o

l P
ar

k 
C

o
n

ce
p

tu
al

 P
la

n
 a

s 
in

cl
u

d
ed

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
C

ry
st

al
 S

ch
o

o
l P

la
n

n
ed

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

P
er

m
it

.  
M

in
o

r 
va

ri
at

io
n

s 
to

 t
h

e 
ap

p
ro

ve
d

 C
o

n
ce

p
tu

al
 D

es
ig

n
 m

ay
 b

e 
ap

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y 

th
e

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ir

ec
to

r.
 P

la
n

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 a

re
a 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
vi

ew
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y 

th
e

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ir

ec
to

r.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

1
8

.
Th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 b

io
re

te
n

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 p
ar

k 
sh

al
l b

e 
d

es
ig

n
ed

 t
o

: m
ax

im
iz

e 
ae

st
h

et
ic

q
u

al
it

ie
s 

o
f 

th
e 

p
ar

k;
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 p
ar

k 
fe

at
u

re
s 

ar
e 

n
o

t 
in

u
n

d
at

ed
 d

u
ri

n
g 

st
o

rm
 e

ve
n

ts
; 

an
d

,

m
in

im
iz

e 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 h

az
ar

d
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 s
to

rm
 w

at
er

.  
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

is
 jo

in
t 

fa
ci

lit
y 

sh
al

l b
e

co
m

p
le

te
d

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 i

ss
u

an
ce

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g 
p

er
m

it
s 

fo
r 

lo
ts

 4
7 

th
ro

u
gh

 7
8 

(h
o

m
es

 e
as

t 
o

f 
W

e
st

St
re

et
).

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

1
9

.
A

ll 
b

io
re

te
n

ti
o

n
 a

re
as

 s
h

al
l 

b
e 

d
es

ig
n

ed
 a

n
d

 l
an

d
sc

ap
ed

 i
n

 a
n

 a
es

th
et

ic
al

ly
 p

le
as

in
g 

m
an

n
er

w
it

h
 p

er
im

et
e

r 
p

la
n

ti
n

gs
 o

f 
tr

ee
s,

 s
h

ru
b

s 
an

d
 g

ro
u

n
d

co
ve

rs
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

2
0

.
N

o
 c

h
ai

n
 li

n
k 

fe
n

ci
n

g 
sh

al
l b

e 
u

ti
liz

ed
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

2
1

.
Th

e 
re

si
d

en
ti

al
 p

ro
je

ct
 s

h
al

l c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
Su

is
u

n
 C

it
y 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 C
o

d
e 

b
y 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

an
 a

re
a

in
 p

ri
va

te
 y

ar
d

s,
 a

s 
n

o
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
re

ci
se

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

P
la

n
, 

fo
r 

re
fu

se
 c

o
n

ta
in

er
s.

 A

co
n

cr
et

e
 p

ad
 o

f 
ad

eq
u

at
e 

si
ze

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ga

rb
ag

e 
an

d
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

co
n

ta
in

er
s 

sh
al

l 
b

e 
p

ro
vi

d
ed

b
eh

in
d

 t
h

e 
si

d
e 

fe
n

ce
 o

f 
ea

ch
 p

ar
ce

l. 
 F

u
rt

h
er

m
o

re
, t

h
e 

p
at

h
w

ay
 in

 t
h

e 
si

d
e 

ya
rd

 s
h

al
l b

e 
w

id
e

en
o

u
gh

 s
o

 t
h

at
 t

h
er

e 
is

 e
n

o
u

gh
 r

o
o

m
 f

o
r 

fo
o

t 
tr

af
fi

c 
to

 p
as

s 
b

y 
p

ar
ke

d
 g

ar
b

ag
e 

an
d

 r
ec

yc
lin

g

co
n

ta
in

er
s.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

2
2

.
Th

e 
d

ev
el

o
p

er
 s

h
al

l 
co

n
st

ru
ct

 a
 b

ar
ri

er
 f

o
r 

p
ri

va
cy

 a
lo

n
g 

th
e 

w
e

st
 b

o
u

n
d

ar
y 

to
 s

ep
ar

at
e

 t
h

e

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
ra

il 
ya

rd
s.

  
M

in
im

u
m

 b
ar

ri
er

 h
ei

gh
ts

 s
h

al
l b

e 
8

’ 
h

ig
h

 a
b

o
ve

 s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g

gr
ad

e 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 d
et

ai
ls

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l P
la

n
n

ed
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
P

er
m

it
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

127



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e5
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

Th
e 

fa
ce

 o
f 

w
al

l 
th

at
 f

ac
es

 t
o

w
ar

d
 t

h
e 

ra
il 

ya
rd

 s
h

al
l i

n
co

rp
o

ra
te

 a
n

 a
n

ti
-g

ra
ff

it
i 

su
rf

ac
e 

an
d

 

su
rv

ei
lla

n
ce

 c
am

er
as

 s
h

al
l b

e 
in

st
al

le
d

 t
o

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e 

w
e

st
 f

ac
e 

o
f 

th
e 

so
u

n
d

 w
al

l. 

2
3

.
Ea

ch
 u

n
it

 m
u

st
 h

av
e 

fi
re

 s
p

ri
n

kl
er

s.
 T

h
is

 i
n

cl
u

d
es

 g
ar

ag
e,

 a
tt

ic
, 

an
d

 c
o

n
ce

al
ed

 s
p

ac
es

.  
Th

e

sy
st

em
 m

ay
 b

e 
ap

p
ro

ve
d

 t
o

 r
u

n
 o

ff
 t

h
e 

d
o

m
es

ti
c 

w
at

er
 s

u
p

p
ly

. 
If

 t
h

e 
d

o
m

es
ti

c 
w

at
er

 s
u

p
p

ly

is
 u

se
d

 t
h

e 
w

at
er

 m
et

er
 m

u
st

 b
e 

ra
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
sl

y 
su

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e 
fi

re
 s

p
ri

n
kl

er
 f

lo
w

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
.  

SI
D

 c
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
va

l w
ill

 b
e 

n
ee

d
ed

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

2
4

.
Fi

re
 h

yd
ra

n
ts

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y 

th
e 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

p
ri

o
r 

to

ap
p

ro
va

l o
f 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
p

la
n

s.
 F

ir
e 

h
yd

ra
n

ts
 s

h
al

l m
ee

t 
ci

ty
 a

n
d

 S
ID

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
w

it
h

 1
-4

 ½
”

an
d

 2
- 

2
 ½

” 
co

n
n

ec
ti

o
n

s.
  T

h
e 

w
at

er
 m

ai
n

s 
n

ee
d

 t
o

 b
e 

lo
o

p
ed

 t
o

 p
re

ve
n

t 
sa

n
d

 a
n

d
 g

ra
ve

l f
ro

m

co
lle

ct
in

g 
in

 d
ea

d
 e

n
d

 r
u

n
s.

 H
yd

ra
n

t 
p

la
ce

m
en

t 
m

u
st

 b
e 

sp
ac

ed
 n

o
 m

o
re

 t
h

an
 3

00
’ a

p
ar

t.
 W

it
h

n
o

 m
o

re
 t

h
an

 1
50

’ 
fr

o
m

 a
n

y 
p

ro
p

er
ty

. 
 N

o
rm

al
ly

, 
th

e 
fi

rs
t 

h
yd

ra
n

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
ed

 a
t 

th
e

ri
gh

t 
h

an
d

 c
o

rn
er

 o
f 

a 
st

re
et

 d
ic

ta
te

d
 b

y 
th

e 
d

ir
ec

ti
o

n
 t

h
e

 f
ir

e 
en

gi
n

e 
w

ill
 r

es
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

fi
re

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

2
5

.
Th

e 
p

ri
va

te
 s

tr
ee

ts
 b

et
w

ee
n

 g
ar

ag
es

 s
h

al
l b

e 
d

es
ig

n
at

ed
 a

s 
“F

ir
e 

La
n

e”
 a

n
d

 p
o

st
ed

 “
FI

R
E 

LA
N

E-
 

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

.”
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

2
6

.
St

re
et

s,
 p

ri
va

te
 r

o
ad

s,
 a

n
d

 d
ri

vi
n

g 
su

rf
ac

es
 m

u
st

 b
e 

d
es

ig
n

ed
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e 

w
ei

gh
t 

o
f 

fi
re

ap
p

ar
at

u
s 

as
 s

p
ec

if
ie

d
 in

 C
it

y 
St

an
d

ar
d

s.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

2
7

.
A

ll 
b

u
ild

in
gs

 m
u

st
 b

e 
gi

ve
n

 a
n

 a
d

d
re

ss
 a

n
d

 b
e 

m
ar

ke
d

 o
n

 t
h

e 
fi

re
 l

an
e 

si
d

e 
w

it
h

 6
” 

n
u

m
b

er
s

vi
si

b
le

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

ro
ad

.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

2
8

.
A

ll 
ro

ad
s 

m
u

st
 b

e 
n

am
ed

. R
o

ad
 n

am
es

 s
h

al
l b

e 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

fo
r 

re
vi

ew

an
d

 a
p

p
ro

va
l p

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

p
la

n
s.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

29
.

Th
e 

Im
pr

o
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
ns

 
sh

al
l 

in
cl

u
d

e 
a 

G
en

er
al

 
N

o
te

 
th

at
: 

an
y 

re
vi

si
o

ns
 

to
 

th
e 

ap
pr

o
ve

d

Im
pr

o
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
an

d/
o

r 
C

it
y 

St
an

d
ar

d
s,

 i
n

cl
u

di
n

g 
th

o
se

 d
ue

 t
o

 f
ie

ld
 c

o
nd

it
io

n
s,

 s
ha

ll 
re

q
u

ir
e

re
vi

ew
 a

n
d 

w
ri

tt
en

 a
p

p
ro

va
l 

b
y 

th
e 

C
it

y 
En

gi
ne

er
. 

 T
h

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l 

h
av

e 
th

e 
re

vi
se

d
 p

la
ns

p
re

p
ar

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pr

o
je

ct
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 D
es

ig
ne

r a
n

d 
sh

al
l h

av
e 

th
e 

re
vi

se
d 

p
la

n
s 

su
bm

it
te

d 
fo

r r
ev

ie
w

an
d

 a
p

pr
o

va
l b

y 
th

e 
C

it
y 

En
gi

n
ee

r.
  A

ny
 r

ev
is

io
ns

 t
o

 t
he

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
re

su
lt

in
g 

fr
o

m
 t

h
es

e 
or

o
th

er
 c

o
nd

it
io

ns
 c

o
n

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
 s

h
al

l b
e 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 w
ri

tt
en

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

En
gi

n
ee

r.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

128



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e6
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

30
.

W
h

en
 s

u
bm

it
ti

n
g 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t P
la

ns
, t

he
 e

n
gi

ne
er

’s
 e

st
im

at
e 

o
f c

o
st

s 
fo

r t
he

 p
u

b
lic

 im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 s

h
al

l b
e 

in
cl

u
d

ed
.  

Th
is

 e
st

im
at

e 
sh

al
l s

ho
w

 q
ua

n
ti

ti
es

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s

u
n

it
 p

ri
ce

s 
us

ed
 t

o
 o

b
ta

in
 t

he
 fi

n
al

 c
o

st
 o

f e
ac

h
 it

em
 a

n
d 

is
 s

u
bj

ec
t 

to
 C

it
y 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 a

p
p

ro
va

l.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

31
.

Th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l 
pa

y 
al

l 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 
fe

es
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g 

p
la

n
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d

 i
n

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 f

ee
s,

 a
s

es
ta

b
lis

he
d

 b
y 

th
e 

C
it

y 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 
Fe

e 
Sc

he
d

u
le

 a
t 

th
e 

ti
m

e 
o

f s
u

bm
it

ta
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

s.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

32
.

Th
e 

A
p

pl
ic

an
t 

sh
al

l p
ay

 S
u

is
u

n
-S

o
la

no
 W

at
er

 A
ut

ho
ri

ty
 (

SS
W

A
) 

fo
r 

p
la

n
 c

he
ck

 a
n

d 
in

sp
ec

ti
o

n 
fe

es

w
it

h
in

 3
0 

ca
le

n
da

r 
da

ys
 u

po
n

 r
ec

ei
pt

 o
f i

n
vo

ic
e 

fr
o

m
 th

e 
So

la
no

 Ir
ri

ga
ti

o
n

 D
is

tr
ic

t (
SI

D
).

  T
he

 in
vo

ic
e

w
ill

 b
e 

fo
r 

ac
tu

al
 e

xp
en

se
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

SS
W

A
 f

o
r 

p
ro

vi
di

n
g 

p
la

n
 c

he
ck

in
g 

an
d 

in
sp

ec
ti

o
n 

se
rv

ic
es

fo
r 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

. 
 A

t 
th

e 
ti

m
e 

o
f 

su
bm

it
ta

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s,
 A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l p

ay
 a

 d
ep

o
si

t 
o

f

$2
,5

00
 t

o
 b

e 
ap

p
lie

d
 t

o
w

ar
ds

 S
SW

A
 fe

es
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

33
.

Th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l o
bt

ai
n

 a
ll 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 p

er
m

it
s 

fr
o

m
 a

ll 
ap

p
lic

ab
le

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 d
ev

el
o

pm
en

t.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

3
4

.
Th

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l 

p
re

p
ar

e 
a 

n
o

ti
ce

, 
su

b
je

ct
 t

o
 t

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 b

y 
th

e 
C

it
y 

En
gi

n
ee

r,
 t

h
at

 l
is

ts
 a

ll

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 m

it
ig

at
io

n
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

, p
er

m
it

te
d

 h
o

u
rs

 o
f 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
, a

n
d

 id
en

ti
fi

es
 a

 c
o

n
ta

ct

p
er

so
n

 a
s 

w
e

ll 
as

 t
h

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
w

h
o

 w
ill

 r
es

p
o

n
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

el
at

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
. 

Th
e 

n
o

ti
ce

 s
h

al
l 

b
e 

m
ai

le
d

 t
o

 p
ro

p
er

ty
 o

w
n

er
s 

an
d

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

it
h

in
 a

 3
0

0
-f

o
o

t

ra
d

iu
s 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e 

su
b

je
ct

 s
it

e,
 a

t 
le

as
t 

te
n

 (
1

0
) 

ca
le

n
d

ar
 d

ay
s 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e 

st
ar

t 
o

f 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

3
5

.
A

n
y 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
w

e
lls

 s
h

al
l b

e 
ab

an
d

o
n

ed
 p

er
 C

o
u

n
ty

 o
f 

So
la

n
o

 H
ea

lt
h

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

st
an

d
ar

d
s 

p
ri

o
r

to
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
p

ro
p

er
ty

. 
 O

w
n

er
 s

h
al

l 
su

b
m

it
 d

o
cu

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s

D
ir

ec
to

r 
th

at
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 s
at

is
fi

ed
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 a
n

y 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

ct
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
an

d
 P

ri
o

r 
to

 
Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

 f
o

r 
fi

rs
t 

h
o

m
e 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

3
6

.
V

is
u

al
 o

b
st

ru
ct

io
n

s 
o

ve
r 

th
re

e
 fe

et
 in

 h
ei

gh
t 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e 
al

lo
w

e
d

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
d

ri
ve

r'
s 

si
gh

t 
tr

ia
n

gl
e

n
ea

r 
d

ri
ve

w
ay

s 
an

d
 c

o
rn

er
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 a
llo

w
 a

n
 u

n
o

b
st

ru
ct

ed
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

o
n

co
m

in
g 

tr
af

fi
c.

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 a

t 
d

ri
ve

w
ay

s 
an

d
 c

o
rn

er
s 

ar
e 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 t
h

e 
re

vi
ew

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
va

l 
o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y

En
gi

n
ee

r.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

129



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e7
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

3
7

.
A

n
y 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
fr

o
n

ta
ge

, 
o

r 
st

re
et

, 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i

n
 t

h
e 

o
p

in
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

En
gi

n
ee

r,
 a

re

cu
rr

en
tl

y 
d

am
ag

ed
 o

r 
b

ec
o

m
e 

d
am

ag
ed

 a
s 

a 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

w
o

rk
 s

h
al

l b
e 

re
m

o
ve

d
 a

n
d

 r
ep

la
ce

d
 a

s

re
q

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 t

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
St

an
d

ar
d

s,
 o

r 
as

 d
ir

ec
te

d
. 

 P
ri

o
r 

to
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

w
o

rk
, 

D
ev

el
o

p
er

 s
h

al
l

p
er

fo
rm

 a
 w

al
k-

th
ro

u
gh

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

st
af

f 
an

d
 t

ak
e 

d
at

e
-s

ta
m

p
ed

 p
h

o
to

s

o
f 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
si

te
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
an

d
 d

u
ri

n
g 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

3
8

.
M

ea
su

re
s 

to
 r

em
ed

ia
te

 o
n

-s
it

e 
co

n
ta

m
in

at
io

n
 a

s 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 i
n

 t
h

e 
R

em
ed

ia
l 

A
ct

io
n

 W
o

rk
p

la
n

Fo
rm

er
 C

ry
st

al
 M

id
d

le
 S

ch
o

o
l 

re
p

o
rt

 p
re

p
ar

ed
 b

y 
R

av
en

 R
es

ea
rc

h
 a

n
d

 d
at

e
d

 A
u

gu
st

 1
2

, 
2

01
0

sh
al

l 
b

e 
in

co
rp

o
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 P

ro
je

ct
 I

m
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s.
  

Su
ch

 r
em

ed
ia

ti
o

n
 s

h
al

l 
b

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d

p
ri

o
r 

to
 is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
fi

rs
t 

d
w

el
lin

g 
b

u
ild

in
g 

p
er

m
it

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
an

d
 P

ri
o

r 
to

 
Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

  

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

3
9

.
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

ns
 s

h
al

l s
ho

w
 t

h
e 

in
st

al
la

ti
o

n
 o

f c
o

n
cr

et
e 

cu
rb

, g
u

tt
er

, s
id

ew
al

ks
, c

u
rb

 r
am

p
s 

an
d

d
ri

ve
w

ay
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 o
n

 a
ll 

st
re

et
 fr

o
nt

ag
es

.  
Th

e 
Ty

pi
ca

l S
tr

ee
t S

ec
ti

o
n

s 
m

us
t i

n
cl

u
d

e 
ag

gr
eg

at
e

b
as

e 
m

at
er

ia
l u

n
de

r 
al

l c
o

nc
re

te
 a

n
d 

al
l a

sp
h

al
t 

im
pr

o
ve

m
en

ts
 p

er
 C

it
y 

o
f 

Su
is

u
n

 C
it

y 
St

an
d

ar
d

s.

Th
e 

d
ri

ve
w

ay
s 

an
d 

cu
rb

 r
am

p
s 

sh
al

l c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h 

th
e 

St
at

e 
an

d 
Fe

d
er

al
 a

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

 r
eg

u
la

ti
o

ns
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

4
0

.
Th

e 
m

in
im

u
m

 lo
n

gi
tu

d
in

al
 s

lo
p

es
 o

f 
gu

tt
e

r 
fl

o
w

 li
n

es
 s

h
al

l b
e 

0
.0

05
4

.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

4
1

.
Th

e 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

sh
al

l 
sh

o
w

 t
h

e 
in

st
al

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

st
re

et
 s

ig
n

ag
e 

an
d

 p
av

em
en

t 
m

ar
ki

n
gs

an
d

 s
tr

ip
in

g.
  

A
ll 

p
av

em
en

t 
m

ar
ki

n
gs

 a
n

d
 s

tr
ip

in
g 

sh
al

l b
e 

th
er

m
o

p
la

st
ic

 o
r 

as
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

C
it

y

En
gi

n
ee

r.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

42
.

Se
p

ar
at

io
n

 b
et

w
ee

n 
p

ro
po

se
d

 w
at

er
 a

n
d

 s
an

it
ar

y 
se

w
er

 p
ip

es
 s

h
al

l m
ee

t 
th

e 
la

te
st

 S
u

is
u

n
-S

o
la

n
o

W
at

er
 A

ut
ho

ri
ty

 (
SS

W
A

) D
es

ig
n

 S
ta

n
da

rd
s,

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

ti
o

ns
, a

n
d 

St
an

d
ar

d
 D

ra
w

in
gs

.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

4
3

.
Th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 w

at
er

lin
e 

is
 to

 b
e 

lo
o

p
ed

.  
Th

e 
w

at
e

r 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ar
e 

to
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

la
te

st
 S

u
is

u
n

-

So
la

n
o

 W
at

e
r 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 
(S

SW
A

) 
D

es
ig

n
 

St
an

d
ar

d
s,

 
St

an
d

ar
d

 
Sp

ec
if

ic
at

io
n

s,
 a

n
d

 
St

an
d

ar
d

D
ra

w
in

gs
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

4
4

.
D

ir
ec

t 
ta

p
p

in
g 

o
f 

C
it

y 
o

r 
SS

W
A

 w
at

er
 m

ai
n

s 
is

 n
o

t 
p

er
m

it
te

d
.  

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l i
n

st
al

l t
h

e 
re

q
u

ir
ed

fi
tt

in
gs

 i
n

 t
h

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

o
r 

n
ew

 m
ai

n
 l

in
es

 t
o

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

e
 t

h
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 w
at

er
 s

ys
te

m
. 

 N
o

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

130



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e8
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
w

at
e

r 
m

ai
n

s 
sh

al
l 

b
e 

sh
u

t 
d

o
w

n
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
sp

ec
if

ic
 p

er
m

is
si

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
it

y 
En

gi
n

ee
r 

an
d

 

th
e 

So
la

n
o

 Ir
ri

ga
ti

o
n

 D
is

tr
ic

t.
 

 S
to

rm
 d

ra
in

 d
es

ig
n

 s
h

al
l c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
it

y’
s 

D
es

ig
n

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s,
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
 s

p
ec

if
ic

at
io

n
s,

 a
n

d
 

d
et

ai
ls

. 

an
d

 d
u

ri
n

g 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 

45
.

Th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l o
bt

ai
n

 a
ll 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 p

er
m

it
s 

fo
r 

st
o

rm
 w

at
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

46
.

A
p

p
lic

an
ts

 w
ho

se
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

di
st

u
rb

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
o

re
 a

cr
es

 o
f s

o
il 

o
r 

w
ho

se
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

d
is

tu
rb

 le
ss

 t
h

an
 o

n
e

ac
re

 b
u

t 
ar

e 
p

ar
t 

o
f a

 la
rg

er
 c

o
m

m
o

n 
p

la
n 

o
f d

ev
el

o
pm

en
t 

th
at

 in
 t

o
ta

l d
is

tu
rb

s 
o

ne
 o

r 
m

o
re

 a
cr

es
,

sh
al

l 
o

bt
ai

n 
co

ve
ra

ge
 u

n
d

er
 t

h
e 

G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it

 f
o

r 
D

is
ch

ar
ge

s 
o

f 
St

o
rm

 W
at

er
 A

ss
o

ci
at

ed
 w

it
h

C
o

ns
tr

u
ct

io
n

 A
ct

iv
it

y 
(S

ta
te

 W
at

er
 R

es
o

ur
ce

s 
C

o
nt

ro
l B

o
ar

d
 C

o
ns

tr
u

ct
io

n
 G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it
, 

O
rd

er

N
o

. 
R

S-
20

15
-0

04
9 

).
  

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 t
h

is
 p

er
m

it
 i

nc
lu

de
s 

cl
ea

ri
n

g,
 g

ra
d

in
g 

an
d

d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

s 
to

 t
h

e 
gr

o
u

n
d 

su
ch

 a
s 

st
o

ck
p

ili
n

g,
 o

r 
ex

ca
va

ti
o

n
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

4
7

.
Th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
’s

 S
to

rm
w

at
er

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

P
la

n
 s

h
al

l 
co

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
C

it
y’

s 
M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 R

eg
io

n
al

 P
er

m
it

(M
R

P
) 

an
d

 S
to

rm
w

at
er

 C
.3

 G
u

id
eb

o
o

k.
 A

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s,
 t

h
e 

p
o

n
d

in
g 

d
ep

th
s,

p
ip

e 
si

zi
n

g,
 t

im
e 

o
f 

re
le

as
e,

 a
n

d
 s

to
ra

ge
 f

o
r 

th
e 

b
io

re
te

n
ti

o
n

 f
ac

ili
ti

es
 s

h
al

l b
e 

ca
lc

u
la

te
d

. 
 T

h
e

p
ro

je
ct

 s
h

al
l n

o
t 

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

 a
n

y 
p

o
n

d
in

g 
n

u
is

an
ce

 a
n

d
 s

h
al

l e
lim

in
at

e 
th

e 
p

o
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
fl

o
o

d
in

g

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 p

ar
k 

ad
ja

ce
n

t 
to

 t
h

e 
b

io
re

te
n

ti
o

n
 f

ac
ili

ty
. 

 T
h

e 
C

it
y 

En
gi

n
ee

r 
re

se
rv

es
 t

h
e

ri
gh

t 
to

 i
n

st
it

u
te

 s
tr

in
ge

n
t 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ab

o
ve

 a
n

d
 b

ey
o

n
d

 t
h

e 
M

R
P

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

St
o

rm
w

at
e

r 
C

.3

G
u

id
eb

o
o

k 
fo

r 
th

e 
b

io
re

te
n

ti
o

n
 f

ac
ili

ty
 a

t 
th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 p

ar
k.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

4
8

.
D

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

p
re

p
ar

at
io

n
 o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s,

 A
p

p
lic

an
t’

s 
ci

vi
l 

en
gi

n
ee

r 
sh

al
l 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
fl

o
w

ca
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 s
to

rm
 d

ra
in

s.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

4
9

.
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

sh
al

l i
n

cl
u

d
e 

a 
Si

te
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 p
re

p
ar

ed
 b

y 
a 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 C

iv
il 

En
gi

ne
er

an
d

 s
h

al
l c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h 
th

e 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 s

o
ils

 r
ep

o
rt

 fo
r 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 a
n

d 
th

e 
C

it
y’

s 
O

rd
in

an
ce

p
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l b
y 

th
e 

C
it

y 
En

gi
n

ee
r.

  I
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

, t
h

e 
Si

te
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
P

la
n

 s
h

al
l b

e 
p

re
p

ar
ed

to
 t

h
e 

sa
ti

sf
ac

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

En
gi

n
ee

r,
 a

n
d

 i
s 

to
 r

ef
le

ct
 a

 p
o

si
ti

ve
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

d
ra

in

in
le

ts
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

as
 t

o
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 d

ra
in

 in
le

t.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

131

http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/stormwtr/gen_const.html#const_permit
http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/stormwtr/gen_const.html#const_permit


Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e9
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

5
0

.
W

h
er

e 
fe

as
ib

le
, p

ar
ki

n
g 

lo
ts

 a
n

d
 o

th
er

 im
p

er
vi

o
u

s 
ar

ea
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

d
es

ig
n

ed
 t

o
 d

ra
in

 s
to

rm
w

at
er

ru
n

o
ff

 t
o

 v
eg

et
at

ed
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

sw
al

es
, 

fi
lt

er
 s

tr
ip

s,
 a

n
d

/o
r 

o
th

er
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
d

ev
ic

es
 t

h
at

 c
an

 b
e

in
te

gr
at

ed
 in

to
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 la
n

d
sc

ap
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

an
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 is
la

n
d

s 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 in

to
 s

to
rm

 d
ra

in

sy
st

em
s.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

5
1

.
Th

e 
m

ax
im

u
m

 a
llo

w
ab

le
 s

lo
p

e 
in

 la
n

d
sc

ap
e 

ar
ea

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
3

:1
, o

r 
as

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y 

C
it

y 
En

gi
n

ee
r.

O
n

e-
fo

o
t 

co
n

cr
et

e 
m

o
w

 s
tr

ip
s 

fo
r 

p
u

b
lic

 l
an

d
sc

ap
in

g 
sh

al
l b

e 
p

ro
vi

d
ed

 a
s 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

it
y

En
gi

n
ee

r.
  D

ra
in

ag
e 

ru
n

o
ff

 t
o

 a
d

ja
ce

n
t 

p
ro

p
er

ty
 s

h
al

l n
o

t 
b

e 
al

lo
w

e
d

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

5
2

.
Th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 s

h
al

l 
in

st
al

l 
o

n
-s

it
e 

d
ec

o
ra

ti
ve

 s
tr

ee
t 

lig
h

ti
n

g 
(a

co
rn

 t
yp

e)
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l

su
b

m
it

 a
 p

h
o

to
m

et
ri

c 
an

al
ys

is
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
fo

r 
re

vi
ew

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
va

l w
it

h
 t

h
e 

P
ro

je
ct

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t

P
la

n
s.

 P
h

o
to

m
et

ri
c 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 s
h

al
l c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
it

y’
s 

st
an

d
ar

d
 s

p
ec

if
ic

at
io

n
s.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

5
3

.
O

n
-s

it
e 

d
ri

ve
w

ay
s/

ro
ad

w
ay

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
m

in
im

u
m

 3
” 

as
p

h
al

t 
co

n
cr

et
e 

o
ve

r 
a 

m
in

im
u

m
 1

5”
 C

la
ss

 2

ag
gr

eg
at

e
 b

as
e 

w
it

h
 r

o
ad

 s
ta

b
ili

za
ti

o
n

 fa
b

ri
c.

  T
h

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l c

o
n

st
ru

ct
 d

ri
ve

w
ay

s/
ro

ad
w

ay
s

in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
K

C
 C

o
n

su
lt

an
ts

, 
G

eo
te

ch
n

ic
al

 E
n

gi
n

ee
ri

n
g 

R
ep

o
rt

 d
at

e
d

 J
u

ly
 1

0
, 

2
01

6

p
re

p
ar

ed
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

5
4

.
La

n
d

sc
ap

in
g 

an
d

 a
u

to
m

at
ic

 i
rr

ig
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
al

l 
ar

ea
s 

o
th

er
 t

h
an

 f
en

ce
d

 p
ri

va
te

 y
ar

d
s 

sh
al

l 
b

e

in
st

al
le

d
 b

y 
th

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t.
  T

h
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l u
ti

liz
e 

C
al

se
n

se
 ir

ri
ga

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
r(

s)
 a

n
d

 H
u

n
te

r

ir
ri

ga
ti

o
n

 h
ea

d
s.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

5
5

.
Th

e 
p

ri
va

te
 s

tr
ee

ts
 s

h
al

l 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

fo
r 

ea
se

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
, 

o
p

er
at

io
n

, 
m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

an
d

 r
ep

ai
r 

o
f 

th
e 

ro
ad

w
ay

 im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 u
ti

lit
ie

s.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

an
d

 P
ri

o
r 

to
 

re
co

rd
at

io
n

 o
f 

Fi
n

al
 

M
ap

 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

5
6

.
A

ll 
fi

n
is

h
 f

lo
o

r 
el

ev
at

io
n

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 F

EM
A

 r
eg

u
la

ti
o

n
s.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

5
7

.
Th

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l 

co
n

st
ru

ct
 a

n
 8

-f
o

o
t 

so
u

n
d

w
al

l 
al

o
n

g 
th

e 
w

es
te

rl
y 

si
d

e 
o

f 
th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d

p
ro

je
ct

. 
 A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l i

n
st

al
l 

vi
d

eo
 c

am
er

a(
s)

 a
t 

th
e 

so
u

n
d

w
al

l 
in

 s
u

ch
 a

 m
an

n
er

 t
o

 m
it

ig
at

e
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

132



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e1
0
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

th
e 

p
o

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

so
u

n
d

w
al

l v
an

d
al

is
m

.  
Th

e 
vi

d
eo

 c
am

er
a 

m
u

st
 b

e 
co

m
p

at
ib

le
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

vi
d

eo
 c

am
er

a 
sy

st
em

 u
se

d
 b

y 
th

e 
Su

is
u

n
 C

it
y 

P
o

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t.

   

5
8

.
D

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

p
re

p
ar

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s,

 A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l 
vi

d
eo

ta
p

e 
an

d
 i

n
sp

ec
t 

th
e

ex
is

ti
n

g 
sa

n
it

ar
y 

se
w

e
r 

lin
es

, 
st

o
rm

 d
ra

in
 l

in
es

, 
an

d
 m

an
h

o
le

s 
fr

o
n

ti
n

g 
th

e 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t.

D
am

ag
ed

 s
an

it
ar

y 
se

w
er

 a
n

d
 s

to
rm

 d
ra

in
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

 s
h

al
l b

e 
sh

o
w

n
 in

 t
h

e 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

fo
r

re
p

la
ce

m
en

t 
an

d
 s

h
al

l b
e 

re
p

la
ce

d
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t’

s 
p

ro
je

ct
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

5
9

.
B

ec
au

se
 o

f 
th

e 
u

se
 c

h
an

ge
 f

ro
m

 a
 s

ch
o

o
l 

to
 s

in
gl

e 
fa

m
ily

 h
o

m
es

, 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l 

d
em

o
n

st
ra

te

w
it

h
 c

al
cu

la
ti

o
n

s 
th

at
 t

h
e 

sa
n

it
ar

y 
se

w
e

r 
fl

o
w

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

ad
ve

rs
e

ly

im
p

ac
t 

th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n
 s

ys
te

m
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

6
0

.
Th

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

o
ve

rh
ea

d
 u

ti
lit

y 
lin

es
 o

n
 t

h
e 

so
u

th
 s

id
es

 o
f 

M
o

rg
an

 S
tr

ee
t 

an
d

 C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

fr
o

n
ti

n
g 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

sh
al

l b
e 

p
la

ce
d

 u
n

d
er

gr
o

u
n

d
. 

 H
o

w
ev

er
, 

th
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
o

ve
rh

ea
d

 l
in

es

cr
o

ss
in

g 
M

o
rg

an
 S

tr
ee

t 
b

et
w

e
en

 S
ch

o
o

l S
tr

ee
t 

an
d

 W
es

t 
St

re
et

 c
an

 r
em

ai
n

 o
ve

rh
ea

d
.  

Th
e 

w
o

o
d

p
o

st
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
p

la
ce

d
 a

t 
th

es
e

 o
ve

rh
ea

d
 c

ro
ss

in
gs

 w
it

h
 a

 d
ec

o
ra

ti
ve

 s
tr

ee
t 

lig
h

t 
(“

ac
o

rn
 t

yp
e”

)

w
it

h
 a

n
 o

ve
rh

ea
d

 p
o

w
er

 p
o

le
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
t.

  
U

n
d

er
gr

o
u

n
d

in
g 

o
f 

M
o

rg
an

 S
tr

ee
t 

u
ti

lit
ie

s 
sh

al
l b

e

co
m

p
le

te
d

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
b

u
ild

in
g 

p
er

m
it

s 
fo

r 
lo

ts
 4

7
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 5
4

 (
d

w
e

lli
n

gs
 e

as
t 

o
f 

W
es

t

St
re

et
).

 U
n

d
er

gr
o

u
n

d
in

g 
o

f 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 S

tr
ee

t 
u

ti
lit

ie
s 

sh
al

l 
b

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 i
ss

u
an

ce
 o

f

b
u

ild
in

g 
p

er
m

it
s 

fo
r 

lo
ts

 1
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 4
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
an

d
 P

ri
o

r 
to

 
Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

 f
o

r 
fi

rs
t 

h
o

m
e 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

6
1

.
Th

e 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

p
la

n
s 

sh
al

l 
b

e 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

Fa
ir

fi
el

d
-S

u
is

u
n

 S
ew

e
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
(F

SS
D

) 
fo

r

re
vi

ew
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

va
l, 

w
it

h
 r

es
p

ec
t 

to
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

6
2

.
Th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t’

s 
si

gn
at

u
re

 b
lo

ck
 s

h
al

l b
e 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 o

n
 t

it
le

 s
h

ee
ts

 o
f 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
p

la
n

s 
co

n
ta

in
in

g

D
is

tr
ic

t 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 T
h

e 
si

gn
at

u
re

 b
lo

ck
 m

u
st

 b
e 

si
gn

ed
 a

n
d

 d
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
FS

SD
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 b
id

 a
n

d
/o

r

co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 o

f 
an

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

6
3

.
Th

e 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

p
la

n
s 

sh
al

l 
co

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
la

te
st

 F
SS

D
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
 s

p
ec

if
ic

at
io

n
s,

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

d
et

ai
ls

, d
es

ig
n

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s,
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
 G

e
n

er
al

 N
o

te
s,

 d
ew

at
er

in
g 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
, a

n
d

 r
e

gu
la

ti
o

n
s.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

6
4

.
Th

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l 

su
b

m
it

 s
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
 e

vi
d

en
ce

 o
f 

in
su

ra
n

ce
 t

o
 t

h
e 

FS
SD

. 
 A

ls
o

, 
th

e 
FS

SD
, 

it
s

o
ff

ic
er

s,
 d

ir
ec

to
rs

, 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 s
h

al
l 

b
e 

n
am

ed
 a

s 
an

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 i

n
su

re
d

. 
 A

ll
P

ri
o

r 
to

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
s 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

133



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e1
1
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

in
su

ra
n

ce
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 o
f 

th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

an
d

 i
ts

 c
o

n
tr

ac
to

rs
 b

y 
th

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

Su
is

u
n

 C
it

y 
sh

al
l 

b
e 

af
fo

rd
ed

 t
o

 t
h

e 
FS

SD
 a

s 
w

el
l. 

6
5

.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 c
o

m
m

en
ci

n
g 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
, s

u
b

m
it

ta
ls

 r
el

at
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

FS
SD

’s
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

 s
h

al
l b

e 
su

b
m

it
te

d

to
 t

h
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
fo

r 
re

vi
ew

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
va

l. 
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 w

o
rk

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

es
e 

it
em

s 
an

d
 t

h
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
sh

al
l n

o
t 

co
m

m
en

ce
 u

n
ti

l t
h

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

h
as

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 t
h

e 
su

b
m

it
ta

ls
 in

 w
ri

ti
n

g.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

6
6

.
Th

e 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

p
la

n
s,

 F
in

al
 M

ap
 a

n
d

 P
ar

ce
l M

ap
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

su
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e 
So

la
n

o
 Ir

ri
ga

ti
o

n

D
is

tr
ic

t 
(S

ID
) 

fo
r 

re
vi

ew
, a

p
p

ro
va

l a
n

d
 s

ig
n

at
u

re
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

6
7

.
Th

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l p

ay
 S

SW
A

 P
la

n
/M

ap
 R

ev
ie

w
 F

ee
s 

u
p

o
n

 s
u

b
m

it
ta

l o
f 

th
e 

p
la

n
s 

an
d

 m
ap

s 
fo

r

re
vi

ew
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

6
8

.
Th

e 
w

at
er

 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 
w

ill
 

b
e 

lo
o

p
ed

 
to

 
en

su
re

 
ad

eq
u

at
e 

fl
o

w
 

an
d

 
d

es
ig

n
ed

 
to

 
th

e

sa
ti

sf
ac

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
Su

is
u

n
-S

o
la

n
o

 W
at

er
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

6
9

.
A

n
y 

ex
te

n
si

o
n

 a
n

d
/o

r 
co

n
n

ec
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

st
u

b
s 

o
r 

w
at

er
 m

ai
n

 s
h

al
l b

e 
in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h

th
e 

Su
is

u
n

-S
o

la
n

o
 W

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 (
SS

W
A

) 
St

an
d

ar
d

 S
p

ec
if

ic
at

io
n

s,
 a

n
d

 a
t 

th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t’

s

ex
p

en
se

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

7
0

.
W

at
e

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
la

te
ra

ls
 s

h
al

l n
o

t 
b

e 
lo

ca
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 d

ri
ve

w
ay

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

es
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

7
1

.
P

er
 t

h
e 

SS
W

A
 C

ro
ss

-C
o

n
n

ec
ti

o
n

 C
o

n
tr

o
l R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 N
o

. 9
9

-0
1

, a
ll 

ty
p

es
 o

f 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 b

u
ild

in
gs

an
d

 l
an

d
sc

ap
e 

ir
ri

ga
ti

o
n

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 i
n

cl
u

d
e 

an
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 b

ac
kf

lo
w

 p
re

ve
n

ti
o

n

as
se

m
b

ly
, 

at
 t

h
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t’

s 
ex

p
en

se
. 

 P
ri

o
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
en

ci
n

g 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 w
o

rk
, 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

lo
ca

ti
o

n
, s

e
rv

ic
e 

si
ze

 a
n

d
 f

lo
w

-r
at

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
b

ac
kf

lo
w

 p
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 a

ss
em

b
ly

 s
h

al
l b

e 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o

SI
D

 f
o

r 
re

vi
ew

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
va

l. 
 B

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 c

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 u
se

, 
a 

R
ed

u
ce

d
 P

re
ss

u
re

P
ri

n
ci

p
le

 (
R

P
P

) 
A

ss
em

b
ly

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 f

o
r 

ea
ch

 o
f 

th
e 

d
o

m
es

ti
c 

w
at

er
 s

e
rv

ic
es

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

7
2

.
Th

e 
SS

W
A

 C
ro

ss
-C

o
n

n
ec

ti
o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

l R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 9

9
-0

1
, f

ir
e 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 s
ys

te
m

s 
ar

e 
re

q
u

ir
ed

to
 i

n
cl

u
d

e 
an

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 b
ac

kf
lo

w
 p

re
ve

n
ti

o
n

 a
ss

em
b

ly
, 

at
 t

h
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
er

’s
 e

xp
en

se
. 

 P
ri

o
r 

to

co
m

m
en

ci
n

g 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 w
o

rk
, 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

, 
se

rv
ic

e 
si

ze
 a

n
d

 f
lo

w
-r

at
e

 f
o

r 
th

e 
fi

re

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 s
ys

te
m

 s
h

al
l 

b
e 

su
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 S
ID

 f
o

r 
re

vi
ew

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
va

l. 
 B

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

134



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e1
2
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 u
se

, 
a 

D
o

u
b

le
 C

h
ec

k-
D

et
ec

to
r 

C
h

ec
k 

(D
C

D
C

) 
A

ss
em

b
ly

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 f

o
r 

ea
ch

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
re

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 s
ys

te
m

s.
 

P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 R
EC

O
R

D
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
FI

N
A

L 
M

A
P

 

73
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 F

in
al

 M
ap

 a
p

p
ro

va
l, 

th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t s

h
al

l e
it

he
r 

es
ta

b
lis

h 
a 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
 (C

FD
)

an
d

/o
r 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 t

ax
 z

o
n

e 
an

d
/o

r 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
d

is
tr

ic
t 

(M
A

D
) o

r 
an

ne
x 

su
ch

 p
ro

pe
rt

y

to
 a

n 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

C
FD

 a
n

d/
o

r 
M

A
D

 a
n

d 
es

ta
b

lis
h 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 t

ax
 z

o
ne

(s
),

 a
s 

de
em

ed
 a

p
pr

o
p

ri
at

e 
by

 t
he

C
it

y,
 fo

r 
th

e 
p

u
rp

o
se

 o
f f

in
an

ci
n

g 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
p

u
b

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 t

h
e 

p
ro

pe
rt

y:

p
o

lic
e;

 f
ir

e;
 p

ar
am

ed
ic

al
; o

p
er

at
io

n
, m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 a
n

d
 r

ep
ai

r 
o

f 
n

ew
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 s
u

ch
 a

s,
 b

u
t

n
o

t 
lim

it
ed

 t
o

, 
ro

ad
w

ay
 p

av
em

en
t,

 s
id

ew
al

ks
, 

co
n

cr
et

e 
p

at
h

w
ay

s,
 l

an
d

sc
ap

in
g,

 i
rr

ig
at

io
n

,

b
io

re
te

n
ti

o
n

 f
ac

ili
ti

es
, 

p
ar

ks
, 

p
la

y 
st

ru
ct

u
re

s 
an

d
 a

ss
o

ci
at

ed
 s

it
e 

fu
rn

is
h

in
gs

, 
re

ta
in

in
g 

w
al

ls
,

st
re

et
 

lig
h

ts
, 

en
tr

an
ce

 
m

o
n

u
m

en
ts

, 
vi

d
eo

 
ca

m
er

as
, 

an
d

 
so

u
n

d
w

al
l, 

st
re

et
 

sw
e

ep
in

g 
an

d

d
re

d
gi

n
g 

o
f 

th
e 

Su
is

u
n

 T
u

rn
in

g 
B

as
in

/M
ar

in
a.

 T
he

 r
at

e 
an

d 
m

et
ho

d
 o

f 
ap

po
rt

io
nm

en
t 

o
f 

sp
ec

ia
l

ta
x 

ap
p

lic
ab

le
 t

o
 t

he
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

sh
al

l e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

sp
ec

ia
l t

ax
 d

es
ig

n
ed

 t
o

 o
ff

se
t 

p
u

b
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pe

r 
C

it
y

C
o

u
nc

il 
R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n 

20
05

-7
0.

 A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l 
p

ay
 a

ll 
co

st
s 

as
so

ci
at

e
d

 w
it

h
 e

st
ab

lis
h

in
g 

an
d

/o
r

an
n

ex
in

g 
in

to
 a

n
 e

xi
st

in
g 

o
r 

a 
n

ew
 C

FD
 a

n
d

 /
o

r 
M

A
D

. 
 A

ll 
co

st
s 

fo
r 

es
ta

b
lis

h
in

g 
su

ch
 f

u
n

d
in

g

m
ec

h
an

is
m

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
p

ai
d

 b
y 

th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 

re
co

rd
at

io
n

 o
f 

Fi
n

al
 

M
ap

 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

74
.

Th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l o
ff

er
 f

o
r 

d
ed

ic
at

io
n 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 s

tr
ee

t 
ri

gh
t-

o
f-

w
ay

 f
o

r 
W

es
t 

St
re

et
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 t
h

e

P
ro

je
ct

 o
n

 t
h

e 
Fi

na
l M

ap
 o

r 
o

th
er

 C
it

y 
ap

p
ro

ve
d

 in
st

ru
m

en
t.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 

re
co

rd
at

io
n

 o
f 

Fi
n

al
 

M
ap

 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

75
.

Th
e 

A
pp

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l d

ed
ic

at
e,

 a
s 

re
q

u
ir

ed
, o

n
-s

it
e 

ea
se

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
ne

w
 u

ti
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

st
re

et
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g

p
ri

va
te

 s
tr

ee
ts

, b
y 

m
ea

ns
 o

f F
in

al
 M

ap
 o

r 
o

th
er

 C
it

y 
ap

p
ro

ve
d 

in
st

ru
m

en
t.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 

re
co

rd
at

io
n

 o
f 

Fi
n

al
 

M
ap

 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

76
.

If
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ea
se

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 u
ti

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
lo

ca
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

p
ro

po
se

d
 l

o
ts

, 
th

e 
ut

ili
ti

es
 s

h
al

l 
be

re
lo

ca
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 th

e 
pu

b
lic

 s
tr

ee
ts

 o
r 

in
to

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

ea
se

m
en

ts
, a

s 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
it

y 
En

gi
ne

er
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 

re
co

rd
at

io
n

 o
f 

Fi
n

al
 

M
ap

 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

135



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e1
3
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

7
7

.
D

ev
el

o
p

er
 s

h
al

l s
u

b
m

it
 h

is
 F

ai
th

fu
l P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 B

o
n

d
 a

n
d

 L
ab

o
r 

&
 M

at
er

ia
ls

 B
o

n
d

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e

Fi
n

al
 M

ap
 r

ec
o

rd
at

io
n

.  
D

ev
el

o
p

er
 s

h
al

l s
u

b
m

it
 h

is
 O

n
e

-Y
e

ar
 W

ar
ra

n
ty

 B
o

n
d

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e 

C
it

y’
s

ac
ce

p
ta

n
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
.  

Th
e 

am
o

u
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
Fa

it
h

fu
l P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 B

o
n

d
 a

n
d

 L
ab

o
r 

&

M
at

er
ia

ls
 B

o
n

d
 s

h
al

l e
ac

h
 b

e 
1

00
%

 t
h

e 
co

st
 e

st
im

at
e 

o
f 

th
e 

ci
vi

l a
n

d
 la

n
d

sc
ap

e 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

,

w
h

ile
 t

h
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

e 
O

n
e

-Y
e

ar
 W

ar
ra

n
ty

 B
o

n
d

 s
h

al
l b

e 
2

0
%

 o
f 

th
e 

co
st

 e
st

im
at

e 
o

f 
th

e 
ci

vi
l

an
d

 la
n

d
sc

ap
e 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 

re
co

rd
at

io
n

 o
f 

Fi
n

al
 

M
ap

 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

7
8

.
Th

e 
Fi

n
al

 M
ap

 a
n

d
 P

ar
ce

l 
M

ap
s 

sh
al

l 
b

e 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

So
la

n
o

 I
rr

ig
at

io
n

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
(S

ID
) 

fo
r

re
vi

ew
, a

p
p

ro
va

l a
n

d
 s

ig
n

at
u

re
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 

re
co

rd
at

io
n

 o
f 

Fi
n

al
 

M
ap

 

P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 IS
SU

A
N

C
E 

O
F 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 P
ER

M
IT

 F
O

R
 F

IR
ST

 H
O

M
E

 

7
9

.
P

la
ce

m
en

t 
o

f 
h

o
m

es
 (

fl
o

o
rp

la
n

 m
o

d
el

s)
 s

h
al

l b
e 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 C

ry
st

al
 S

ch
o

o
l

P
la

n
n

ed
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
P

er
m

it
, R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 P
C

1
7

-0
6

, E
xh

ib
it

 A
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

  
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

8
0

.
Th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 c

o
n

ta
in

s 
0

.4
5

 a
cr

es
 o

f 
p

ar
k 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 h
as

 a
 p

ar
k 

la
n

d
 o

b
lig

at
io

n
 o

f 
0

.9
0

 a
cr

es
.  

Th
e

d
ev

el
o

p
er

 s
h

al
l p

ay
 p

ar
k 

in
 li

eu
 f

ee
s 

in
 a

n
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
e

q
u

iv
al

en
t 

to
 0

.4
5

 a
cr

es
 o

f 
p

ar
k 

la
n

d
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

  
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

8
1

.
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l p

ay
 a

ll 
ap

p
lic

ab
le

 f
ee

s 
th

at
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

ed
 o

n
 a

 p
er

 u
n

it
 b

as
is

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 is

su
an

ce

o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g 
p

er
m

it
s.
 C

it
y 

w
ill

 c
o

n
si

d
er

 p
re

vi
o

u
s 

u
se

s,
 e

xi
st

in
g 

p
u

b
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
se

rv
in

g 
th

e

p
ro

je
ct

 s
it

e,
 a

n
d

 a
ss

o
ci

at
e

d
 f

e
es

 f
o

r 
su

ch
 u

se
s 

an
d

 s
e

rv
ic

es
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 a
d

ju
st

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

im
p

ac
t 

fe
e

s 
as

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

  
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

8
2

.
Th

e 
ea

ve
s 

o
f 

ea
ch

 u
n

it
 s

h
al

l 
b

e 
so

ff
it

te
d

 t
o

 p
re

ve
n

t 
em

b
er

s 
an

d
 f

ir
e 

fr
o

m
 e

n
te

ri
n

g 
th

e 
at

ti
c

sp
ac

es
. 

 V
en

ti
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
so

ff
it

 is
 a

llo
w

e
d

, b
u

t 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e 
d

es
ig

n
ed

 t
o

 m
in

im
iz

e 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 f

o
r 

fi
re

h
az

ar
d

s.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

  
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

8
3

.
Th

e 
ex

te
ri

o
r 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 s

h
al

l b
e 

fi
re

 r
at

e
d

.  
St

u
cc

o
 o

r 
a 

fi
re

 r
at

ed
 h

ar
d

y 
p

la
n

k 
is

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
ed

b
u

t 
o

th
er

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 t

h
at

 h
av

e 
a 

h
ig

h
 f

ir
e 

re
si

st
iv

e 
ra

ti
n

g 
m

ay
 b

e 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
, w

it
h

 t
h

e 
ap

p
ro

va
l

o
f 

th
e 

Fi
re

 C
h

ie
f.

  N
o

n
-f

ir
e 

ra
te

d
 w

o
o

d
 t

ri
m

 is
 a

cc
e

p
ta

b
le

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

  
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

136



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e1
4
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

8
4

.
Th

e 
ro

o
fs

 s
h

al
l h

av
e 

a 
n

o
n

-c
o

m
b

u
st

ib
le

 c
o

ve
ri

n
g.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

  
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

8
5

.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 b
u

ild
in

g 
p

er
m

it
 is

su
an

ce
, A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l o

b
ta

in
 a

p
p

ro
va

l f
ro

m

fi
re

 a
n

d
 p

o
lic

e 
d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
a 

p
ar

ki
n

g/
n

o
 p

ar
ki

n
g 

p
la

n
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

s,

fo
r 

al
l p

ri
va

te
 r

o
ad

s,
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
o

r 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
, t

o
 b

e 
co

n
st

ru
ct

ed
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

  
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

8
6

.
A

 r
o

ad
 m

ap
 w

it
h

 n
am

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
p

ro
vi

d
ed

 t
o

 t
h

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 i
ss

u
an

ce
 o

f 
fi

rs
t

d
w

e
lli

n
g 

b
u

ild
in

g 
p

er
m

it
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

  
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

8
7

.
A

ll 
fl

o
o

r 
p

la
n

s 
sh

al
l h

av
e 

a 
si

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 t

h
e 

m
ai

n
 r

es
id

en
ce

 w
it

h
o

u
t 

go
in

g 
th

ro
u

gh
 t

h
e 

ga
ra

ge

o
r 

ar
o

u
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

fr
o

n
t 

d
o

o
r.

  P
la

n
 f

o
r 

o
f 

ap
p

lic
an

t’
s 

su
b

m
it

ta
l s

h
al

l b
e 

m
o

d
if

ie
d

 a
cc

o
rd

in
gl

y.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 Is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

B
u

ild
in

g 
P

er
m

it
  

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

8
8

.
A

 w
at

er
 s

u
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 f

ir
e 

h
yd

ra
n

t 
sy

st
em

 m
u

st
 b

e 
fu

n
ct

io
n

al
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 d
el

iv
er

y 
o

f 
co

m
b

u
st

ib
le

m
at

er
ia

ls
 t

o
 t

h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 s
it

e.
 I

f 
n

o
t 

co
n

st
ru

ct
ed

 in
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

p
h

as
e,

 t
h

e 
h

yd
ra

n
t 

sy
st

e
m

 s
h

al
l b

e

ex
p

an
d

 s
u

ch
 t

h
at

 f
ir

e 
su

p
p

re
ss

io
n

 w
at

er
 i

s 
av

ai
la

b
le

 a
t 

lo
ts

 u
n

d
er

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e

fr
am

in
g 

st
ag

e 
o

f 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

  
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

8
9

.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 i
ss

u
an

ce
 o

f 
an

y 
d

w
e

lli
n

g 
b

u
ild

in
g 

p
er

m
it

, 
th

e 
B

u
ild

in
g 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

sh
al

l 
re

vi
ew

 a
n

d

en
su

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 n
o

is
e 

st
u

d
y,

 t
it

le
 “

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l S
it

e 
R

es
id

en
ti

al
” 

p
re

p
ar

ed

b
y 

J.
C

. 
B

re
n

n
an

 &
 A

ss
o

ci
at

e 
an

d
 d

at
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
1

, 2
0

1
7

. 
 L

o
ts

 5
-7

, 1
0

, 1
6

, 2
3

 a
n

d
 3

1
 h

av
e 

th
e

gr
ea

te
st

 n
o

is
e 

ex
p

o
su

re
 a

n
d

 a
re

 s
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 s

p
ec

if
ic

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
. 

 A
d

d
it

io
n

al
ly

,

lo
ts

 1
-4

 a
n

d
 3

9
-4

1
 h

av
e 

le
ss

er
 n

o
is

e 
ex

p
o

su
re

 b
u

t 
st

ill
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

re
d

u
ce

 n
o

is
e 

ex
p

o
su

re
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

  
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

9
0

.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 f
ir

st
 d

w
el

lin
g 

b
u

ild
in

g 
p

er
m

it
, 

th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l 
co

n
st

ru
ct

 a
ll 

ci
vi

l 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

,

in
cl

u
d

in
g 

b
u

t 
n

o
t 

lim
it

ed
 t

o
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t,
 W

e
st

 S
tr

ee
t 

th
ro

u
gh

 t
h

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 a

n
d

re
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 f
ro

n
ta

ge
s 

o
f 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 S
tr

ee
t,

 W
es

t 
St

re
et

, M
o

rg
an

 S
tr

ee
t,

 S
ch

o
o

l

St
re

et
 a

n
d

 C
o

rd
el

ia
 S

tr
ee

t 
as

 d
ep

ic
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l S
it

e
 P

re
ci

se
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
P

la
n

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

  
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

9
1

.
P

ro
vi

d
e 

p
av

em
en

t 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

th
at

 i
n

cl
u

d
es

 c
ra

ck
 f

ill
in

g 
an

d
 b

as
e 

fa
ilu

re
 r

ep
ai

rs
, 

gr
in

d
in

g 
h

ig
h

sp
o

ts
, l

ev
el

in
g 

co
u

rs
e 

in
 lo

w
 s

p
o

ts
, a

n
d

 c
ap

e 
se

al
 f

o
r 

th
e 

fu
ll-

w
id

th
 o

f 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

o
rg

an

St
re

et
, W

es
t 

St
re

e
t,

 C
o

rd
el

ia
 S

tr
ee

t 
an

d
 S

ch
o

o
l S

tr
ee

t 
fr

o
n

ti
n

g 
th

e 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t.
 A

p
p

lic
an

t 
is

 t
o

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

  
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

137



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e1
5
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
p

h
o

to
s 

o
f 

th
e 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 b
eg

in
n

in
g 

an
y 

tr
ea

tm
en

ts
.  

P
av

em
en

t 
tr

ea
tm

en
ts

 f
o

r 

th
es

e 
ro

ad
w

ay
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
fi

rs
t 

d
w

el
lin

g 
b

u
ild

in
g 

p
er

m
it

. 

9
2

.
A

t 
th

e 
ti

m
e 

th
e 

B
u

ild
in

g 
P

er
m

it
 is

su
ed

, t
h

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l p

ay
 t

h
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
SS

W
A

 C
o

n
n

ec
ti

o
n

Fe
e 

an
d

 M
et

e
r 

In
st

al
la

ti
o

n
 F

ee
 a

t 
th

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

Su
is

u
n

 C
it

y.
  T

h
es

e 
fe

e
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

la
te

st

SS
W

A
 f

ee
 s

ch
ed

u
le

 a
t 

ti
m

e 
o

f 
p

ay
m

en
t,

 a
n

d
 a

re
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
si

ze
 o

f 
m

et
e

r 
re

q
u

es
te

d
.  

A
ll

d
o

m
es

ti
c 

w
at

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

sh
al

l b
e

 m
et

er
ed

.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g 

P
er

m
it

 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

9
3

.
C

o
lo

r 
sc

h
em

es
 f

o
r 

ea
ch

 h
o
m

e 
sh

al
l 

b
e 

ap
p
ro

v
ed

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 i

ss
u
an

ce
 o

f 
ea

ch
 h

o
m

e 
b
u
il

d
in

g

p
er

m
it

. 
  
 A

p
p
ro

v
ed

 c
o
lo

rs
 a

re
 i

d
en

ti
fi

ed
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 P
U

D
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d
 a

re

p
re

se
n
te

d
 a

s 
1
4
 c

o
lo

r 
sc

h
em

es
 o

rg
an

iz
ed

 4
 c

o
lo

r 
g
ro

u
p
s.

  
C

o
lo

rs
 s

h
al

l 
b
e 

se
le

ct
ed

 a
n
d

ap
p
ro

v
ed

 a
s 

fo
ll

o
w

s:


N

o
 m

o
re

 t
h
an

 6
 h

o
u
se

s 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 m
ay

 u
ti

li
ze

 t
h
e 

sa
m

e 
co

lo
r 

sc
h

em
e.


N

o
 h

o
u
se

s 
in

 c
lo

se
 p

ro
x

im
it

y
 (

n
ex

t 
d
o
o
r 

o
r 

ac
ro

ss
 s

tr
ee

t/
p
ar

k
 o

r 
p

ar
k
 f

ro
m

 e
ac

h

o
th

er
) 

m
a
y
 u

ti
li

ze
 t

h
e 

sa
m

e 
co

lo
r 

sc
h
em

e.


E

ac
h
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e 

se
g
m

en
t 

(a
lo

n
g
 a

 s
tr

ee
t 

o
r 

fa
ci

n
g
 t

h
e 

p
ar

k
) 

sh
al

l 
u
ti

li
ze

 a
 m

ix
 o

f 
co

lo
r

sc
h

em
es

 a
n
d
 a

 m
ix

 o
f 

co
lo

r 
g
ro

u
p
s.


N

o
 c

o
lo

r 
sc

h
em

e 
sh

al
l 

b
e 

re
p
ea

te
d
 o

n
 a

n
y
 g

iv
en

 f
ro

n
ta

g
e 

se
g
m

en
t.

A
p

p
ro

ve
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

al
 b

u
ild

in
g 

p
er

m
it

s 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

D
U

R
IN

G
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 

9
4

.
D

u
ri

n
g 

p
ro

je
ct

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

, 
th

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l 

n
o

ti
fy

 T
h

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
sh

al
l 

b
e 

n
o

ti
fi

ed

w
h

en
 t

h
e 

w
at

er
 s

ys
te

m
 o

r 
h

yd
ra

n
ts

 a
re

 s
h

u
t 

d
o

w
n

.
D

u
ri

n
g 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

9
5

.
D

u
ri

n
g 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
, a

d
eq

u
at

e 
ro

ad
s 

m
ad

e 
o

f 
an

 a
ll-

w
ea

th
er

 m
at

e
ri

al
 m

u
st

 b
e 

in
st

al
le

d
 b

ef
o

re

ea
ch

 f
ra

m
in

g 
p

h
as

e 
is

 s
ta

rt
ed

. A
d

eq
u

at
e 

p
ar

ki
n

g 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
m

u
st

 b
e 

m
ai

n
ta

in
ed

 t
o

 a
llo

w
 f

ir
e

su
p

p
re

ss
io

n
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 b

u
ild

in
gs

 u
n

d
er

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

.

D
u

ri
n

g 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

9
6

.
A

n
 a

d
eq

u
at

e 
fi

re
 la

n
e 

to
 e

ac
h

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 s
it

e
 m

u
st

 b
e 

m
ai

n
ta

in
ed

. F
ir

e 
la

n
es

 m
u

st
 b

e 
p

o
st

ed

“F
IR

E 
LA

N
E-

 N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

.”
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 s
h

al
l 

b
e 

st
ag

ed
 o

u
ts

id
e 

o
f 

th
e 

fi
re

 l
an

e.

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 e
q

u
ip

m
en

t 
an

d
 t

ra
d

es
m

en
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

sh
al

l n
o

t 
p

ar
k 

in
 t

h
e 

fi
re

 la
n

es
.

D
u

ri
n

g 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

138



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e1
6
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

9
7

.
A

ll 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
 r

ig
h

t-
o

f-
w

ay
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

to
 b

e 
p

er
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l 
b

e

in
cl

u
d

ed
 w

it
h

in
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

C
it

y 
En

cr
o

ac
h

m
en

t 
P

er
m

it
 is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
it

y 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t.

Is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

En
cr

o
ac

h
m

en
t 

P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 p

ay
m

en
t 

o
f 

al
l a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e
 f

ee
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
m

p
le

te
d

p
ri

o
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
, 

an
d

 a
ll 

w
o

rk
 u

n
d

er
 t

h
e 

p
er

m
it

 s
h

al
l 

b
e 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 p
ri

o
r 

to

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

o
cc

u
p

an
cy

 p
er

m
it

.

D
u

ri
n

g 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 
P

ri
o

r 
to

 C
e

rt
if

ic
at

e 
o

f 
O

cc
u

p
an

cy
 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

9
8

.
A

 s
ig

n
 s

h
al

l 
b

e 
p

o
st

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e 
p

ro
p

er
ty

 i
n

 a
 m

an
n

er
 c

o
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
u

b
lic

 h
ea

ri
n

g 
si

gn

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
, 

w
h

ic
h

 s
h

al
l 

id
en

ti
fy

 t
h

e 
ad

d
re

ss
 a

n
d

 p
h

o
n

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

an
d

/o
r

A
p

p
lic

an
t’

s 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

ve
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
u

rp
o

se
s 

o
f 

re
sp

o
n

d
in

g 
to

 q
u

es
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 d
u

ri
n

g

th
e 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 p

er
io

d
.  

Sa
id

 s
ig

n
 s

h
al

l a
ls

o
 in

d
ic

at
e 

th
e 

h
o

u
rs

 o
f p

er
m

is
si

b
le

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 w
o

rk
.

D
u

ri
n

g 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

9
9

.
Th

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l h

av
e 

a 
su

p
er

in
te

n
d

en
t 

p
re

se
n

t 
at

 a
ll 

ti
m

es
 a

t 
th

e 
jo

b
 s

it
e.

  
Su

p
er

in
te

n
d

en
t

sh
al

l 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

th
e 

q
u

al
it

y 
co

n
tr

o
l 

fo
r 

th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t;

 r
es

p
o

n
d

 t
o

 t
h

e 
C

it
y’

s 
co

n
ce

rn
s;

 c
o

o
rd

in
at

e

in
sp

ec
ti

o
n

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
C

it
y 

In
sp

ec
to

r;
 m

ak
e 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 d

ec
is

io
n

s 
o

n
 b

eh
al

f o
f 

th
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t;

 a
n

d

co
o

rd
in

at
e 

w
o

rk
 o

f 
th

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t’
s 

su
b

co
n

tr
ac

to
rs

.

D
u

ri
n

g 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

1
00

.
U

n
le

ss
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
ap

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y 

th
e 

C
it

y 
En

gi
n

ee
r,

 a
ll 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
si

d
ew

al
ks

 s
h

al
l 

b
e 

ke
p

t 
cl

ea
r 

an
d

p
as

sa
b

le
 d

u
ri

n
g 

al
l p

h
as

es
 o

f 
th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
.

D
u

ri
n

g 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

1
01

.
If

 a
n

y 
ar

ch
ae

o
lo

gi
ca

l r
es

o
u

rc
es

 a
re

 f
o

u
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

gr
ad

in
g 

o
f 

th
e 

si
te

 o
r 

d
u

ri
n

g 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

o
f 

an
y 

w
o

rk
, 

w
o

rk
 

sh
al

l 
b

e 
h

al
te

d
, 

th
e 

C
it

y 
En

gi
n

ee
r 

sh
al

l 
b

e 
n

o
ti

fi
ed

 
an

d
 

a 
ce

rt
if

ie
d

ar
ch

ae
o

lo
gi

ca
l f

ir
m

 s
h

al
l b

e 
co

n
su

lt
ed

 f
o

r 
ad

vi
ce

 a
t 

A
p

p
lic

an
t’

s 
ex

p
en

se
.

D
u

ri
n

g 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

1
02

.
D

u
ri

n
g 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 a

 s
ec

u
ri

ty
 f

en
ce

, 
th

e 
h

ei
gh

t 
o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
al

l 
b

e 
th

e 
m

ax
im

u
m

 p
er

m
it

te
d

 b
y

th
e 

Zo
n

in
g 

O
rd

in
an

ce
, 

sh
al

l b
e 

in
st

al
le

d
 a

n
d

 m
ai

n
ta

in
ed

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e 

p
er

im
et

er
 o

f 
th

e 
lo

t.
  

Th
e

lo
t 

sh
al

l b
e 

ke
p

t 
cl

ea
r 

o
f 

al
l t

ra
sh

, w
ee

d
s 

an
d

 li
tt

er
 t

h
ro

u
gh

o
u

t 
th

e 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 a
ct

iv
it

y.

D
u

ri
n

g 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

1
03

.
D

u
st

 c
o

n
tr

o
l s

h
al

l b
e 

in
 c

o
n

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
it

h
 C

it
y 

St
an

d
ar

d
s 

an
d

 O
rd

in
an

ce
s.

  V
eh

ic
le

s 
h

au
lin

g 
d

ir
t

o
r 

o
th

er
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 d

eb
ri

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
si

te
 s

h
al

l 
co

ve
r 

an
y 

o
p

en
 l

o
ad

 w
it

h
 a

 t
ar

p
au

lin
 o

r 
o

th
er

se
cu

re
 c

o
ve

ri
n

g 
to

 m
in

im
iz

e 
d

u
st

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s.

D
u

ri
n

g 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

1
04

.
D

u
m

p
st

er
s 

an
d

 t
ra

sh
 r

ec
ep

ta
cl

es
 t

o
 b

e 
u

se
d

 o
n

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 s

h
al

l 
b

e 
d

u
m

p
st

er
s 

su
p

p
lie

d
 b

y

R
ep

u
b

lic
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

  
Th

is
 i

s 
p

u
rs

u
an

t 
to

 t
h

e 
ag

re
em

en
t 

b
et

w
e

en
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
an

d
 R

ep
u

b
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s

fo
r 

al
l a

re
as

 w
it

h
in

 S
u

is
u

n
 C

it
y.

D
u

ri
n

g 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

139



Ex
h

ib
it

 C
 

C
ry

st
al

 S
ch

o
o

l/
P

ar
ce

l 1
4

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

P
ag

e1
7
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

Ti
m

in
g 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
St

at
u

s 

P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 C
ER

TI
FI

C
A

TE
 O

F 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 F
O

R
 F

IR
ST

 H
O

M
E

 

1
05

.
A

ll 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 s
o

u
n

d
w

al
ls

 s
h

al
l b

e 
co

n
st

ru
ct

ed
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

fi
rs

t 
C

er
ti

fi
ca

te
 o

f 
O

cc
u

p
an

cy
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 C

e
rt

if
ic

at
e 

o
f 

O
cc

u
p

an
cy

  
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

1
06

.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
fi

rs
t 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

O
cc

u
p

an
cy

, 
th

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l 

su
b

m
it

 t
o

 t
h

e 
P

u
b

lic

W
o

rk
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

“a
s-

b
u

ilt
” 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s,
 h

ar
d

 c
o

p
y 

an
d

 in
 P

D
F 

fo
rm

at
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 C

e
rt

if
ic

at
e 

o
f 

O
cc

u
p

an
cy

  
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

1
07

.
Th

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
sh

al
l 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
an

d
 i

n
st

al
l 

fr
ee

ze
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

al
l 

R
P

B
FP

’s
 a

n
d

 D
C

D
C

's
 a

t 
th

e

A
p

p
lic

an
t’

s 
ex

p
en

se
.

P
ri

o
r 

to
 C

er
ti

fi
ca

te
 

o
f 

O
cc

u
p

an
cy

 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 

1
08

.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f O

cc
u

p
an

cy
, t

h
e 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

sh
al

l s
u

b
m

it
 t

o
 S

ID
 t

h
e 

el
ec

tr
o

n
ic

A
u

to
C

A
D

 f
ile

s 
an

d
 s

ca
n

n
ed

 .t
if

 im
ag

es
 a

t 
3

0
0

 d
p

i o
f 

th
e 

“a
s 

b
u

ilt
” 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s.
P

ri
o

r 
to

 C
e

rt
if

ic
at

e 
o

f 
O

cc
u

p
an

cy
 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

Item 13 
Attachment 1 

Exhibit B

140



Item 13 
Attachment 2

141



Item 13 
Attachment 2

142



Item 13 
Attachment 2

143



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

144



Te
nt

at
iv

e 
M

ap
 E

xt
en

sio
n 

Re
qu

es
t f

or
 P

ar
ce

l 1
4

M
AY

 5
, 

20
20

Item 13 
Attachment 3

145

http://www.suisun.com/


Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd


Th
e

Ci
ty

Co
un

ci
lo

rig
in

al
ly

co
ns

id
er

ed
an

d
ap

pr
ov

ed
th

e
Pr

oj
ec

to
n

Au
gu

st
8,

20
17

.


O
n

Se
pt

em
be

r
1 7

,
20

17
,

a
la

w
su

it
w

as
fil

ed
;

Re
sp

on
sib

le
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
in

Su
isu

n
Ci

ty
(R

DS
C)

v.
Ci

ty
of

Su
isu

n
Ci

ty
(S

ol
an

o
Co

un
ty

Su
pe

rio
r

Co
ur

t
Ca

se
N

o.
FC

S0
49

56
7)

.


Pr
op

os
ed

pr
oj

ec
tm

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
w

er
e

co
ns

id
er

ed
an

d
ap

pr
ov

ed
by

th
e

Ci
ty

Co
un

ci
l

at
a

Pu
bl

ic
He

ar
in

g
on

Ap
ril

17
,2

01
8.


Th

e
la

w
su

it
w

as
di

sm
iss

ed
on

Ju
ne

6,
20

18
.

Item 13 
Attachment 3

146

http://www.suisun.com/


Su
bm

itt
ed

 R
eq

ue
st


Th

e
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

ub
m

itt
ed

a
re

qu
es

tt
o

ex
te

nd
th

e
te

nt
at

iv
e

m
ap

fo
r1

8
m

on
th

s(
to

O
ct

ob
er

20
21

).


Ef

fo
rt

ha
s

b e
en

m
ad

e
by

th
e

de
ve

lo
pe

r’s
te

am
to

pr
ep

ar
e

a
Fi

na
lM

ap
an

d
Im

pr
ov

em
en

tP
la

ns
.


Re

vi
se

d
pl

an
s

h a
ve

be
en

pr
ep

ar
ed

fo
r

ag
en

cy
re

vi
ew

,b
ut

th
e

cu
rr

en
t

pa
nd

em
ic

ha
s

no
t

al
lo

w
ed

in
-p

er
so

n
m

ee
tin

gs
.

Item 13 
Attachment 3

147

http://www.suisun.com/


Ci
ty

 C
ou

nc
il 

O
pt

io
ns


Ap

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
Te

nt
at

iv
e 

Pa
rc

el
 M

ap
Ex

te
ns

io
n,

 a
s i

s


Co
nd

iti
on

al
ly

 A
pp

ro
ve

 th
e 

Te
nt

at
iv

e
Pa

rc
el

 M
ap

 E
xt

en
sio

n


De
ny

 Te
nt

at
iv

e 
Pa

rc
el

 M
ap

 E
xt

en
sio

n


Ta
ke

 N
o 

Ac
tio

n

Item 13 
Attachment 3

148

http://www.suisun.com/


St
af

f R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n

It
is

re
co

m
m

en
de

d
th

at
th

e
Ci

ty
Co

un
ci

l
Ad

op
t

Re
so

lu
tio

n
20

20
-_

__
_:

Ap
pr

ov
in

g
an

Ex
te

ns
io

n
to

th
e

Te
nt

at
iv

e
Su

bd
iv

isi
on

M
ap

N
o.

SM
16

-7
-0

01
,

fo
r

th
e

Cr
ys

ta
l

Sc
ho

ol
/P

ar
ce

l
14

Pr
oj

ec
t

(A
PN

00
32

-1
52

-
18

0)
.

Item 13 
Attachment 3

149

http://www.suisun.com/


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

150



______________________________________________________________________________ 
PREPARED BY: John Kearns, Senior Planner 
REIEWED/APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 
MEETING DATE:  May 5, 2020 
 

CITY AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING: Waterfront District Business Improvement District 
(Continued to Date Uncertain): 
 
Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-___: Declaring its Intent to Consider Reauthorizing the 
Suisun City Historic Waterfront Business Improvement District and the Assessment Levy for the 
District for Fiscal Year 2020, and Setting a Public Hearing to Consider these Matters for _____, 
2020. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Reauthorization of the BID assessments has no fiscal impact on the City 
General Fund as these assessments are paid by businesses within the District to the BID, which is an 
independent non-profit organization.    
 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Revitalize Downtown Waterfront District. 
 
BACKGROUND/STAFF REPORT:  The Public Hearing was continued from February 4, 2020 
to March 17, 2020 and again from March 17, 2020 to May 5, 2020. by the City Council. In order 
to continue the discussion and allow for the BID Board election process to be completed, staff is 
recommending that Council once again continue this item. A new public hearing will be noticed 
once the election process has been completed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Due to delays caused by the Shelter in Place health order, it is 
recommended that the City Council continue the item to a date uncertain in order to allow more 
time for the BID Board to meet with the members. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-__: Declaring its Intent to Consider Reauthorizing 

the Suisun City Historic Waterfront Business Improvement District and the Assessment 
Levy for the District for Fiscal Year 2020, and Setting a Public Hearing to Consider these 
Matters for ______, 2020. 

 
 

Item 14 

151



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

152



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
DECLARING ITS INTENT TO CONSIDER REAUTHORIZING THE SUISUN CITY 

HISTORIC WATERFRONT BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  
AND THE ASSESSMENT LEVY FOR THE DISTRICT FOR  
FISCAL YEAR 2020, AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING  

TO CONSIDER THESE MATTERS FOR ______, 2020 
 

WHEREAS, the California Streets and Highways Code Section 36500 et seq. 
authorizes cities to establish parking and business improvement areas for the purpose of 
promoting economic revitalization and physical maintenance of business districts in order to 
create jobs, attract new business and prevent erosion of the business district; and 

WHEREAS, the Main Street-Waterfront Business Improvement District, commonly 
known as the Suisun City Historic Waterfront Business Improvement District, was formed at 
the request of the Main Street-Waterfront Business Improvement District Formation Committee 
(Committee) by City Council adoption of City Ordinance No. 667 on April 18, 2003; and 

WHEREAS, at the request of the Committee, Ordinance No. 667 established an annual 
special assessment on all businesses within the Main Street-Waterfront Business Improvement 
District, commonly known as the Suisun City Historic Waterfront Business Improvement 
District, (District), which said assessment must be renewed annually by City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Main Street-Waterfront Business Improvement District Board of 
Directors (Board) has requested the that Suisun City Council renew the special assessment on 
all business within the BID; and 

WHEREAS, renewal of the special assessment may occur only after City Council 
conducts a noticed public hearing pursuant to the Parking and Business Improvement District 
Area Law of 1989, Part 6 (commencing with Section 36500) of Division 18 of the California 
Streets and Highways Code. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Suisun 
City does hereby determine that: 

1. The recitals set forth herein are true and correct. 
2. The City Council does, at the request of the Board, and pursuant to the California Streets 

and Highways Code, declare its intent to consider reauthorizing and renewing the “Main 
Street-Waterfront Business Improvement District” (District). 

3. The boundaries of the entire area to be included in the District, and the boundaries of 
each separate benefit zone within the District, are set forth in the Map, EXHIBIT A, 
incorporated herein by reference.  A true and correct copy of the map is on file with the 
City Clerk of the City of Suisun City. 

4. The types of improvements and activities proposed to be funded by the levy of 
assessments on business in the District are in EXHIBIT B hereto and incorporated by 
reference. 

5. The City Council intends to consider reauthorizing the District and renewing the levy 
of an annual benefit fee on businesses in the District to pay for selected improvements 
and activities of the District. 

Item 14 
Attachment 1

153



 

Resolution No. 2020-__ 
Adopted ________, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

6. All funds of the District shall be expended on improvements and activities within the 
District. 

7. The method and the basis for levying the benefit fee on all the businesses within the 
District are set forth in the EXHIBIT C hereto, incorporated herein by reference. 

8. The Annual Benefit fees shall be incorporated into the City Business License fee for 
those businesses within the District and shall be due and payable as part of obtaining 
the required City Business License pursuant to City Code Title 5. 

9. A public hearing to consider re-authorization of the District is hereby set for May5, 
2020, at 6:30 p.m. before the City Council of the City of Suisun City, at the City Council 
Chambers at 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 

10. At the public hearing, the testimony of all interested persons, for or against the 
establishment of the District, interested in matters concerning the boundaries of the 
District, the areas of benefit within the District and the assessments to be levied, will be 
heard. 

11. A protest against the District, or any aspect of it, may be made orally or in writing.  An 
oral protest shall be made at the said public hearing.  To count in the majority protest 
against the District, a protest must be in writing.  A written protest may be withdrawn 
from record at any time before the conclusion of the public hearing.  Each written protest 
shall contain a written description of the business in which the person signing the protest 
is interested, sufficient to identify the business, and its address.  If the person signing 
the protest is not shown on the official records of the City of Suisun City as the owner 
of the business, then the protest shall contain or be accompanied by written evidence 
that the person is the owner of the business.  Any written protest as to the regularity or 
sufficiency of the proceedings shall be in writing and clearly state the irregularity or 
defect to which objection is made. 

12. If, at the conclusion of the public hearing, there are of record, written protest by the 
owners of the businesses within the District that will pay fifty percent (50%) or more of 
the total assessments of the entire District, no further proceedings to create the District 
shall occur.  New proceedings to reauthorize and renew the District and levy the benefit 
assessment fee shall not be undertaken again for a period of at least one (1) year from 
the date of the finding of the majority written protest by the City Council.  If the majority 
written protest is only as to an improvement or activity proposed, then that type of 
improvement or activity shall not be included in the District. 

13. Further information regarding the proposed Main Street-Waterfront Business 
Improvement District may be obtained from the City Clerk of the City of Suisun City, 
at Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA, and or by calling (707) 
421-7309. 

14. The City Clerk is instructed to provide notice of the public hearing as follows: 
a. Publish this Resolution of Intention in a newspaper of general circulation in the City 

of Suisun City once, at least ten (10) days before the hearing. 
b. Mail a complete copy of this Resolution of Intention to each and every business 

owner in the District within seven (7) days of the adoption of this Resolution by the 
City Council. 

Item 14 
Attachment 1

154



Resolution No. 2020-__ 
Adopted ________, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

15. This Resolution is effective on its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of
Suisun City held on Tuesday the ____ day of _________ 2020 by the following vote: 
AYES: Council Members: 
NOES: Council Members: 
ABSENT: Council Members: 
ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this ___ day of _________ 2020.  

Donna Pock, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

Item 14 
Attachment 1

155


	Regular Meeting City Council Agenda
	Item 2 - Proclamaitons
	Item 3 - Suisun Marina Dredging Notice of Completion
	Item 4 - First Funding Amendment for Electric Vehicle Charging Station Project
	Item 5 - Landscaping Public Works Agreement
	Item 6 - Contract Amendment Interwest Consulting Group Civic Center Blvd
	Item 7 - Contract Services Agreement for Janitorial City Facilities
	Item 8 - Authorizing Application for Local Government Planning Support Grant Program Funds
	Item 9 - Establishing Economic Pandemic Impact Citizens Advisory Committee
	Item 10 - Second Amendment to SCMPEA MOU
	Item 11 - Senate Bill 743 Implementation Support
	Item 12 - Minutes
	Item 13 - Approving an Extension Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map Crystal School/Parcel 14 Project
	Item 14 - Waterfront District Busidness Improvement District



